April 19, 2024

Hilton Convention Center
104 Market Street
Shreveport, LLouisiana 71101
9:00 a.m.




Mission Statement
Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique
institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable
world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art research, creative scholarship, and
transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World.

SPECIAL RECOGNITION COMMITTEE
April 19, 2024
Hilton Convention Center
104 Market Street
Shreveport, Louisiana 71101

AGENDA

1. Call to Order
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
3. Special Presentation (s)

A. Check presentation by CareSouth

B. Check presentation by Capital One
C. Polysomnography Technology program (by Colton Wiggins, Program Director)

D. Caddo Parish School Board (on Newton Smith Center for Workforce Solutions by
Superintendent Lamar Goree)

E. Above and Beyond

4. Adoption of the Agenda
5. Public Comments

6. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Mr. Myron K. Lawson — Chairman, Dr. Rani Whitfield — Vice Chair, Dr. Leon Tarver, II,
Ms. Ann Smith Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert, Atty. Tony Clayton,
Atty. Edwin Shorty and Dr. Arlanda Williams
Mr, Myron K. Lawson — Ex Officio




Mission Statement
Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique
institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable
world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art rescarch, creative scholarship, and
transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World.

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

(Following Special Recognition Committee)

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda
4. Public Comments

5. Action Item(s)

A. Request Approval of Spring Commencement Resolutions
(SUNO, SUBR, SUSLA, SULC)

B. Request Approval of Recommendations for the College of Humanities and
Interdisciplinary Studies Curriculum Changes (SUBR)

C. Request Approval of Degree Program Proposals (SUSLA)

1. Consiruction Engineering Technology - CIP Code 15.1001
Drone Engineering Technology - CIP Code 36.0207
Engineering CIP Code - 14.0101
Mechatronics CIP Code - 14.4201
Alternative & Renewable Energy - CIP Code 15.0505

vk e

D. Request Approval to Offer Existing Academic Program through Distance Learning
Technologies -- Associate of Applied Science in Polysomnographic Technology
(SUSLA)

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Dr. Leon Tarver, II - Chairman, Mr. Sam Gilliam —Vice-Chair,
Atty Tony Clayton, Mrs. Maple Gaines, Mrs. Ann Smith, and Dr. Arlanda Williams
Mr. Myron K. Lawson — Ex Officio










Southern University at Shreveport

Whereas, Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana 2024 Spring Commencement is
scheduled on Friday, May 10, 2024.

Whereas, there are approximately 339 prospective candidates for graduation who expect
to receive 261 Associate Degrees, 69 Certificates, and 9 Technical Diplomas from
Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana.,

Now Therefore Be it Resolved that the degrees, certificates and diplomas will be
conferred upon the candidates for graduation during the 2024 Spring Commencement
of Southern University at Shreveport submitted by Dennis Shields, President for the
Southern University System, and Dr. Aubra J. Gantt, Chancellor for Southern
University at Shreveport, Louisiana, upon the approval and recommendation of the
Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs, the Faculty, and the appropriate administrative
staff, and they are hereby approved, and;

Be It Further Resolved that the list of graduates may be supplemented or modified as
necessary to carry out the intent of this resolution.

We, the duly qualified officers of the Board of Supervisors for the Southern University
System, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution
adopted by the Southern University System Board of Supervisors at its regular meeting
on the 19th day of April, 2024.

Dennis Shields
President
Southern University System

— Q\“\ " The Honorable Myron K. Lawson
o '- Chairman of the Board

Southgam University System Board of Supervisors













|

The following non-committee members were present at the meeting to provide additional
information on the agenda items submitted by the Music Digital Media Arts Department.

1. Prof. Darrell Roberson
2. Mr. Harry Anderson

B. Summarized Curriculum Changes and New Program Proposal
Requests Submitted for Review & Approval

Recommending Academic Department Reguested Curriculum Change
Unit/School/Office
Departiment of Digital 37 new Digital Media Arts courses and course
Media Arts syllabi
Five course prefixes for Digital Media Arts
College of Humanities & required and elective courses

Interdisciplinary Studies

Department of Digital
Media Arts

B.A. in Digital Media Arts
Five Concentrations for Digital Media Arts

C. Curriculum Committee Reviews, Comments, and Recommendations on the Proposed
Curriculum Changes

1. Overview of the Proposal for a B.A. in Digital Media Arts

a.

The Curriculum Committee reviewed the proposal for a B.A, in DIGITAL
MEDIA ARTS propelled by the advancement of new technologies and
online media. The Media Arts program draws on multiple disciplines, such
as journalism, English, and music, to develop the ability to work on film,
television, and computer-based audiovisual media projects.

The proposed interdisciplinary program covers computer programming,
digital photography, website design, animation, film studjes, print and
broadcast journalism, visual communication, writing, graphic design, game

design, videos, and other multimedia projects.

The program prepares students who are creative, tech-savyy, and passionate
about digital content for careers in various fields, including media




production, web design, visual design, and emerging media
technologies.

d. According to the department's faculty and other institutions' best practices,
Digital Media Arts is a multidisciplinary academic program that depends on
collaborative endeavors with departments within the College of Humanities
and Interdisciplinary Studies and other units on campus.

e. The proposed new undergraduate degree program aligns with the mission of
Southern University, the Board of Regents, and the rapid change in
information technology and its impact on society's work and life. Thus,
the Curriculum Committee approved the requested B.A. in Digital Media
Arts with the necessary precautionary recommendations indicated in this
report.

Technology/ Entrepreneurship, understanding that the Department’s faculty
and staff will provide effective advisement and tutorial support services and
that the students will demonstrate focused engagement in learning and
dedication to their music careers.

2. Curriculum Content of the Proposed B.A. in Digital Media Arts

a. The Curmriculum Committee worked in detail with the Department of Digital Media
Arts representatives to ensure the proposed program complies with SUBR
Academic Policies, the BoR guidelines, and other institutions' best practices. The
Committee’s findings showed that the proposed program curriculum, degree plan,
and concentrations meet all the requirements.

b. The new B.A. in Digital Media Arts is designed with a significant general
education core and the Board of Regents standard number of credits required for a
baccalaureate degree of 120 cr. hrs. The program comprises five concentrations
(nine credit hrs.) or specialization areas: i) Digital Screen Arts Production,

ii) Recording Arts, ifl) Visual Arts and Motion Graphics, iv) Digital
Performance Fusion, and v) Digital Sports Production.






























4, Has the program been designed to align with any Board of Regents or other statewide initiatives? Check all that
apply.
[ 1 M) Foster Promise Program
[ 1Cyber-security Initiatives
[ x ] Louisiana Transfer Pathways
[ ] Other;

5. If this proposal is for a Master’s or Doctoral program, provide a list below {name, institution, email address, brief
summary of qualifications) for at least three external review candidates, Reviewers should be active or retired
full time faculty member from an accredited institution; have experience developing and/for administering a
program like the proposed program; and should not have direct affiliation with a Louislana institution.

N/A

B. The Master Plan and Institutional Role, Scope, and Mission

6. How does the program align with your institutional role, scope, and mission? If the program does not align,

provide a compelling rationale for the institution to offer the program.

The mission of Southern University and A&M College, an Historically Black, 1890 land-grant institution, in
Baton Rouge, Louisiana, is to provide a student-focused teaching and learning environment that creates
national and global leadership opportunitles for a diverse student population where teaching, research,
service, scholarly and creative expectations for students and facuity are achieved through the bachelor's,
master's, and doctoral programs offered at the institution via different instructional modalities and via public
service,
The proposed program would be a valuable addition to any HBCU. It would promote collaboration between
various departments on campus and equip students with the skills and knowledge for success in a rapidly
growing field, allowing them to share their own stories and perspectives. The program would benefit the
Southern University community by attracting talented students and promoting the institution as a leader in

digital media arts education,

7. How does the program align with your institution’s strategic plan and academic program portfolio?

In addition to outlining related abjectives, our plan encompasses several key areas to be addressed by the

proposed program:

(1) Implementing strategies to make tuition more affordabie through the development of scholarships,
writing grant proposals and, endowments. (2) Establishing a diverse advisory council comprised of
prominent professionals to support the program's vision. {3) Enhancing end-of-semester fali head count
enrollment, {4) Boosting new first-time and full-time enrollment. (5) Expanding undergraduate
enroliment. (5) Increasing transfer-in enrollment. {6) Raising the percentage of adult learners (25 years
and older}.

3|Pége



8. How does the program align with the priorities outlined in the Board of Regents Master Plan for Higher

Education? Provide brief descriptions for each. Additional details will be required later in the proposal.

s Accessibility {(mode of delivery, alternate course scheduling)
As the program matures, hybrid class offerings may be incorporated.
Classes will be offered evenings when possible.

»  Affordability (use of OER, transfer agreements, prior learning assessment, employer funded)
The Southern University System, including the SUBR Bookstore, collaborates with Follett Access, enabling
students to rent textbooks at reduced costs bllled directly to their tuition. The program also promotes the use
of OER materials. Moreover, the curriculum aligns with the Louisiana Transfer cusriculum, allowing students
to complete the program within an additional two years of study.

s Partnerships (with industry, community-based organizations, other institutions)
We will work to establish partnerships with the campus laboratory school, local high schools, and community
colleges for student recruitment. Additionally, collaborations with the New Orleans Video Access Center
(NOVAC), Sports Video Group {SVG), Louisiana Film Commission, Society of Motion Picture, and Television
Engineers, are underway. We will create a diverse advisory council of leading professionals and thought
leaders who will support the program's vision, assisting with activities aligned with current industry trends
nationally and globally, These partnerships will offer internship opportunities, insights on emerging trends,
fund raising and aid in program reviews,

» _Work-based learning (paid or experientlal internships, apprenticeships, etc.)

| All concentrations for the proposed program will include opportunities for an internship through advisement. [

s Other program attributes that contribute to closing the achievement gap with underserved populations

including low income, minofity, adult learner.

The program is situated in an environment that contributes and promotes closing the achievement gap with
underserved populations characterized by low income, minority, adult learners, and first-generation college
students.

4! bans













17. Using data from the US Department of Labor O*-Net and/or EMSi’s Program Overview Report identify at least
three technical skills and three Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities (KSAs) as identifled in O*-Net/EMSI assoclated
with the related occupations.

B|Page







Digital Sports Production

Sports Producer

Sports Director

Sports Videographer
Sports Editor

Sports Graphics Designer
Sports Animator

Sports Technical Director
Sports Camera Operator
Sports Replay Operator
Sports Audio Engineer
Sports Commentator
Sports Analyst

Sports Sacial Media Manager
Sports Marketing Specialist

Sports Content Creator

Sports Production Assistant
Sports Production Coordinator
Sports Streaming Technician

Sports Data Analyst

Technical Skilis:

. Video Editing: Proficiency in video editing software such

as Adobe Premiere Pro or Final Cut Pro to create
polished sports highlight reels, promotional videos, and
other content.

Live Production: Experience with live production
equipment and software for capturing and streaming
live sports events, including cameras, switchers, and
streaming platforms like OBS or Wirecast.

Graphic Design: Skills in graphic design software like
Adobe Photoshop or lllustrator to create visually
appealing graphics, overlays, and animations for sports
broadcasts and digital content.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities (KSAs}:

Sports Knowledge: Comprehensive understanding of
various sports rules, terminology, and trends to
effectively capture and present sports content tailored
to specific audiences.

. Time Management: Ability to prioritize tasks, meet

deadlines, and manage multiple projects simultaneously,
especially during fast-paced sports seasons or events,
Communication Skills: Strong verbal and written
communication skills to coltaborate effectively with
team members, coaches, athletes, and stakeholders, as
well as to convey information clearly to viewers through
commentary, social media, and other platforms.

T e...‘ B




Recording Arts

Audio Engineer

Sound Designer

Music Producer

Recording Engineer

Mixing Engineer

Mastering Engineer

Studio Technician

Foley Artist

Dialogue Editor

Sound Effects Editor

Music Composer

Voiceover Artist

Podcast Producer

Audio Restoration Speclalist

Live Sound Engineer

Broadcast Engineer

Sound Recordist

Audio Post-Production Supervisor
ADR (Automated Dialogue Replacement)
Engineer Field Recording Specialist

Technical Skills:

. Audio Recording and Mixing: Proficlency in operating

recording equipment and software (e.g., Pro Tools, Logic
Pro, Ableton Live) to capture and mix audio tracks,
including setting up microphones, adjusting levels, and
applying effects.

Sound Editing and Post-Production: Ability to edit and
manipulate audio recordings using software such as
Adobe Audition or Audacity, including tasks like noise
reduction, equalization, and audio restoration.

Studio Equipment Operation: Familiarity with studio
equipment such as mixing consoles, outboard gear, and
audio interfaces, as well as understanding signal flow
and troubleshooting technical issues.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilitles (KSAs):

Acoustics and Sound Theory: Understanding of acoustics
principles, sound wave propagation, and
psychoacoustics to optimize recording environments,
microphone placement, and audio processing
techniques.

Music Theory and Performance: Knowledge of music
theory, instrumentation, and performance techniques to
effectively collaborate with musicians, understand
musical genres, and provide musical direction during
recording sessions.

Communication and Collaboration: Strong interpersonal
skills to communicate effectively with clients, artists, and
fellow recording engineers, as well as the ability to
collaborate creatively and professionally within a team
environment,

11| Page



Digital Performance Fusion

Theatre Producer

Theatre Director

Set Designer

Costume Designer

Lighting

Designer Sound Designer

Stage Manager

Technical Director Animator (for special
effects)

Projection Designer

Puppeteer {for virtual or augmented
reality productions)

Production Coordinator

Technical Skills:

Proflciency in Digital Editing Software: Abillty to use
software such as Adobe Premiere Pro, Final Cut Pro, or
Avid Media Composer to edit and manipulate digital
audio and video content for theatrical productions.
Knowledge of Digital Projection Technology:
Understanding of projection mapping techniques,
software (e.g., Qlab, Isadora), and hardware (projectors,
screens) to create immersive visual experiences and
digital scenography.

. Virtual Production Techniques: Famillarity with virtual

production tools and technologies, including real-time
rendering engines (e.g., Unreat Engine, Unity}, motion
capture systems, and virtual set design software {(e.g.,
Stagecraft, Virtuoso}.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities {(KSAs):

Storytelling and Dramaturgy: Ability to analyze scripts,
develop compelling narratives, and adapt traditional
theatrica! storytelling techniques for digital platforms,
including understanding pacing, structure, and character
development.

Collaboration and Communication: Strong interpersonal
skills to collaborate effectively with directors, designers,
performers, and technicians in the digital theatre
production process, as well as the ability to
communicate ideas clearly 2nd concisely.

Adaptability and Problem-Soiving: Capacity to adapt to
evolving technologles and production methods in the
digital theatre landscape, as well as the ability to
troubleshoot technical issues and find creative solutions
in a fast-paced production environment.




Digital Visual Arts and Motion Graphics

Motion Graphics Designer
Visual Effects Artist

2D Animator

3D Animator

Graphic Designer

Digital Hlustrator
Multimedia Artist

Video Editor Compaositor
Storyboard Artist

Art Director (specializing in digital
media)

Technlcal Skills:

Proficiency in Design Software: Mastery of industry-
standard software like Adobe After Effects, Adobe
ilustrator, and Cinema 4D for creating visually appealing
graphics and animations.

Animation Techniques: Expertise in animation principles
such as timing, spacing, and squash and stretch,
enabling the creatlon of fiuid and dynamic motion
graphics.

Compositing and Visual Effects: Ability to integrate
various visual elements seamlessly using compositing
software like Adobe After Effects, incorporating
techniques such as chroma keying, rotoscoping, and
matte painting.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilitles (KSAs):

Design Fundamentals: Understanding of design
principles such as color theory, typography, and
composition to create visually compelling and
aesthetically pleasing graphics and animations,
Conceptual Thinking: Capacity to transiate abstract
concepts and Ideas into engaging visual narratives,
ensuring coherence and relevance to the intended
message or audience.

Attentlon to Detail: Keen eye for detail and precision in
execution, essential for achieving high-quality output in
digital visual arts and motion graphics, from intricate
animations to polished final renders.







proficlency in cinematography, video editing,
and sound design, especially in cinema
productions. Additionally, the ability to
conceptualize compelling narratives,
understand visual language, and manage
projects effectively equips students with
essential theoretical and practical skills for
global competitiveness in the digital media
industry.

Digital Sports Production

Students are equipped for the globai job
market with proficiency in video editing, live
production, and graphic design using industry-
standard software. This technical expertise is
highly valued, especially in sports media and
broadcasting. Additionally, comprehensive
sports knowledge enables tailored content
creation, while strong time management and
communication skills enhance competitiveness
by ensuring timely project delivery and
effective collaboration.

Recording Arts

To compete effectively in the global job market,
students need both theoretical and practical
skill sets, Proficiency in audio recording, mixing,
sound editing, and studio equipment operation,
inciuding industry-standard software lke Pro
Tools and Adobe Audition, demonstrates
practical abilities highly sought after in the
digitai media industry. Moreover,
understanding acoustics and sound theory
ensures the creation of high-quality digital
media content by optimizing recording
environments and processing techniques.
Additionatly, strong communication and
collaboration skilis are vital for successful
interaction with clients, artists, and team
members, essential for thriving in a global job
market.

Digital Performance Fuslon

Proflciency in digitai editing, digital projection
technology, and virtual production techniques
equips students with practical expertise highly
sought after in the global job market, especially
in digital theatre, Storyteliing and acting skills
enable compelling narrative development for

15|pag .




digital platforms, enhancing competitiveness in
the digital theatre industry worldwide. Strong
collaboration and communication skills further
enhance job market competitiveness by
facilitating effective teamwork and idea
exchange.

Digttal Visual Arts and Motlon Graphics

To compete effectively in the global job market,
students need both theoretical and practical
skill sets. Proficiency in design software,
animation techniques, and compositing and
visual effects provides practical expertise highly
valued in the digital visual arts and motion
graphics industries, Additionally, understanding
design fundamentals, conceptual thinking, and
attention to detail enhance students'
theoretica! knowledge and practical skills,
preparing them to compete effectively in
varlous roles related to digital media content
creation,

Digital Screen Arts Production

Mastery of cinematography, video editing, and
sound deslgn enables students to create
dynamic digital media content for various
distribution outlets like film, television, web
series, and interactive media. Understanding
storytelling principles, visual communication,
and strong project management skills further
enhance their abllity to craft compelling
narratives and execute creative projects
effectively across different platforms.

Digital Sports Production

With a proficiency in video editing, llve
production, and graphic design. Technical skilis
enable the creation of content like sports
highlight reels, promotional videos, live
streams, and social media posts, Additionally,
sports knowledge enhances content
engagement, while strong communication skills
facilitate effective information conveyance
through commentary and social media,
contributing to innovative digital media
production.

Recarding Arts

Students' mastery of audio recording software,
sound editing techniques, and studio
equipmant operation enables them to craft
top-tier digital media content for diverse
distribution platforms. Additionally, their
knowledge of music theory enhances creativity,

Produce creative, dynamic, and innovatlve digital media
content for various distribution outiets,

16|Page




fosters effective collaboration with musicians,
and enables dynamic content creation through
strong communication skills.

Dlgital Performance Fuslon

Mastery of digital editing software, digital
projection technology, and virtual praduction
techniques enables students to create creative
and dynamic digital media content, including
digital theatre productions, Storytelling and
performance skills allow students to adapt
theatrical techniques for digita! platforms,
fostering creativity and innovation, Strong
collaboration and communication skills
facilitate the production of impactful digital
media content across various outlets.

Digital Visual Arts and Graphic Deslgn

Mastery of technical skills in design software,
animation techniques, and visual effects
empowers students to create innovative digital
media content. Through deep understanding
and proficiency In these tools, students craft
visually stunning graphics and animations,
ensuring captivating content for diverse
distribution outlets. Acquiring knowledge in
design fundamentals and conceptual thinking
further enhances their creative potential,
guaranteeing high-quality output across various
platforms. This fusion of technical expertise and
creative prowess positions students as leaders
in the dynamic landscape of digital media
content creation.

Digital Screen Production Arts

Proficiency in cinematography, video editing,
and sound design establishes a solid
groundwork for students to pursue graduate-
level studies in digital media or related fields.
Additionally, the ability to develop compelling
narratives, understand visual communication
principles, and manage projects effectively
equips students for scholarly research and
academic growth at the graduate level.

Digital Sports Praductlon

Mastering video editing, live production, and
graphic deslgn establishes & strong foundation
for students to pursue advanced studiesin
digital media or related fields at the graduate
level. Additionally, proficiency in sports
knowledge, time management, and
communication skills prepares students for
scholarly research and continued academic

Pursue graduate-leve! opportunities to continue enhancing my
academic skiliset.

17|page




growth, enhancing thelr academic skillset for
future opportunities at the graduate level.

Recording Arts

Proficiency in industry-standard software,
equipment, and audio production techniques
lays a solid groundwork for advanced studies in
digital media or related fields. Understanding
acoustics, coupled with effective
communication and collaboration skills,
prepares students for scholarly research at the
graduate level,

Digftal Performance Fuslon

Proficiency in digitat editing software, digital
projection technology, and virtual preduction
techniques lays a solid foundation for students
to pursue advanced studies in digital media or
related fields at the graduate level.
Additionally, adaptabiiity and problem-solving
skiils prepare students for scholarly research
and continued academic growth in graduate-
level programs, enhancing their academic
skillset for future opportunities in the digital
theatre landscape.

Digital Visual Arts and Graphic Deslgn
Proficiency in design software, animation
techniques, and visual effects establishes a
strong groundwork for students to pursue
advanced studies in digital media or related
fields at the graduate level. Additionally,
conceptual thinking and attention to detail
foster scholarly research and ongoing academic
development, enriching students' skillset for
future opportunities within the digital media
industry.

Dightal Screen Arts Preduction

Engaging in team-based work and
organizing collaboration among people of
different disciplines is essential for
leveraging technical skills and KSAs
effectively in digital screen productions,
ensuring coherent storytelling, visual
coherence, and overall project success.

Digitai Sports Productlon

Engaging in team-based work and organizing
coflaboration among individuals of different
disciplines is crucial for leveraging these
technical skitls and KSAs effectively in sports

Engage in team-based work and organize collaboration among
people of different disciplines.

madla production. Collaboration among video

‘ 13 ' P a g e :




editors, live productlon techniclans, graphic
designers, sports knowledge experts, and
communication specialists ensures the
seamless execution of sports content creation
and delivery, enhancing viewer engagement
and satisfaction. By working coliaboratively,
individuals can capltalize on their respective
expertise to produce high-quality sports media
content that resonates with diverse audiences.

Recording Arts

The student learing outcome of engaging In
team-based work and organizing collaboration
among individuals of different disciplinesis
crucial. Collaboration among audio engineers,
musicians, cllents, and fellow team members
ensures the seamless execution of audio
projects. Effective communication and
coliaboration skills are essential for working
with clients, artists, and fellow engineers, as
well as providing musical directicn during
recording sessions,

Moreover, understanding acoustics principles
and sound theory aids in optimizing recording
environments and microphone placement,
while knowledge of music theory and
performance facllitates effective collaboration
with musicians and understanding musical
genres. By working collaboratively, Individuals
can leverage their diverse skills and expertise to
produce high-quality audio recordings and
meet the needs of clients and artistic
collaberators effectively.

Digital Parformance Fusion

These technical skills are complemented by the
knowledge, skiils, and abilities (KSAs) required
for effective engagement in team-hased work
and collaboration among individuals of
different disciplines. This involves the ahility to
analyze scripts, develop compeliing narratives,
and adapt traditional theatrical storytelling
techniques for digital platforms. Strong
interpersonal skllls are essential for
collaborating effectively with directors,
designers, performers, and technicians, while
clear communication ensures the exchange of
ideas, Additionally, adaptabiity to evolving
technologies and problem-solving abilitles in a
fast-paced production envircnment are crucial
for successful collaboration and innovaticn in
digital theatre production,

- 191_ pag—e




Digital Visual Arts and Graphic Design

These technical skills align closely with the
knowledge, skills, and abilities {KSAs)
required for effective engagement in team-
based work and collaboration among
individuals of different disciplines.
Understanding design principles such as
color theory and typography ensures
visually compelling output, while
conceptual thinking enables the translation
of abstract concepts into engaging visual
narratives. Attention to detail is essential for
achieving high-quality output in digital
visual arts, contributing to polished final
renders that resonate with audiences
effectively.













35. Discuss the marketing and recruitment plan for the program. Include how the program will be marketed to adult

learmers and underrepresented and special populations of students.
Our marketing and recruitment plan for the new Digital Media Arts degree program is multifaceted and
tailored to effectively engage with our target audience.
Firstly, we will host an annual open house event aimed at showcasing the program's unigue features,
including the major and concentration options available. This event will serve as a platform to explain the
curriculum in detail and provide insights Into the career paths within the digital media arts field, Leveraging
the support of our alumni chapter, we will harness their experlences and success stories to inspire and attract
prospective students.
To reach a diverse pool of applicants, we will implement targeted outreach initiatives. This will include
engaging with high schools, community colleges, and local organizations with significant African American
student populations. Through these efforts, we aim to underscore the relevance and benefits of our program
for aspiring creatives and media professionals from underrepresented backgrounds.
In addition to traditional outreach methods, we will leverage digital campaigns on platforms such as
Instagram, Twitter, and TikTok to captivate the attention of prospective students. By creating compelling
visual content, we can effectively communicate the value proposition of our program and engage with our
audience on platforms they frequent.
Furthermore, we will prioritize community engagement by hosting virtual Information sessions, webinars,
and workshops tailored to the interests of our target demographics. Collaborations with local media outlets
and cultural organizations will amplify our message and highlight the program's contributions to the
community.
Building strategic partnerships with industry leaders, media companies, and creative agencies will enrich our
students' educational experience by providing them with real-world opportunities and networking
connections. Emphasizing our program’s industry relevance will attract ambitious individuals looking to gain a
competitive edge in the digital media landscape.
To ensure accessibility and affordability, we will work to develop scholarships and grants and actively
promote avallable scholarships, grants, and financial aid options tailored to digital media arts students. By
highlighting these resources, we aim to make our program more accessible to students from diverse
socioeconomic backgrounds,
Lastly, in alignment with our commitment to diversity and inclusion, we will collaborate with Louistana
Economic Development (LED) and the Louisiana Workforce Commission (LWC) to raise awareness of our
program among adult learners in the digital media industry. As an HBCU and Minority Serving Institute, we
will prioritize targeting underrepresented populations to fulfill our mission of serving diverse communities.

RESOURCES
Fi. Finance
36. Attach the completed Regents budget template.

37. How has student affordability been considered in the design of the program? Are there any additional financial
costs that students must take on as part of this program? (e.g., special fees, software licenses, equipment,
travel, etc.) If so, what strategies have you adopted to offset the cost burden?
Through the advisory council that will be created, we will raise funds. The program will work hard to provide
scholarships, write grant proposals, and find endowments to attract students. We wil prioritize using Open
Education Resources (OER) whenever feasible.

24lPage



38, How will the Institution cover Increased indirect costs assoclated with the proposed program? Consider costs
such as student advising, student support services, tutoring, career services, additional library materials, and
replacing or upgrading technology or other infrastructure.
Federal Title !l funding has been approved to address the anticipated increase In Indirect costs for Years 1
through 5. We anticipate that the program will achieve self-sustainability within the five-year timeframe.

39, if existing funds are beling reallocated, describe the impact on existing programs and the plan to mitigate these
impacts.
N/A

F2. instruction and Student Support
40. Faculty
a. Describe the needs for new/additional facuity for the program including program leadership? Identify any
anticipated challenges in hiring adequate facuity, for the program.
The number of faculty members needed for the new digital media arts degree program will vary depending
on several factors, including:
The size of the student body.
The amount of curriculum overlaps between concentrations.
The availability of adjunct professors.
The faculty's teaching load.
We intend to hire 5 new faculty members.
Adjunct instructors will be needed to supplement existing full-time and part-time instructors.
No challenges in hiring adjunct Instructors are anticipated.

b. How will current faculty be re-directed to this program from existing programs?
The plan Is to have one faculty member already on staff for each concentration. We will gradually add more
as the program grows. it will be important to make use of adjunct professors.

¢. Attach your SACSCOC Faculty Roster for the proposed program. (Please indicate anticipated positions that
will need to be filled in the future)

41. Describe additional staff needed for this program {e.g. advising, professional development, program
administration, academic coaching, etc.).

| No additional staff needs are anticipated currentiy.

F3. Facilities
42. Where will the program be offered? Mark all that apply.
[ x] Main Campus [ 1Satellite campus (specify campus here) [ ] Other (specify here} [ ]1100% Online

25|Page












SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED ADDITIONAL COSTS/INCOME FOR PROPOSED PROGRAM

institution: Southern University and A&M College

Degree Program, Unit: Digital Media Arts

Date: _10/01/2023

FTE = Full Tims Equivalent (use the institution's standard definition and provide that definition).

INDICATE ACADEMIC YEAR: FIRSY L M
AMOUNT | FTE. | “Amount | FTE | AMOUNT ] FTE | AMOUNT | FTE .
Faculty $187.843 |2 |$187.843 |2 {93922 |1 |- |
Graduate Assistants $20,000 “ls20,000 }1 |$20000 |1 $20,000 | 1
Support Personnel |$324628 |4 |$330,153.|4 - |$330,153 |4 | $330,153 4
Feliowships and Scholarships | - R R R EEE B
7 suB-TOTAL| $532,471 |7 |$537,8096 |7 | $444,075 |6 - {$350,153

"AMOUNT AMOUNT \
Faclliies $100,000 $50,000 © |'$80,000 -
Equipment $234,000 | $48,000 $48,000 - |$48,000
Travel $18,000 $9,000 | $9,000 1$9.000°
Supplies $5,000 $5,000 : $5,000 $5,000
Other (Software/Professional o B R R B IR R
Development, Part-Time $60,000 $126,000. $126,000 $126,000 .
Faculty, Fagulty Liaisons) ' o
SUB-TOTAL | $417,000 $238,000 | $268,000 ~  |$188,000
TOTAL EXPENSES | $949,471 Is775996 .~ |$712,075 | $538,153

Revenue Anticipated From: “AMOUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT - AMOUNT
*State Appropriations $214,132 $387,998 | $469,969.50 © | $538,153
*Federal Grants/Contracts | $735,339 |s3s7,.998 | s242.10550  [$0
*State Grants/Contracts o 1 o
*Private Grants/Contracts $25,000 - $25,000 $25,000 -

EecodEmolment

Tuition '$107.320 Ts160.980 | $186.760

Fees $10.6_,44_0 | $159,660 $1:8_.6.'2.70

*Qther {specify) o EE R
TOTAL REVENUES | $949,471 $1,014,756 $1.057,715 -

* Describefexplain expected sources of funds in proposal text.

LA BoR — AA 2.04 — Mar 2023

$936,183




Faculty Roster Form
Qualifications of Full-Time and Part-Time Faculty

Name of Institution: Southern University and A&M College
Name of Primsry Department, Academic Program, or Discipline: Digital Media Arts

Academle Term(s) Included Date Form Completed: 03/09/2024

Abbreviatlons: F, P: Foll-tlme or Part-timej D, UN, UT, G: Developmental, Undergraduate Nontransferable, Undergraduate Transferable, Graduate; Dual: High

School Doal Enrellment Course
Form Updewed: Aprif 2018




1 2 3 4
NAME (F, F) COURSES TAUGHT ACADEMIC DEGREES & OTHER QUALIFICATIONS &
In¢luding Term, Covrse Number & COURSEWORK COMMENTS
Title, Credit Hoars (D, UN, UT, G) Refevant to Courses Taught, Related to Courses Taught
Note—f [I;::ml chacg Including Institution & Major
olc - 1or sul -] €
prospeciuses/applications, list the courses List specific %;-:::::; coursework,
fo be taughl, not historical teaching
assipgnments

2016 - JUST THE FACTS: A boot
camp on accountability jounaliam.
Presented by the
Manship School of Mass
Communication at Louisians State
University and the
American Press Institute. Saturday,
March 12, 2016.
2012 — Completed the World
Association of Newspaper and News

DMAD 105 Introduction to Digital Publishers (WAN

Medie IFRA) Newsplex Summer Seminar in
Convergent Journalism, University of

goMAD 320 Web Design & PhD (Journalism), Southemn [llinois South. ,

" velopment P! . Carolina, Columbia, SC.
Mahmoud Braima University MA (Joumalism), Murray 2010 — Attended the Adohe

DMAD 440 Programming with ls{.';:; g;::;%s;z gs}i\q(,loumahsm), Dreamweaver CS4 Website

Python Development Training Course in
preparation to developing and

DMAD 450 Data Analytics teaching convergent journalism,

2010 - Attended the Adobe
Dreamweaver CS4: Advanced
Application Development
Training Course in preparation to
developing and teaching convergent
journalizm.

2009 -~ 2012 Completed several
online courses in Website
Develapment including CSS

and XHTML, HTML, PHP and
MySQL.

Abhreviations: F, P: Fulktime or Part-time; D, UN, UT, G: Developmental, Undergradunte Noatransfernble, Undergraduste Transferable, Graduate; Dual: High

Sehoo! Dual Enrollment Course

Form Updated: April 2018




Education), Scuthern University

1 2 3 4
NAME &, P) COURSES TAUGHT ACADEMIC DEGREES & OTHER QUALIFICATIONS &
Including Term, Coarse Number & COURSEWORK COMMENTS
Titte, Credit Hours (D, UN, UT, G) Relevant to Courses Taught, Related 1o Courses Taught
Noto—fo m;ﬂﬁ chon Including Institution & Major
€&~ f01 80| 3 gE g
prospectuses/applications, list the courses List specific igfﬂdi “l 4 :; coursework,
Io be taughi, not historical tenching
assignments
DMAR 215 Computer Music 1
(MIDI Sequencing)
DMAR 316 Recording Techniques 1 | g1y (eomposition), Louisiana State
. University MM (Composition and 20112015 IT and Netwark Admin,
Jonsthan Corey Knoll Mﬂhﬁgﬁgxﬂf ;| Mosic Theory), Bowiing Geen Siate | LSU Collego of Music & Dramati
n S0fWare) | () iversity BFA (Composition and | Arts
DMAR 420 Multimodia Production | ™Mueic Theory), Marshalt University
DMAR 414 Computer Music 3
{Signal Processing & Sound Design)
DMAD 105 Intraduction to Digital
Media
, . PhD (Communication Studies and
DMAD 211 Digital Storytelling Performance Studies), Louisiana
Bonny McDonald . .. State University MA (English Communication Stadies with a focus
DMAP 200 Introduction to Digitsl | | herature), Westem Kentucky in Performance Studies
Unlversity BA (Bnglish Literature),
DMAP 375 Acting for Digital Media | Mamhall University
DMAP 315 Digital Theater Ensemble
. . M.ED (Music Education), Southern
Harry Anderson DMAR 316 Recording Techniques 1 University BS (Music Performance), Aviq ProTools User and Operator
DMAR 317 Recording Techniques 2 Southern University BS (Music Certification

Abbreviations: F, P: Full-time or Part-time; D, UN, UT, G: Developments), Undergraduate Nontransferable, Undergraduate Transferable, Graduate; Dual: High

Schoot Dual Enrellment Course

Form Updated: April 2018




1 2 3 4
NAME (K, P) COURSES TAUGHT ACADEMIC DEGREES & OTHER QUALIFICATIONS &
Incloding Ferm, Coursie Number & COURSEWORK COMMENTS
Title, Credit Hours (B, UN, UT, G) Relevant to Courses Taught, Related fo Courses Taught
Noto— i almﬁ change Iecludicg Justitution & Major
- [or sul A (-]
prospectuscalapplications, fist the courses | Lt srecifle i'{:g;; caursework,
fo be faught, not historical teaching
assignments

Developed Southern University’s first
closed-circuit TV channel.
Developed Southern University’s first
Web based radio station.
* 2013 Academy of Television Arls
and Science Faculty Seminar Fellow
» 2017 Baton Rouge Area Association

DMAC 316 Digital Video Editing of Black Journalist Pioneering
Journalist Henoree

DMAS 210 Infroduction to Sports P * 2018 IRTS Faculty Seminar Fellow

Damell R Production MA (Mass Communication), + 2018 Nationat Assoclation of
oberson Southemn (.{mverslty BA N Television Program Executives

DMAS 320 Sports Editing & (Broadcasting), Southern University | oy 1pE) Faculty Fellowship

Postproduction recipient
+ 2010 Worked with ESPN to crew
and broadeast the first ntegrated
stadent broadcast &t an HBCU. This
resulted in Southern University being
the first HBCU to participate in that
program,

DMAD 105 Introduction to Digital

Media

DMAYV 220 Digital HNlustration MFA (Printmaking) Louisiana State

Carlio Salamons University
DMAYV 210 Digitel Imeging Tamarind Institrle of Lithography
BFA University of Hawaii at Manoa
DMAY 330 3D Modeling and
Sculpting

Abbreviatlons: F, P: Fulktime or Part-time; D, UN, UT, G: Developmental, Undergraduate Nontransferable, Undergradante Trausferable, Graduate; Dual: High

School Duoal Enroliment Coume

Form Updated: April 2018




1 2 3 4
NAME(F, P) COURSES TAUGHT ACADEMIC PEGREES & OTHER QUALIFICATIONS &
Including Term, Course Number & COURSEWORK COMMENTS
Title, Credit Hoars (D, UN, UT, G) Relevant to Courses Taught, Related to Courses Taught
[Dual] Including Institution & Major
Nate — for substantive change List specific graduste coursework,
prospeciuses/applications, list the courses i needed
1o be tanght, not historical teaching
assi
New Faculty Digital Screen Arls
New Faculty Recording Aris
New Feculty Visuel Aris end Motion Graphics
New Faculty Digital Performence Fusion
New Faculty Digital Sports Production

Abbreviatlens: F, P; Full-time or Pari-time; D, UN, UT, Gt Developmental, Updergraduate Nontransferable, Undergraduate Transferable, Greduate; Dual: High

Schoo] Dus) Enroliment Course

Form Updatad: April 2018













4. Has the program been designed to align with any Board of Regents or other statewide initiatives? Check all that
apply.
[ 1 MJ Foster Promise Program
[ ] Cyber-security Initiatives
[ 1 Louisiana Transfer Pathways
[ ]Other:

5. If this proposal is for a Master’s or Doctoral program, provide a list below (name, institution, email address, brief
summary of qualifications) for at least three external review candidates. Reviewers should be active or retired
full time faculty member from an accredited institution; have experience developing and/or administering a
program like the proposed program; and should not have direct affiliation with a Louisiana institution.

| N/A

B. The Master Plan and Institutional Role, Scope, and Mission
6. How does the program align with your institutional role, scope, and mission? If the program does not align,
provide a compelling rationale for the institution to offer the program.
The program aligns with the institution’s role, scope, and mission by preparing students to compete globally in
their fields of study and to achieve excellence in undergraduate education, research and public service. The
Mechatronics program, which is part of the Engineering Technology degree program, facilitates and promotes
learning environments conducive to the enhancement of technical competency skills, critical-thinking skills,
problem- solving abilities, and interpersonal skills for alt students in an effort to assure success with entry- level
competencies for the profession and the public.

7. How does the program align with your institution’s strategic plan and academic program portfolio?

The program aligns with SUSLA’s Strategic Plan Goals and Objective Strategies 1.1.2, 1.2.4, 1.3.2 and 1.5.4.
Through these strategies, the Mechatronics Engineering Technology program will build the foundational skills
of students, provide opportunities for dual-enroliment to high school students, promote distance learning
opportunities and facilitates the introduction of new course credit offerings.

2|Page



8. How does the program align with the priorities outlined in the Board of Regents Master Plan for Higher
Education? Provide brief descriptions for each. Additional details will be required later in the proposal.
e Accessibility (mode of delivery, alternate course scheduling)
| In-person, hybrid and online depending on the specific course in the program.
« Affordability (use of OER, transfer agreements, prior learning assessment, employer funded)
| OER materials will be utilized when available for courses.
e Partnerships (with industry, community-based organizations, other institutions)
The Engineering Technology program has a number of MOUs with institutions in Louisiana {i.e. Southern
University in baton Rouge, LA Tech, Grambling, Northwestern State Louisiana University and Jarvis Christian
University. SUSLA’s Department or Engineering & Technology is also a member of a consortium of institutions
around the nation for undergraduate research-collaborative undergraduate research experiences (CURN} (i.e.
Pasadena City College, Princeton, New Mexico State, UC Vista, and SUNY New York).
e Work-based learning (paid or experiential internships, apprenticeships, etc.)
Students in the Constructions Engineering Technology CTS program will have the opportunity to complete
internship/ co-op as part of the Engineering Technology A.A.S. degree program (i.e. AEP/ SWEPCO,
CenterPoint Energy, Welbilt, ExxonMobil, Chevron, Hall Builders}.
« Other program attributes that contribute to closing the achievement gap with underserved populations
including low income, minority, and adult learner,
SUSLA is a recognized HBCU providing services and resources to underserved populations. SUSLA’s
enroliment has been consistently 90% minorities since its inception. The Department of Engineering &
Technology maintains two hands-on labs and Is served by a Lab Tech that facilitates lab instruction and
remediation, if necessary.

3fPage




C. Need .

9. How does the program align with refevant local, regional, and/or state workforce strategies and future societal

educational needs?
The Certificate of Technical Studies in Construction Engineering Technology at SUSLA is essential to the
Southern University system and to our stakeholders. Most importantly, our students need technical
certificate programs that will prepare them for the job market in as little time as possible while providing the
necessary technical background that enables them to be proficient in their job duties. Currently, we do not
offer solutions for employers to recruit technical certificate holders in engineering or technology to fill much
needed employment openings. Companies have expressed difficulty in recruiting employees who hold
degrees in fields utilizing industry-leading technology and software in the engineering problem-solving
process.

10. Summarize faculty engagement with alumni, community representatives, employers, Regional Economic
Development Organizations (REDO) or other external stakeholders, and explain how those conversations shaped
the design and curriculum of this proposed degree.
The department engages with community, organizational and Industry stakeholders regularly through
stakeholder meetings, community events and open house activities designed to align program goals with
stakeholders needs. The Department of Engineering &Technology has an advisory board which consists of the
aforementioned parties and are involved in shaping the direction of program outcomes.

i 11. What is the program's service area (local, regional, state, national)? If outside of the institution’s traditional
service area, provide a rationale.
SUSLA’s Labor Market area is Region 7. The program has online options for specific courses as well as
conhections to other institutions in the state of Louisiana,

12. Provide evidence of demand for the program in this service area (e.g. prospective student interest survey data,
community needs, letters of support from community groups or employers).

4}Page













26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

What, if any, special preparation will students need for admission to the program? This may include pre-
requisite courses or degrees, program-specific selective admission criteria or eligibility, or work experience

| N/A

Identify the partners you are working with to create an educational and career pipeline for this program. Mark

all that apply.
[ 1 High school CTAE [X] Employers
[X]} High school STEM [X] Community organizations
[ | Career academies [X] Professional associations
[X] 2-year college [ ] Other Programs at your Institution
[X] 4-year college/university [ ] Other Partner

List specific partners for each category checked above.
Captain Shreve, Byrd, Green Oaks, Woodlawn, BTW, NSULA, Grambling, larvis Christian, LA Tech, SciPort, AEP/
SWEPCO, CenterPoint Energy, ExxonMobil, Hall Builders, Chevron, WelBilt, NAPTA, NSF ATE, ASEE, ETLI

Describe how the education pipeline for the program will function. Inciude any stackable or transferrable
credentialing that is involved.
Students are able to earn a dual-enroliment CTS in Engineering which Is stackable into the AAS of Engineering
Technology. In addition, a few of the courses that are part of the CTS in Constructions Technology are part of
the dual-enrollment CTS in Engineering. Therefore, students are able to earn {2} CTSs (one in Engineering and
one in Mechatronics) as well as {if they choose} earn an AAS in Engineering Technology.

Describe how the institution will support graduates in meeting career goals such as securing employment,
further education, and industry certification.
The Department of Engineering & Technology have an advisory board that consists of many industry partners
that promote internships and direct hire options for program completers. In addition, SUSLA has an outstanding
Career Services department that is connected to many area employers, specifically in STEM area. The
department also has a number or MOUs with institutions such as NSULA, Grambling, LA Tech, SUBR, Jarvis
Christian University.

Describe how the success of program graduates will be tracked and assessed? Success may include employment,
enrollment in another degree program, or certification/licensure passage.
Program completer success can be determined by either employment or continued educational pursuit at
another institution {member/ non-member).

Students

31.

32.

Describe the institution’s process for determining prospective and current student interest in the program. This

may include enrollment in existing courses, minars, or concentrations, student surveys, admissions inquirles.
SUSLA holds a Jaguar Preview Day, a Trio Prospect Day as well as other high schoo! recruitment events every
semester. Student interest forms are collected along with potential student enrollment data. The Department
of Engineering & Technology’s website has a student interest form that forwards potential engineering &
technology student data to the Office of Recruitment as well as the Department Head.

Provide current institutional and department/college overall retention and graduation rates.
As of the 2020-2021 academic year, the University has a total of 2745 students enrolled and 240 program
completers. The Department of Engineering & Technology is a newly established department which has been
in existence since 2021, The Engineering Technalogy AAS degree program is a newly established program with
its maiden cohort beginning Spring 2022,

8|Page















4. Has the program been designed to align with any Board of Regents or other statewide initiatives? Check alfl that
apply.
[ ] MI Foster Promise Program
[ ] Cyber-security Initiatives
[ Louisiana Transfer Pathways
{ 1 Other:

5. If this proposal is for a Master’s or Doctoral program, provide a list below {(name, institution, email address, brief
summary of qualifications) for at least three external review candidates. Reviewers should be active or retired
full time faculty member from an accredited institution; have experience developing and/or administering a
program like the proposed program; and should not have direct affiliation with a Louisiana institution.

| N/A

B. The Master Plan and Institutional Role, Scope, and Mission
6. How does the program align with your institutional role, scope, and mission? If the program does not align,
provide a compelling rationale for the institution to offer the program.
The program aligns with the institution’s role, scope, and mission by preparing students to compete globally in
their fields of study and to achieve excellence in undergraduate education, research and public service. The
Drone Engineering Technology program, which is part of the Engineering Technology degree program,
facilitates and promotes learning environments conducive to the enhancement of technical competency skills,
critical-thinking skills, problem- solving abilities, and interpersonal skills for all students in an effort to assure
success with entry- level competencies for the profession and the public.

7. How does the program align with your institution’s strategic plan and academic program portfolio?

The program aligns with SUSLA’s Strategic Plan Goals and Objective Strategies 1.1.2, 1.2.4, 1.3.2 and 1.5.4.
Through these strategies, the Mechatronics Engineering Technology program will build the foundational skills
of students, provide opportunities for dual-enrollment to high school students, promote distance learning
opportunities and facilitates the introduction of new course credit offerings.

2fPage




8. How does the program align with the priorities outlined in the Board of Regents Master Pian for Higher
Education? Provide brief descriptions for each. Additional details will be required later in the proposal.
» Accessibility (mode of delivery, alternate course scheduling}
| in-person, hybrid and online depending on the specific course in the program.
s Affordability (use of OER, transfer agreements, prior learning assessment, employer funded)
l OER materials will be utilized when available for courses.
¢ Partnerships {with industry, community-based organizations, other institutions)
The Engineering Technology program has a number of MOUs with institutions in Louisiana {i.e. Southern
University in baton Rouge, LA Tech, Grambling, Northwestern State Louisiana University and Jarvis Christian
University. SUSLA’s Department or Engineering & Technology is also a member of a consortium of institutions
around the nation for undergraduate research-collaborative undergraduate research experiences (CURN) (i.e.
Pasadena City College, Princeton, New Mexico State, UC Vista, and SUNY New York).
e Work-based learning (paid or experiential internships, apprenticeships, etc.)
Students in the Mechatronics CTS will have the opportunity to complete internship/ co-op as part of the
Engineering Technology A.A.S. degree program (i.e. AEP/ SWEPCO, CenterPoint Energy, Welbilt, ExxonMobil,
Chevron).
e Other program attributes that contribute to closing the achievement gap with underserved populations
including low income, minority, and adult fearner.
SUSLA is a recognized HBCU providing services and resources to underserved populations. SUSLA's
enrollment has been consistently 90% minorities since its inception. The Department of Engineering &
Technology maintains two hands-on labs and is served by a Lab Tech that facilitates lab instruction and
remediation, if necessary. :

3|Page




C. Need

9. How does the program align with relevant local, regional, and/or state workforce strategies and future societal

educational needs?
The Certificate of Technical Studies in Drone Engineering Technology at SUSLA is essential to the Southern
University system and to our stakeholders. Most importantly, our students need technical certificate
programs that will prepare them for the job market in as little time as possible while providing the necessary
technical background that enables them to be proficient in their job duties. Currently, we do not offer
solutions for employers to recruit technical certificate holders in engineering or technology to fill much
needed employment openings. Companies have expressed difficulty in recruiting employees who hold
degrees in fields utilizing industry-leading technology and software in the engineering prohlem-solving
process,

10. Summarize faculty engagement with alumni, community representatives, employers, Regional Economic
Development Organizations (REDO) or other external stakeholders, and explain how those conversations shaped
the design and curriculum of this proposed degree.
The department engages with community, organizational and industry stakeholders regularly through
stakeholder meetings, community events and open house activities designed to align program goals with
stakeholders needs. The Department of Engineering &Technology has an advisory hoard which consists of the
aforementioned parties and are involved in shaping the direction of program outcomes.

11. What is the program's service area {local, regional, state, nationai)? If outside of the institution's traditional
service area, provide a rationale.

SUSLA’s Labor Market area is Region 7. The program has online options for specific courses as well as
; connections to other institutions in the state of Louisiana.

12. Provide evidence of demand for the program in this service area (e.g. prospective student interest survey data,
community needs, letters of support from community groups or employers).
The Department of Engineering & Technology formulated the STEM Summer Enrichment Academy {SSEA)
which provides an 8-week summer program for students grades gth-12™ Summer 2021 was the maiden
cohort of students which consisted of more than 30 students with interest in program topics that included
robotics, drones, renewable energy and aerospace technology.

4|Page













27. Identify the partners you are working with to create an educational and career pipeline for this program. Mark
all that apply.

[ 1High school CTAE {X} Employers

[X] High school STEM [X} Community organizations

[ ] Career academies [X1 Professional associations

[X] 2-year college [ ] Other Programs at your Institution
[X] 4-year college/university [ } Other Partner

List specific partners for each category checked above.
Captain Shreve, Byrd, Green Oaks, Woodlawn, BTW, NSULA, Grambling, Jarvis Christian, LA Tech, SciPort, AEP/
SWEPCO, CenterPoint Energy, ExxonMobil, Chevron, WelBilt, NAPTA, NSF ATE, ASEE, ETLI.

28. Describe how the education pipeline for the program will function. Include any stackabie or transferrable
credentialing that is involved.
Students are able to earn a dual-enrollment CTS in Engineering which is stackable into the AAS of Engineering
Technology. In addition, many of the courses that are part of the CTS in Drone Engineering Technology are part
of the dual-enrollment CTS in Engineering. Therefore, students are able to earn (2) CTSs (one in Engineering
and one in Drone Engineering Technology) as well as (if they choose) earn an AAS in Engineering Technology.
Furthermore, students will be able to receive the FAA TRUST certification as well as FAA Part 107 license,

29. Describe how the institution will support graduates in meeting career goals such as securing employment,
further education, and industry certification.
The Department of Engineering & Technology have an advisory board that consists of many industry partners
that promote internships and direct hire options for program completers. In addition, SUSLA has an outstanding
Career Services department that are connected to many area employers, specifically in STEM area. The
department also has a number or MOUs with institutions such as NSULA, Grambling, LA Tech, SUBR, Jarvis
Christian University.

30. Describe how the success of program graduates will be tracked and assessed? Success may include employment,
enrollment in another degree program, or certification/licensure passage.
Program completer success can be determined by either employment or continued educational pursuit at
another institution {(member/ non-member).

Students

31. Describe the institution’s process for determining prospective and current student interest in the program. This

may include enrollment in existing courses, minars, or concentrations, student surveys, admissions inquiries.
SUSLA holds a Jaguar Preview Day, a Trio Prospect Day as well as other high school recruitment events every
semester. Student interest forms are collected along with potential student enrollment data. The Department
of Engineering & Technology's website has a student interest form that forwards potential engineering &
technology student data to the Office of Recruitment as well as the Department Head.

32. Provide current institutional and department/college overall retention and graduation rates.

As of the 2020-2021 academic year, the University has a total of 2745 students enrolled and 240 program
completers, The Department of Engineering & Technology is a newly established department which has been
in existence since 2021. The Engineering Technology AAS degree program is a newly established program with
its maiden cohort beginning Spring 2022.

Bl|Page
















4. Has the program been designed to align with any Board of Regents or other statewide initiatives? Check all that
apply.
[ 1 MJ Foster Promise Program
[ ] Cyber-security Initiatives
[X] Louisiana Transfer Pathways
[ ]Other:

5. If this proposal is for a Master's or Doctoral program, provide a fist below (name, institution, email address, brief
summary of qualifications) for at least three external review candidates. Reviewers should be active or retired
fult time faculty member from an accredited institution; have experience developing and/or administering a
program like the proposed program; and should not have direct affiliation with a Louisiana institution.

| N/A

B. The Master Plan and Institutional Role, Scope, and Mission
6. How does the program align with your institutional role, scope, and mission? If the program does not align,
provide a compelling rationale for the institution to offer the program.
The program aligns with the institution’s role, scope, and mission by preparing students to compete globally in
their fields of study and to achieve excellence in undergraduate education, research, and public service. The
AS Engineering program, which is modification of the existing Pre-Engineering degree program, facilitates and
promotes learning environments conducive to the enhancement of technical competency skills, critical-
thinking skills, problem- solving abilities, and interpersonal skills for all students in an effort to assure success
with entry- level competencies for the profession and the public.

7. How does the program align with your institution’s strategic plan and academic program portfolio?

The program aligns with SUSLA’s Strategic Plan Goals and Objective Strategies 1.1.2, 1.2.4, 1.3.2 and 1.5.4.
Through these strategies, the AS Engineering program will build the foundational skills of students, provide
opportunities for dual-enrollment to high school students, promote distance learning opportunities and
facilitates the introduction of new course credit offerings.

2}Page




8. How does the program align with the priorities outlined in the Board of Regents Master Plan for Higher
Education? Provide brief descriptions for each. Additional details will be required later in the proposal.
s Accessibility (mode of delivery, alternate course scheduling)
[ In-person, hybrid and online depending on the specific course in the program
s Affordability (use of OER, transfer agreements, prior learning assessment, employer funded)
| OER materials will be utilized when available for courses.
s Partnerships (with industry, community-based organizations, other institutions)
The Department of Engineering & Technology has a number of MOUs with institutions in Louisiana (i.e.
Southern University in Baton Rouge, LA Tech, Grambling, Northwestern State Louisiana University and Jarvis
Christian University. SUSLA’s Department or Engineering & Technology is also a member of a consortium of
institutions around the nation for undergraduate research-collaborative undergraduate research experiences
{CURN) (i.e. Pasadena City College, Princeton, New Mexico State, UC Vista, and SUNY New York).
s Work-based learning {paid or experiential internships, apprenticeships, etc.)
Students in the AS Engineering program will have the opportunity to complete internship/ co-op as part of the
Engineering Technology A.A.S. degree program (i.e. AEP/ SWEPCO, CenterPoint Energy, Woelbilt, ExxonMobil,
Chevron).
e Other program attributes that contribute to closing the achievement gap with underserved populations
including low income, minority, and adult learner.
SUSLA is a recognized HBCU providing services and resources to underserved populations. SUSLA’s enrollment
has been consistently 90% minorities since its inception. The Department of Engineering & Technology
maintains two hands-on fabs and is served by a Lab Tech that facilitates lab instruction and remediation, if
necessary.

3|Page




C. Need

9, How does the program align with relevant local, regional, and/or state workforce strategies and future societal
educational needs?
The Associate of Science in Engineering at SUSLA is essential to the Southern University system and to our
stakeholders. Most importantly, our students need degree programs that will prepare them for the job market
or seamless 2+2-degree options into a four-year baccalaureate degree. Currently, we do not offer pathways
for students to become engineers, however, this program would provide a 2+2-degree option enabling up to
75% of course hours taken to be directly to a four-year baccalaureate electrical engineering program or 100%
of course hours taken to be directly to a four-year baccalaureate engineering program. This program satisfies
both initiatives as well as increases the engineering presence in Northwest Louisiana. This program will provide
competent graduates opportunities at employment with companies such as AEP/ SWEPCO, CenterPoint,
Entergy, Shasta QA, General Dynamics, Benteler Steel, WelBilt and Dr. Reddy’s. According to Louisiana Lahor
Market projections, electrical or computer engineers’ (hardware) median salaries range from 599,090 to
$89,800, respectively; with computer engineers’ (software} median salary estimates at 581,660, This is an
increase from the 2017 to 2018 wage estimates of more than 19% in annual salary for electrical engineering, a
10% annual increase for computer engineering (hardware} and an 8% increase in annual salary for computer
engineering (software).

10. Summarize faculty engagement with alumni, community representatives, employers, Regional Economic
Development Organizations (REDO) or other external stakeholders, and explain how those conversations shaped
the design and curriculum of this proposed degree.
The department engages with community, organizational and industry stakeholders regularly through
stakeholder meetings, community events and open house activities designed to align program goals with
stakeholders needs. The Department of Engineering &Technology has an advisory board which consists of the
aforementioned parties and are involved in shaping the direction of program outcomes.

11. What is the program's service area (local, regional, state, national)? If outside of the institution’s traditional
service area, provide a rationale,
SUSLA’s Labor Market area is Region 7. The program has online options for specific courses as well as
connections to other institutions in the state of Louisiana.

12. Provide evidence of demand for the program in this service area (e.g. prospective student interest survey data,

community needs, letters of support from community groups or employers).
The Department of Engineering & Technology formulated the STEM Summer Enrichment Academy (S5EA)
which provides an 8-week summer program for students grades gth-12th Summer 2021 was the maiden cohort
of students which consisted of more than 30 students with interest in program topics that included robotics,
drones, renewable energy, and aerospace technology. The Academy provides a gateway for students
interested in engineering to become involved in the Department and become aware of the educational and
employment opportunities available to them.

4|Page













27. Identify the partners you are working with to create an educational and career pipeline for this program. Mark

all that apply.
{ ] High school CTAE [X] Employers
{X] High schoo! STEM [X] Community organizations
[ ] Career academies [X] Professional associations
[X} 2-year college [ ]1Other Programs at your Institution
[X] 4-year college/university [ ] Other Partner

List specific partners for each category checked above.
Captain Shreve, Byrd, Green Oaks, Woodlawn, BTW, NSULA, Grambling, Jarvis Christian, LA Tech, SciPort, AEP/
SWEPCQ, CenterPoint Energy, ExxonMobil, Chevron, WelBilt, NAPTA, NSF ATE, ASEE, ETLI

28. Describe how the education pipeline for the program will function. Include any stackable or transferrable
credentialing that is involved.
Students are able to earn a dual-enrollment CTS in Engineering which is stackable into the AS of Engineering.
In addition, most of the required engineering courses that are part of the CTS in Engineering are part of the
dual-enrollment CTS in Engineering. Therefore, students are able to earn a CTS in Engineering and earn an AS
in Engineering as well.

29. Describe how the institution will support graduates in meeting career goals such as securing employment,
further education, and industry certification.
The Department of Engineering & Technology have an advisory board that consists of many industry partners
that promote internships and direct hire options for program completers. In addition, SUSLA has an outstanding
Career Services department that are connected to many area employers, specifically in STEM area. The
department also has a number or MOUs with institutions such as NSULA, Grambling, LA Tech, SUBR, Jarvis
Christian University.

30. Describe how the success of program graduates will be tracked and assessed? Success may include employment,
enrollment in another degree program, or certification/licensure passage.
Program completer success can be determined by either employment or continued educational pursuit at
another institution (member/ non-member}.

Students

31. Describe the institution’s process for determining prospective and current student interest in the program. This
may include enrollment in existing courses, minors, or concentrations, student surveys, admissions inguiries.
SUSLA holds a Jaguar Preview Day, a Trio Prospect Day as well as other high school recruitment events every
semester. Student interest forms are collected along with potential student enrollment data. The Department
of Engineering & Technology’s website has a student interest form that forwards potential engineering &
technology student data to the Office of Recruitment as well as the Department Head.

32. Provide current institutional and department/college overall retention and graduation rates.

As of the 2020-2021 academic year, the University has a total of 2745 students enrolled and 240 program
completers. The Department of Engineering & Technology is a newly established department which has been
in existence since 2021. The Engineering AS degree program is an upgraded version of SUSLA’s current Pre-
Engineering AGS degree program that has consistently maintained 5-7 students each year. The modification
will now allow students to complete a holistic program that allows full transfer of all credits into an accredited
BS in Electrical, Civil or Mechanical Engineering.

BiPage
















4. Has the program been designed to align with any Board of Regents or other statewide initiatives? Check all that
apply.
[ 1 MJ Foster Promise Program
[ 1Cyber-security Initiatives
[X] Louisiana Transfer Pathways
[ ]10ther:

5. If this proposal is for a Master’s or Doctoral program, provide a list below (name, institution, email address, brief
summary of qualifications) for at least three external review candidates. Reviewers should be active or retired
full time faculty member from an accredited institution; have experience developing and/or administering a
program like the proposed program; and should not have direct affiliation with a Louisiana institution.
| N/A

B. The Master Plan and Institutional Role, Scope, and Mission
6. How does the program align with your Institutional role, scope, and mission? If the program does not align,
provide a compelling rationale for the institution to offer the program.
The program aligns with the institution’s role, scope, and mission by preparing students to compete globally in
their fields of study and to achieve excellence in undergraduate education, research and public service. The
Mechatronics program, which is part of the Engineering Technology degree program, facilitates and promotes
learning environments conducive to the enhancement of technical competency skills, critical-thinking skilis,
problem- solving abilities, and interpersonal skills for all students in an effort to assure success with entry- level
competencies for the profession and the public.

7. How does the program align with your institution’s strategic plan and academic program portfolio?

The program aligns with SUSLA’s Strategic Plan Goals and Objective Strategies 1.1.2, 1.2.4, 1.3.2 and 1.5.4.
Through these strategies, the Mechatronics Engineering Technology program will build the foundational skills
of students, provide opportunities for dual-enroliment to high school students, promote distance learning
opportunities and facilitates the introduction of new course credit offerings.

2|Page




8. How does the program align with the priorities outlined in the Board of Regents Master Plan for Higher
Education? Provide brief descriptions for each. Additional details will be required later in the proposal.
o Accessibility {mode of delivery, alternate course scheduling)
1 In-person, hybrid and online depending on the specific course in the program |
e Affordability {use of OER, transfer agreements, prior learning assessment, employer funded)
| OER materials will be utilized when available for courses. I
« Partnerships {with industry, community-based organizations, other institutions)
The Engineering Technology program has a number of MOUs with institutions in Louisiana {i.e. Southern
University in baton Rouge, LA Tech, Grambling, Northwestern State Louisiana University and Jarvis Christian
University. SUSLA’s Department or Engineering & Technology is also a member of a consortium of institutions
around the nation for undergraduate research-collaborative undergraduate research experiences (CURN]} {i.e.
Pasadena City College, Princeton, New Mexico State, UC Vista, and SUNY New York}.
e Work-based learning {paid or experiential internships, apprenticeships, etc.)
Students in the Mechatronics CTS will have the opportunity to complete internship/ co-op as part of the
Engineering Technology A.A.S. degree program {i.e. AEP/ SWEPCO, CenterPoint Energy, Welbilt, ExxonMobhil,
Chevron).
e Other program attributes that contribute to closing the achievement gap with underserved populations
including low income, minority, and adult learner.
SUSLA is a recognized HBCU providing services and resources to underserved populations. SUSLA's enrollment
has been consistently 90% minorities since its inception. The Department of Engineering & Technology
maintains two hands-on labs and is served by a Lab Tech that facilitates lab instruction and remediation, if
necessary. _

C. Need

9. How does the program align with relevant local, regional, and/or state workforce strategies and future societal

educational needs?
The Certificate of Technical Studies in Mechatronics Engineering Technology at SUSLA is essential to the
Southern University system and to our stakeholders. Most importantly, our students need technical certificate
programs that will prepare them for the job market in as little time as possible while providing the necessary
technical background that enables them to be proficient in their job duties. Currently, we do not offer solutions
for employers to recruit technical certificate holders in engineering or technology to fill much needed
employment openings. Companies have expressed difficulty in recruiting employees who hold degrees in fields
utilizing industry-leading technology and software in the engineering problem-solving process.

10. Summarize faculty engagement with alumni, community representatives, employers, Regional Economic
Development Organizations (REDO) or other external stakeholders, and explain how those conversations shaped
the design and curriculum of this proposed degree.

The department engages with community, organizational and industry stakeholders regularly through
stakeholder meetings, community events and open house activities designed to align program goals with
stakeholders needs. The Department of Engineering &Technology has an advisory board which consists of the
aforementioned parties and are involved in shaping the direction of program outcomes.

11. What is the program's service area {local, regional, state, national}? If outside of the institution's traditional
service area, provide a rationale.
SUSLA’s Labor Market area is Region 7. The program has online options for specific courses as well as
connections to other institutions in the state of Louisiana.

3lPage













27. Identify the partners you are working with to create an educational and career pipeline for this program. Mark

all that apply.
[ ] High school CTAE [X] Employers
[X 1 High school STEM [X] Community organizations
[ ] Career academies [X] Professional associations
[X] 2-year college [ ] Other Programs at your Institution
[X] 4-year college/university [ ]Other Partner

List specific partners for each category checked above.
Captain Shreve, Byrd, Green Oaks, Woodlawn, BTW, NSULA, Grambling, Jarvis Christian, LA Tech, SciPort, AEP/
SWEPCO, CenterPoint Energy, ExxonMobil, Chevron, WelBilt, NAPTA, NSF ATE, ASEE, ETU

28. Describe how the education pipeline for the program will function. Include any stackable or transferrable
credentialing that is involved.
Students are able to earn a dual-enroliment CTS in Engineering which is stackable into the AAS of Engineering
Technology. In addition, many of the courses that are part of the CTS in Mechatronics are part of the dual-
enroliment CTS in Engineering. Therefore, students are able to earn (2) CTSs (one in Engineering and one in
Mechatronics) as well as {if they choose) earn an AAS in Engineering Technology.

29. Describe how the institution will support graduates in meeting career goals such as securing employment,
further education, and industry certification.
The Department of Engineering & Technology have an advisory board that consists of many industry partners
that promote internships and direct hire options for program completers. In addition, SUSLA has an outstanding
Career Services department that are connected to many area employers, specifically in STEM area. The
department also has a number or MOUs with institutions such as NSULA, Grambling, LA Tech, SUBR, Jarvis
Christian University.

30. Describe how the success of program graduates will be tracked and assessed? Success may include employment,
enrollment in another degree program, or certification/licensure passage.
Program completer success can be determined by either employment or continued educational pursuit at
another institution {member/ non-member},

Students

31. Describe the institution’s process for determining prospective and current student interest in the program. This

may include enrollment in existing courses, minors, or concentrations, student surveys, admissions inquiries.
SUSLA hold a Jaguar Preview Day, a Trio Prospect Day as well as other high school recruitment events every
semester. Student interest forms are collected along with potential student enroliment data. The Department
of Engineering & Technology’s website has a student interest form that forwards potential engineering &
technology student data to the Office of Recruitment as well as the Department Head.

32. Provide current institutional and department/college overall retention and graduation rates.

As of the 2020-2021 academic year, the University has a total of 2745 students enrolled and 240 program
completers. The Department of Engineering & Technology is a newly established department which has been
in existence since 2021. The Engineering Technology AAS degree program is a newly esta blished program with
its maiden cohort beginning Spring 2022,

7]Page
















4. Has the program been designed to align with any Board of Regents or other statewide initiatives? Check all that
apply.
[ 1 MI Foster Promise Program
[ ] Cyber-security Initiatives
[ ] Louisiana Transfer Pathways
[ ]1Other:

5. if this proposal is for a Master’s or Doctoral program, provide a list below {name, institution, email address, brief
summary of qualifications} for at least three external review candidates. Reviewers should be active or retired
full time faculty member from an accredited institution; have experience developing and/or administering a
program like the proposed program; and should not have direct affiliation with a Louisiana institution.

| /A

B. The Master Plan and Institutional Role, Scope, and Mission
6. How does the program align with your institutional role, scope, and mission? If the program does not align,
provide a compelling rationale for the institution to offer the program.
The program aligns with the institution’s role, scope, and mission by preparing students to compete globally in
their fields of study and to achieve excellence in undergraduate education, research, and public service. The
Renewable Energy program, which is part of the Engineering Technology degree program, facilitates and
promotes learning environments conducive to the enhancement of technical competency skills, critical-
thinking skills, problem- solving abilities, and interpersonal skills for all students in an effort to assure success
with entry- level competencies for the profession and the public.

7. How does the program align with your institution’s strategic plan and academic program portfolio?

The program aligns with SUSLA’s Strategic Plan Goals and Objective Strategies 1.1.2, 1.2.4, 1.3.2 and 1.5.4.
Through these strategies, the Alternative & Renewable Energy Technology program will build the foundational
skills of students, provide opportunities for dual-enroliment to high school students, promote distance learning
opportunities and facilitates the introduction of new course credit offerings.

2|Page




8. How does the program align with the priorities outlined in the Board of Regents Master Plan for Higher
Education? Provide brief descriptions for each. Additional details will be required later in the proposal.
s Accessibility {mode of delivery, alternate course scheduling)
I In-person, hybrid and online depending on the specific course in the program.
s Affordability (use of OER, transfer agreements, prior learning assessment, employer funded)
| OER materials will be utilized when available for courses.
e Partnerships {with industry, community-based organizations, other institutions)
The Engineering Technology program has a number of MOUs with institutions in Louisiana L.e. Southern
University in Baton Rouge, LA Tech, Grambling, Northwestern State Louisiana University and Jarvis Christian
University. SUSLA’s Department of Engineering & Technology is aiso a member of a consortium of institutions
around the nation for undergraduate research-collaborative undergraduate research experiences {CURN] {i.e.
Pasadena City College, Princeton, New Mexico State, UC Vista, and SUNY New York).
s  Work-based learning (paid or experiential internships, apprenticeships, etc.)
Students in the Alternative & Renewable Energy CTS will have the opportunity to complete internship/ co-op
as part of the Engineering Technology A.A.S. degree program {i.e. AEP/ SWEPCQ, CenterPoint Energy, Welbilt,
ExxonMobil, Chevreon).
e Other program attributes that contribute to closing the achievement gap with underserved populations
including low income, minority, and adult learner.
SUSLA is a recognized HBCU providing services and resources to underserved populations. SUSLA’s
enrollment has been consistently 90% minorities since its inception. The Department of Engineering &
Technology maintains two hands-on labs and is served by a Lab Tech that facilitates lab instruction and
remediation, if necessary.

3|Page




C. Need

9. How does the program align with relevant local, regional, and/or state workforce strategies and future societal

educational needs?
The Certificate of Technical Studies in Alternative & Renewable Energy Technology at SUSLA is essential to the
Southern University system and to our stakeholders. Most importantly, our students need technical certificate
programs that will prepare them for the job market in as little time as possible while providing the necessary
technical background that enables them to be proficient in their job duties. Currently, we do not offer solutions
for employers to recruit technical certificate holders in engineering or technology to fil much needed
employment openings. Companies have expressed difficulty in recruiting employees who hold degrees in fields
utilizing industry-leading technology and software in the engineering problem-solving process.

10. Summarize faculty engagement with alumni, community representatives, employers, Regional Economic
Development Organizations (REDO) or other external stakeholders, and explain how those conversations shaped
the design and curriculum of this proposed degree.
The Department engages with community, organizational and industry stakeholders regularly through
stakeholder meetings, community events and open house activities designed to align program goals with
stakeholders needs. The Department of Engineering &Technology has an advisory board which consists of the
aforementioned parties and are involved in shaping the direction of program outcomes.

11. What is the program's service area (local, regional, state, national)? if outside of the institution’'s traditional
service area, provide a rationale.
SUSLA’s Labor Market area is Region 7. The program has online options for specific courses as well as
connections to other institutions in the state of Louisiana.

12. Provide evidence of demand for the program in this service area {e.g. prospective student interest survey data,
community needs, letters of support from community groups or employers).
The Department of Engineering & Technology formulated the STEM Summer Enrichment Academy (SSEA)
which provides an 8-week summer program for students grades gth-12" Summer 2021 was the maiden
cohort of students which consisted of more than 30 students with interest in program topics that included
robotics, drones, renewable energy and aerospace technology. Letters of support will be attached to the
application.

4|Page













27. Identify the partners you are working with to create an educational and career pipeline for this program. Mark

all that apply.
[ 1High schoo! CTAE [X] Employers
{X] High school STEM X] Community organizations
[ ] Career academies {X] Professional associations
[X] 2-year college [ ] Other Programs at your Institution
[X] 4-year college/university [ ] Other Partner

List specific partners for each category checked above.
Captain Shreve, Byrd, Green Oaks, Woodlawn, BTW, NSULA, Grambling, Jarvis Christian, LA Tech, SciPort, AEP/
SWEPCO, CenterPoint Energy, ExxonMobil, Chevron, WelBilt, NAPTA, NSF ATE, ASEE, ETLI

28. Describe how the education pipeline for the program will function. Include any stackable or transferrable
credentialing that is involved.
Students are able to earn a dual-enrollment CTS in Engineering which is stackable into the AAS of Engineering
Technology. In addition, many of the courses that are part of the CTS in Renewable Energy are part of the dual-
enrollment CTS in Engineering. Therefore, students are able to earn {2) CTSs {one in Engineering and one in
Renewable Energy) as well as {if they choose) earn an AAS in Engineering Technology.

29, Describe how the institution will support graduates in meeting career goals such as securing employment,
further education, and industry certification.
The Department of Engineering & Technology have an advisory board that consists of many industry partners
that promote internships and direct hire options for program completers. In addition, SUSLA has an outstanding
Career Services department that are connected to many area employers, specifically in STEM area. The
department also has a number or MOUs with institutions such as NSULA, Grambling, LA Tech, SUBR, larvis
Christian University.

30. Describe how the success of program graduates will be tracked and assessed? Success may include employment,
enrollment in another degree program, or certification/licensure passage,
Program completer success can be determined by either employment or continued educational pursuit at
another institution {member/ non-member).

Students

31. Describe the institution’s process for determining prospective and current student interest in the program. This

may include enrollment in existing courses, minors, or concentrations, student surveys, admissions inguiries.
SUSLA holds a Jaguar Preview Day, a Trio Prospect Day as well as other high school recruitment events every
semester. Student interest forms are collected along with potential student enrollment data. The Department
of Engineering & Technology’s website has a student interest form that forwards potential engineering &
technology student data to the Office of Recruitment as well as the Department Head.

32. Provide current institutionat and department/college overali retention and graduation rates.

As of the 2020-2021 academic year, the University has a total of 2745 students enrolled and 240 program
completers. The Department of Engineering & Technology is a newly established department which has been
in existence since 2021. The Engineering Technology AAS degree program is a newly established program with
its maiden cohort beginning Spring 2022,

BlPage













DELIVERY OF DEGREE PROGRAMS THORUGH
DISTANCE EDUCATION TECHNOLOGY

REQUEST FOR AUTHORITY TO OFFER AN EXISTING ACADEMIC PROGRAM

THROUGH DISTANCE LEARNING TECHNOLOGIES
(Academic Affairs Policy 2.12, revised January 2014)

1. University or College

Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA)

2. Name, Phone and Email Address of contact person for questions regarding this request
Mr. Colton Wiggins | 318-670-9620 | Colton.Wiggins@susla.edu

3. Name of Degree Program and CIP Classification
Associates of Applied Science in Polysomnographic Technology | 51.0917

4. List the initial date of implementation
August 2024

5. Briefly describe the program. If there are any differences (e.g., curriculum, admission, graduation
requirements, etc.) between the program to be delivered via distance fearning and the program
offered through traditional delivery modes, explain and provide a rational for the differences.

Our program is designed to develop the next generation of Sieap Technologist through 2 Hybrid Instructiona! Detivery Method that utilizes the best of technology at our
disposal. With our highly interactive Online and hybrid courses combined wilh our clinicel intamships, students will be well versed in the fieid of sleep technology. The
shoriege of sleep techs is prevalant with their being less than 2001n the stale of Louisiana. Meeting tha needs of our clinical pariners & communitiss of interest require a
format that will aliow studenls to complete school work et a time most conveinent to them while ensuring that

6. Briefly describe the extent to which the program will be offered via distance learning.
Of the 62 credit hours llsted in the degree pian for Polysomnographic Technology, 21 ate Gen. Education dasses that may ba Laken Ordlng or in-person, 14 are dilnlcal courses where students will hava to

report to a sleep conler nearest Lo them o complete clinlcat shifts, 11 are assoclated with Onling courses, and 16 are laboled hybtid. Meaning Lhal there Is some synchtonous meslings scheduled. Whather
that be virtually or In-person.

7. Describe distance learning technologies which will be used to offer the proposed program.

The Polysomnographic Technofogy program ulfizes sevaral learning technalogtes Lo ald in he education of our students, This Includes but js nol limited 1o: CAMVAS Leamn Managamenl System, Micrasoft 385 Praducts,
Zoom. Trajecsys (Online Glinical Managemant Saftwate), Grsmmarly, The Inler-Scoring Rellablity (ISR) Softwara, ChatGPT, CANVA (Daslgn SoRware), Scibe (How-To Guies), Adobe, slc. In Additior, we have an
aute-tracking camera, Samson wireless microphons, & a mobila Fromethean board ke ansura studenls arg In tha classioam exp ‘whalhar Online of in-parson.

8. Indicate where {city/town and parish) the proposed program will be offered.

Based in Shreveport, La but aim to provide instruction to all of North and Central Louisiana. The campus is a member of SARA,; therefore, the
program can be delivered in afi states participating in this consortium.

9. Describe processes in place to ensure that students have structured access to faculty.

To ensure our siudents are supported along iheir educational journey, all facuity are mandated o hold virlual office hours
ukitizing Zoom or TEAMs. This way students can meet face-to-face with faculty to handte any issues or concems. In addition
fo this, we utiifize the EAB navigate program & Calendy {o handle with scheduling academic check-in sessions.

If this is the campus’ first request for approval to offer 50% or more of a program electronically, upon approvat by the
Board of Regents the campus must submit notification to the Southem Association of Colteges and Schools
Commission on Colleges {SACSCOC) prior to implementation. Once the SACSCOC provides a letter acknowledging
acceptance of this notification to the campus, a copy should be provided to the Board of Regents.

Provost/ Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs " Date

Campus Head {or Authorized Signature) System Head (or Authorized Signature)




Mission Statement
Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique
institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable
world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art research, creative scholarship, and
transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World.

ATHLETICS COMMITTEE

(Following Academic Affairs Committee)

AGENDA

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Adoption of the Agenda

4. Public Comments

Lh

. Action Item(s)

A. Request Approval to Extend the Contract of Athletic Director Roman Banks (SUBR)

6. Other Business

~1

. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Atty Domoine Rutledge - Chairman, Dr. Rani Whitfield — Vice-Chair,
Mr. Paul Matthews, Mrs. Ann Smith, Mr. Raymond Fondel and Atty. Tony Clayton
Mr, Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio




EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF ATHELICS DIRECTOR
ROMAN P. BANKS

This agreement is made and entered into on the ___ day of April 2024 between Southern University
System Board of Supervisors ("Board") and Roman P. Banks (“Athletics Director”). This agreement
constitutes the employment contract and appointment of the Athletics Director at Southern
University in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (“University”) and replaces any previous agreements and
amendments. This agreement shall be effective on April 1, 2024 and shall remain in effect through
March 31, 2027, unless extended or terminated subject to the provisions contained herein.

EMPLOYMENT OF ATHELICS DIRECTOR

Page 10f 8

Employment

Board does hereby employ Athletics Director as athletic director, and Athletics Director
does hereby accept employment and agrees to perform all of the services pertaining to
athletic director that are required of Athletics Director as well as other services as may
be contemplated hereunder, all as prescribed by the President-Chancellor, and Board
through its Chairperson. All appointments are subject to applicable polices and
regulations of the Board, and all employees are required to adhere to Board and/or
administrative policies as they relate to them.

Athletics Director shall be responsible, and shall report, directly to the President-
Chancellor.

The duties of the Athletics Director shall include, but not be limited to the following:

i. Maintain a motivated and successful Athletics Department;

ii. Upgrade and maintain a visible and successful athletic marketing program;

iii. Maintain involvement with the community at large and Alumni as necessary to
sustain goodwill and positive public relations with the community at large, Alumni
and athletic patrons of the University;

iv. Maintain good interpersonal relations with the staff and team members of the
Athletics Department, inclusive of evaluation procedures for the staff, in accordance
with the policies and procedures set forth by the University.

v. Adhere to the NCAA, SWAC rules and regulations and any and all applicable
regulations, policies and procedures of the University and the Southern University
System, as may, from time to time be amended;

vi. Initiate and maintain a comprehensive athletic fundraising program, which shall
include but not be limited to solicitations from non-state or private revenue sources;

vii. Support and monitor the on-going academic enhancement programs designed to
ensure increased graduation and retention rates and compliance with NCAA APR
benchmarks and requirements; and

viii. Maintain all duties normally associated with the Athletics Director's position
including directives of the Athletics Director as established by the President-
Chancellor or his designee.

Southern University at Baton Rouge
Athletics Director Contract 2024



d. Athletics Director agrees to represent Southern University System positively in public
and private forums and shall perform his duties and personally handle himself in a
manner consistent with good sportsmanship and in accordance with high moral, ethical
and academic standards of the Southern University System and its athletic program.

. Term

a. The term of this agreement is for three (3) years commencing on April 1, 2024, and
terminating on March 31, 2027. The Board has the option of extending this agreement for
one (1) additional year by providing the Athletics Director notice by January 31, 2027.

1. Compensation and Employee Benefits

a. Athletics Director shall receive the following compensation for services and satisfactory
performance of this agreement. University shall pay Athletic Director a base annual
salary for the term of this agreement, on a monthly basis the following amounts:

i. April1,2024, through March 31,2025: $275,000.00
ii. April1, 2025, through March 31, 2026: $275,000.00
iii. April1,2026, through March 31, 2027: $275,000.00

If the University exercises its option to extend the contract one (1) additional year the
compensation shall be:

vi. April 1, 2027, through March 31, 2028: $275,000.00

b. University will provide Athletics Director the opportunity to participate in the benefit
plans for health insurance, dental insurance, retirement, disability, and life insurance,
subject to eligibility requirements, normally provided by University to its regular non-
academic unclassified full-time employees.

V. Outside Income-Subject to Compliance with Board Rules

a. Athletics Director shall be authorized to earn other revenue while employed by University
but such activities are independent of his University employment and University shall
have no responsibility for any claims arising therefrom. All outside income must comply
with the Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics and will be subject to approval in
accordance with the Board's policies.

b. Athletics Director shall report annually in writing to the President-Chancellor all income
from athletically related sources from sources outside of the University including but not
limited to income from sports camps, housing benefits, television and radio programs,
endorsement or consultation contracts with athletic shoe, apparel or equipment
manufacturers or sellers, and University shall have reasonable access to records of
Athletics Director to verify this report.

Page 2 of 8
Southern University at Baton Rouge
Athletics Director Contract 2024



V. Performance Goals

(1) Basketball. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the amount of:
(i) Seven Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($7,500.00) if the Men's Basketball team
wins the regular season SWAC championship;
(i) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if Men's Basketball team wins the SWAC regular
season championship;
(iii) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) for each round of progression in the NCAA
Men's Basketball Tournament;
(iv) Seven Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($7,500.00) if Women's Basketball Team
wins the SWAC tournament Championship game;
(v) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if Women's Basketball team wins the SWAC
regular season championship;
(vi) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) for each round of progression in the NCAA
Women's Basketball Tournament.

(2) Football. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the amount of:
(i) Seven Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($7,500.00) if the Men's Football Team wins
the SWAC Championship game;
(i) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the Football Team competes in the SWAC
Championship game;
(iii) Seven Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($7,500.00) if the Men's Football Team wins
the SWAC Celebration Bowl game;
(iv) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the Football Team competes in the SWAC
Celebration Bowl game;
(v) one (1) month's Base Salary annually for attaining the highest attendance for the
regular season in the SCS, not to exceed Ten Thousand dollars ($10,000.00).

(3) Baseball/Softball. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the amount
of:
(i) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the Men's Baseball team wins the SWAC
Championship game;
(i) Four Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($4,500.00) for each round the Men's
Baseball team progresses in the SWAC tournament;
(iii) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the Women's Softball team wins the SWAC
Championship game;
(iv) Four Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($4,500.00) for each round the Women's
Softball team progresses in the SWAC tournament.

(4) Academic Performance. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the
amount of a one (1) month's Base Salary annually if the APR for ninety percent (90%)
of the benchmark meet the APR set by the NCAA not to exceed Ten Thousand dollars
($10,000.00).

(5) Other Sports Teams. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the
amount of One Thousand Five Hundred dollars ($1,500) each for all other SWAC

Page 30f 8
Southern University at Baton Rouge
Athletics Director Contract 2024



championships won, including, but not limited to, Bowling, Track, Golf, Volleyball
and or Soccer.

(6) Sponsorships Incentive. Athletic Director will receive five percent (5%) for all
sponsorships generated from new and/or the renewal of existing contracts for the
System to be paid from the System's Foundation.

(7) Game Guarantee Incentive. Athletic Director will receive five percent (5%) of all
game guarantees for athletic teams.

(8) Awards. Athletic Director will receive extra compensation in the amount of:
(i) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the System wins the SWAC C.D. Henry Awards
(Men's Sports);
(ii) Five Thousand dollars ($5,000.00) if the System wins the SWAC Sadie
Magee/Barbara Jacket Award (Women's sports);
(iii) Notwithstanding the above Sections V.(8)(i) and (ii), if the System wins the James
Frank Award (Commissioners Cup), a single incentive payment of Ten Thousand
dollars ($10,000.00) and no additional compensation for the Henry or Magee/Jacket
Awards.

(9) OtherPerformance Incentive. If all certified NCAA Division 1 sports at University are
eligible for post-season play at the end of sports season, the Athletic Director will
receive anincrease of ten thousand dollars (10,000.00) to the Athletic Director's base
annual salary for that year.

VI. Compliance with NCAA, Conference and University Rules

a. Athletics Director shall abide by the rules and regulations of the NCAA, SWAC and
University. If Athletics Director is personally found to be in violation of NCAA regulations,
Athletics Director shall be subject to disciplinary or corrective action set forth in the
NCAA enforcement procedures and Section VIL Athletics Director may be suspended for
a -period of time, without pay if Athletics Director is found to be personally guilty of
deliberate and serious violations of NCAA, SWAC or University regulations.

b. Athletics Director shall abide by state and federal laws, the State of Louisiana Code of
Government Ethics, University and the policies and regulations of Southern University
System.

VII. Termination

a. Termination for Cause. The Board shall have the right to terminate this agreement for
cause prior to its expiration, and such right shall exist notwithstanding any rights
available under Section VIl hereof, and in addition to the examples listed in University
Personnel Handbook, the term for cause shall include but not be limited to any one or
more of the following;

i. Negligent or inattention by Athletics Director of the standards, duties or
responsibilities expected by Southern University System employees, after written

Page 4 of 8
Southern University at Baton Rouge
Athletics Director Contract 2024



notice thereof has been given to Athletic Director by President- Chancellor and
Athletics Director has continued such neglect or inattention during a subsequent
period for not less than thirty (30) days;

ii. Material, intentional, or reckless breach or violation by Athletics Director of the
agreement, including without limitation governing athletic rules and Southern
University System rules; or

iii. Arrest/conviction of Athletics Director of any criminal violation (does not include
minor traffic offenses or non-criminal offenses; or

iv. Fraud or dishonesty of Athletics Director in the performance of his duties or
responsibilities hereunder; or

v. Actively engaging in any conduct or committing any act that brings University and
Athletics Director into public disrepute, contempt, embarrassment, scandal or
ridicule and that negatively impacts the reputation or the high moral or ethical
standards of the Southern University System;

vi. Conduct of Athletics Director constituting a major violation, or a pattern of conduct
which may constitute or lead to a major violation, of any NCAA or other governing
athletic rule or Southern University System interpretation thereof, which may, in the
reasonable and good faith judgment of the Southern University System negatively
and significantly impact and reflect adversely upon the Southern University System
or its athletic programs, including any violation which results or could result in
University being placed on probation by the NCAA or the SWAC;

vii. Conduct by members of Athletics Department or others under his supervision or
subject to his control or authority, constituting a major violation, or a pattern of
conduct which may constitute or lead to major violation, of any NCAA or other
governing athletic rule or Southern University System interpretation thereof of which
Athletics Director had knowledge and failed to act reasonably to prevent, limit or
mitigate, which may, in the reasonable and good faith judgment of the Southern
University System negatively and significantly impact and reflect adversely upon
University or its athletics program, including any violation which results or could
result in University being placed on probation by the NCAA or SWAC; and

viii. Conduct that the Chancellor and/or the Board of Supervisors agree that is not in the
best interest of University and such conduct would be detrimental to the University
and Southern University System. In the event this Agreement is terminated for cause
in accordance with the provisions of Section VIl hereof, then effective as of the
termination date, Athletics Director shall not be entitled to receive any further
payments of base salary, and any other compensation or benefit otherwise payable
under Section Ill hereof, except Athletics Director will be entitled to continue such
life or health insurance benefits at Athletics Director's expense as required by law,
and subject to any deductions permitted by Section lll(b) Athletics Director will be
paid any earned outstanding payments owed by University as of the effective

Page 50f 8
Southern University at Baton Rouge
Athletics Director Contract 2024



termination date pursuant to the terms of the Agreement. Athletics Director will be
given notice of the cause and an opportunity for a hearing before the Board of
Supervisors' Athletics Committee.

b. Termination without Cause. In the event this agreement is terminated without cause,
Athletics Director and University will be required to provide thirty (30) days notice to the
other party. The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by the
University with this clause in whole or for time to time in part, whenever the University
shall determine that such termination is in the best interest of the University. It is the
understanding that this Agreement may be terminated for convenience of the University
for the performance by the Athletics Director deemed by the University to unsatisfactory,
such determination to be within the sole and absolute discretion of the University. In the
event the agreement is terminated without cause, Athletics Director will be paid any
earned outstanding, payments owed by the University as of the effective termination date
pursuant to the terms of the agreement. The parties agree that if this Agreement is
terminated without cause, then Athletics Director may be given a hearing at the sole
discretion of the Board of Supervisors' Athletics Committee. If University terminates the
agreement without cause, as permitted by Section VII hereof, University may pay, and
Athletics Director agrees to accept as liquidated damages, an amount equal to the sum
of the annual base salary for the remaining term of the agreement or the University at its
option my reassign the Athletics Director to another suitable position at the University for
the remainder of the agreement at a salary equal to his pay. If Athletics Director is not
reassigned to another position within the University, any future employment and the
compensations and benefits received therefrom shall be used as an offset to any sums
that may be due owing by the University to the Athletics Director. If Athletics Director
terminates this agreement, the Athletics Director will not be entitled to liquidated
damages.

VIII. Miscellaneous

a. This agreement may be amended at any time only by a written instrument duly signed by
University through its designated representative and Athletics Director. Allamendments
must be in writing.

b. The agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Louisiana.

c. Athletics Director's rights and interests under this Agreement may not be assigned
pledged or encumbered by Athletics Director.

d. The agreement constitutes the full and complete understanding and agreement of the
parties with respect to the employment of Athletics Director by University and
supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, oral and written, regarding
Athletics Director's employment by University.

Page 6 of 8
Southern University at Baton Rouge
Athletics Director Contract 2024



e. Athletics Director acknowledges that the Athletics Director has read and understands
the foregoing provisions are reasonable and enforceable, and Athletics Director agrees
to abide by this agreement and the terms and conditions set forth herein.

f. All notices, requests, demands and other communication hereunder may be given by
personal delivery, delivery by expedited delivery or mail service such as Federal Express
and United States mail with first class postage prepaid or facsimile/telecopier. Notices
shall be sent to the names below:

If to Athletics Director If to SU-Baton Rouge
Southern University Athletics Dennis J. Shields

C/o Roman P. Banks President-Chancellor

P.O. Box 9942 J.S. Clark Administration Bldg.
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 4™ Floor

Southern University A&M College
Baton Rouge, LA 70813

With copy to:
Office of General Counsel

Attn: Corinne Blache

Genera Counsel

J.S. Clark Administration Bldg.
4" Floor

Southern University A&M College
Baton Rouge, LA 70813

g. The invalidity or enforceability of any provision of this agreement has no effect on the
validity or enforceability of any other provisions.

[Remainder of the page left blank]

Page 7 of 8
Southern University at Baton Rouge
Athletics Director Contract 2024



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this
agreement to be executed on the date shown below.

Roman P. Banks Date
Athletic Director

Dennis J. Shields Date
President — Chancellor
Southern University System

Myron Lawson, Chairman Date
Board of Supervisors

Page 8 of 8
Southern University at Baton Rouge
Athletics Director Contract 2024



Mission Statement
Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique
institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable
world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art research, creative scholarship, and
transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World.

FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE
(Following Athletics Committee)

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Cali

3. Adoption of the Agenda
4. Public Comments

5. Action Item(s)

A. Request Approval of Servitude Agreement between Baton Rouge Water Works
Company and Southern University and A & M College (SUS/SUBR)

6. Informational Ttem(s)
A. Facilities Update (SUS)
7. Other Business

8. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Atty Edwin Shorty - Chairman, Atty Domoine Rutledge — Vice-Chair,
Mr. Paul Matthews, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr, Leon Tarver, IT and Dr. Rani Whitfield
Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio







SERVITUDE AGREEMENT

State of Loulslana
Parish of East Baton Rouge

THIS grant made the day of , 2024

By BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURAL AND MECHANICAL
COLLEGE, GRANTOR (whether one or more) to THE BATON ROUGE WATER WORKS COMPANY, a
Louisiana corporation domiciled in the City of Baton Rouge, Louisiana, GRANTEE.

WITNESSETH: For a valuable consideration hereby acknowledged and upon the terms and provisions
herelnafter expressed, the Grantor hereby grants and establishes in favor of Grantee, its successors and
asslgns, a servitude to enter upon, fay, run and maintain plpes, mains and connections for the
transportation of water on and across the following described property, situated in the Parish of East
Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, to wit:

A certain tract of land, contrining 387.00 acres, more or less, in Sections 39, 67 & 75, Township 6 South, Range 1 West, East
Baton Rouge Parish, Lonisiana, being bounded now or formerly on the North by Mills Avernue and other {ands owned by
Graintor, Eaost by the right of way of the Louisiana Raifway and Navigmtion Company, on the South by property forinerly
owiied by C.W. Kernan and now ewned by the Grantor; and the West by the Mississippi River. Being the some properly
described in that cerfain Instrument and shown on Plat of Survey attached to said Instrument, recorded as Original 88,
Bundie 170 records of East Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

All as more particularly shown on the sketch on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof,
and also including the right to locate such facilitfes within the adjacent road right of way for the purpose
of crossing such right of way, or as may be necessitated by physical conditions. Grantee shalf have the
right at all times to enter upon said premises, for the purpose of installing, inspecting, repairing,
removing or changing safd pipes, mains, and connections and for such other purposes as may be
necessary for the full use of the rights herein grated. Grantee will make its installations at a depth that
will not interfere with the ordinary surface use of said premises; and Grantee will, at its expense, refill its
excavations, regrade and place the property as nearly as practicable in its original conditlon. Al of the
stipulations herein contalned shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, successors and
assigns of the respective parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed these presents as of the day, month and year
flrst above written, in the presence of the undersigned competent witnesses.

WITNESSES AS TO GRANTOR: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN
UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURAL AND
MECHANICAL COLLEGE

By:

Grantor:

WITNESSES AS TO GRANTEE: THE BATON ROUGE WATER WORKS COMPANY

By:

Grantor:

SEE EXHIBIT “A”, ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREQF FOR SKETCH OF PROPERTY



DIRECT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF

PARISH OF

ON THIS day of , 2024, before me, the undersigned Notary

Public, duly commissioned and quelified, personally came and appeared .
to me personally known, who, being by me duly

swom, did say that signed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged signing of the instrument to
be their free act and deed.

NOTARY PUBLIC

X

(Print Notary Name Here)

{Notary ID # or State bar roli # here)

STATE OF

PARISH OF

ON THIS day of , 2024, before me, the undersigned Notary
Public, duly commissioned and qualified, personally came and appeared
to me personally known, who, being by me duly
sworm, did say that signed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged signing of the instrument to
be their free act and deed.

NOTARY PUBLIC

(Print Notary Name Here)

(Notary 1D # or State bar roll # here)












Mission Statement
Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique
institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable
world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art research, creative scholarship, and
transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

(Following Facilities and Property Committee)

AGENDA

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Adoption of the Agenda
4. Public Comments
5. Action Item(s)
A. Request Approval to Increase Residential Housing Fees (SUBR)
6. Informational Item(s)

A. Interim Financial Report

7. Other Business

8. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Dr. Arlanda Williams- Chairman, Ms. Ann Smith — Vice-Chair,
Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mrs. Christy Reeves, Atty. Domoine Rutledge, and Dr. Leon Tarver, II
Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio




Southern University System
General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024
As of March 31, 2024

Executive Summary

Attached is a summary of the Southern University System fiscal year 2023-2024 general
operating budget financial activities for the month ending March 31, 2024. The Southern
University System is reporting an $812,638 increase in revenues. The increase primarily
resulted from a gain in self-generated revenues.

Southern University Board and System Administration

The System Office is funded from state appropriations and there is no projected shortfall in
revenues.

Southern University Baton Rouge Campus

The Baton Rouge Campus projected Fall 2023 and Spring 2024 tuition exceeded the amount
budgeted by $4,263,247. The Baton Rouge Campus is using these funds to offset the increase
cost in other charges and scholarships.

Southern University Law Center

The Law Center has a $1,353,080 projected shortfall in Fall 2023 and Spring 2024 tuition as
compared to the approved budget. The Law Center has reduced personal services, travel,
supplies, and other charges expenditures to balance the operating budget for the fiscal year.

Southern University News Orleans Campus

The New Orleans Campus has a $1,373,579 projected shortfall in self-generated revenue as
compared to the approved budget. The New Orleans Campus has reduced personal services,
supplies, and other charges to balance the operating budget for the fiscal year.

Southern University Shreveport Campus

The Shreveport Campus has a $723,950 projected shortfall in Fall 2023 and Spring 2024
tuition as compared to the approved budget. The Shreveport Campus has reduced personal
services to balance their operating budget for the fiscal year.

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

The Agricultural Research and Extension Center is funded from state appropriations and
federal funds and there is no projected shortfall in revenues.

Summary

Based on the information above the campuses have made the appropriate adjustments to
maintain a balance budget as of March 31, 2024. Revenues and expenditures will be
monitored during the remainder of the 2023-2024 fiscal year to allow for a balanced
operating budget.



For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

Southern University System
General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement

As of March 31, 2024
Over/(Under) (% Actual
FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24 Budget to Budget
Revenues
General Fund Direct $ 66,600,531 | $ 45,650,365 20,950,166 | $ 66,600,531 - 68.5%
Statutory Dedicated 4,851,115 1,785,269 3,065,846 4,851,115 - 36.8%
Federal 3,654,209 910,945 2,743,264 3,654,209 - 24.9%
Self Generated
Tuition - Fall 2023 35,457,617 34,781,126 - 34,781,126 (676,491) 98.1%
Tuition - Spring 2024 33,473,960 31,240,902 - 31,240,902 (2,233,058) 93.3%
Tuition - Summer 4,321,912 2,360,811 3,085,097 5,445,908 1,123,996 54.6%
Out-of-State Fees 16,682,867 18,880,026 849,218 19,729,244 3,046,377 113.2%
Other 21,332,244 14,094,102 6,789,956 20,884,058 (448,186) 66.1%
Interagency Transfer 4,476,791 2,981,994 1,494,797 4,476,791 - 66.6%
Total Revenues $ 190,851,246 | $ 152,685,540 38,978,344 | $ 191,663,884 812,638 80.0%
Expenditures
Salaries $ 90,739,457 | $ 70,966,330 17,184,370 | $ 88,150,700 (2,588,757) 78.2%
Other Compensation 394,759 222,632 172,127 394,759 - 56.4%
Related Benefits 38,496,101 28,897,859 7,504,789 36,402,648 (2,093,453) 75.1%
Total Personal Services $ 129,630,317 | $ 100,086,821 24,861,286 | $ 124,948,107 (4,682,210) 77.2%
Travel 1,490,311 840,943 565,573 1,406,517 (83,794) 56.4%
Operating Services 17,932,095 13,531,371 6,431,005 19,962,376 2,030,281 75.5%
Supplies 2,136,272 1,048,243 794,386 1,842,629 (293,643) 49.1%
Total Operating Expenses $ 21,558,678 | § 15,420,557 7,790,964 | $ 23,211,522 1,652,844 71.5%
Professional Services 2,727,372 1,938,465 266,940 2,205,405 (521,967) 71.1%
Other Charges 12,367,665 1,424,948 8,578,517 10,003,466 (2,364,199) 11.5%
Debt Services
Interagency Transfers 7,865,134 8,346,307 1,559,255 9,906,062 2,040,928 106.1%
Total Other Charges $ 22,960,171 | $ 11,710,221 10,404,713 | $ 22,114,933 (845,238) 51.0%
General Acquisitions 425,342 209,827 215,515 425,342 - 49.3%
Library Acquisitions 562,649 492,669 127,337 620,006 57,357 87.6%
Major Repairs 2,495,314 2,803 2,430,511 2,433,314 (62,000) 0.1%
Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs| $ 3,483,305 | $ 705,299 2,773,363 | $ 3,478,662 (4,643) 20.2%
Scholarships 13,218,775 17,820,660 90,000 17,910,660 4,691,885 134.8%
Total Expenditures $ 190,851,246 | $ 145,743,557 45,920,327 | $ 191,663,884 812,638 76.4%

Page 1




Southern University Board and System Administration
General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024
As of March 31, 2024
Over/(Under) | % Actual
FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24 Budget to Budget
Revenues
General Fund Direct $ 5,465,886 | $ 3,620,300 | $ 1,845,586 | $ 5,465,886 | $ - 66.2%
Statutory Dedicated
Federal - -
Self Generated
Tuition - Fall 2023 - -
Tuition - Spring 2024 - -
Tuition - Summer - -
Out-of-State Fees - -
Other - -
Interagency Transfer - -
Total Revenues $ 5465886 |$ 3,620,300 | $§ 1,845,586 | $ 5465886 | $ = 66.2%
Expenditures
Salaries $ 1,930,302 | $ 1,387,778 | $ 542,524 | $§ 1,930,302 | $ - 71.9%
Other Compensation 64,500 38,997 25,503 64,500 - 60.5%
Related Benefits 825,606 426,740 398,866 825,606 - 51.7%
Total Personal Services $ 2,820,408 |$ 1,853,515 | $ 966,893 | § 2,820,408 | $ - 65.7%
Travel 365,000 118,466 246,534 365,000 - 32.5%
Operating Services 244,000 95,766 148,234 244,000 - 39.2%
Supplies 131,000 62,459 68,541 131,000 - 47.7%
Total Operating Expenses $ 740,000 | $ 276,691 | $ 463,309 | $ 740,000 | $ - 37.4%
Professional Services 151,000 90,000 61,000 151,000 - 59.6%
Other Charges 1,587,077 - 1,587,077 1,587,077 - 0.0%
Debt Services - - -
Interagency Transfers 97,401 - 97,401 97,401 - 0.0%
Total Other Charges $ 1835478 | $ 90,000 | $ 1,745478 | $ 1,835478 | § - 4.9%
General Acquisitions 70,000 4,798 65,202 70,000 - 6.9%
Library Acquisitions - -
Major Repairs - -
Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs| $ 70,000 | $ 4,798 | $ 65,202 | $ 70,000 | $ - 6.9%
Scholarships - -
Total Expenditures $ 5465886 $ 2,225004 | $ 3,240,882 | $ 5,465,886 | $ - 40.7%

Page 2



Southern University Baton Rouge Campus
General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024
Over/(Under) | % Actual
FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24 Budget to Budget
Revenues
General Fund Direct $ 26,039,530 | $ 17,902,176 8,137,354 | $ 26,039,530 | $ 68.7%
Statutory Dedicated 1,773,886 905,821 868,065 1,773,886 51.1%
Federal - - - -
Self Generated
Tuition - Fall 2023 21,974,488 22,932,448 - 22,932,448 957,960 104.4%
Tuition - Spring 2024 21,244,676 20,508,995 - 20,508,995 (735,681) 96.5%
Tuition - Summer 2,201,756 1,593,339 1,593,339 3,186,678 984,922 72.4%
Out-of-State Fees 11,222,140 13,598,186 680,000 14,278,186 3,056,046 121.2%
Other 11,338,306 7,133,478 4,204,828 11,338,306 62.9%
Interagency Transfer 4,476,791 2,981,994 1,494,797 4,476,791 66.6%
Total Revenues $ 100,271,573 | $ 87,556,438 16,978,383 | $ 104,534,820 | $§ 4,263,247 87.3%
Expenditures
Salaries $ 45802,691 | $§ 37,403,673 7,902,615 [ $§ 45,306,288 | $ (496,403) 81.7%
Other Compensation 201,377 146,135 55,242 201,377 72.6%
Related Benefits 19,883,952 17,163,099 2,556,786 19,719,885 (164,067) 86.3%
Total Personal Services $ 65,888,020 | $§ 54,712,907 10,514,643 | $ 65,227,550 | $ (660,470) 83.0%
Travel 325,870 209,844 86,026 295,870 (30,000) 64.4%
Operating Services 10,688,986 6,297,859 4,462,127 10,759,986 71,000 58.9%
Supplies 937,411 494,367 234,170 728,537 (208,874)]  52.7%
Total Operating Expenses $ 11,952,267 | $§ 7,002,070 4,782,323 | $ 11,784,393 | § (167,874) 58.6%
Professional Services 1,101,480 1,035,950 65,530 1,101,480 - 94.1%
Other Charges 3,935,631 196,901 3,589,154 3,786,055 (149,576) 5.0%
Debt Services - -
Interagency Transfers 4,913,719 6,174,940 6,174,940 1,261,221 125.7%
Total Other Charges $ 9950830 |$ 7,407,791 3,654,684 | $ 11,062,475 | $ 1,111,645 74.4%
General Acquisitions 62,032 12,027 50,005 62,032 19.4%
Library Acquisitions 137,649 47,519 90,069 137,587 (62)
Major Repairs 62,000 - - - (62,000) 0.0%
Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs| $ 261,681 | $ 59,546 140,073 | $ 199,619 | $ (62,062) 22.8%
Scholarships 12,218,775 16,185,783 75,000 16,260,783 | $ 4,042,008 132.5%
Total Expenditures $ 100,271,573 | $ 85,368,097 19,166,723 | $ 104,534,820 | $§ 4,263,247 85.1%

Page 3




Southern University Law Center

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024
Over/(Under) | % Actual
FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24 Budget to Budget
Revenues
General Fund Direct 6,705,340 4,609,922 2,095,418 6,705,340 | $ 68.8%
Statutory Dedicated 191,980 96,314 95,666 191,980 50.2%
Federal - - - -
Self Generated
Tuition - Fall 2023 5,376,929 4,825,707 - 4,825,707 (551,222) 89.7%
Tuition - Spring 2024 5,035,879 4,465,335 - 4,465,335 (570,544) 88.7%
Tuition - Summer 767,123 188,084 718,113 906,197 139,074 24.5%
Out-of-State Fees 4,913,227 4,321,807 169,218 4,491,025 (422,202) 88.0%
Other 4,324,709 4,092,313 284,210 4,376,523 51,814 94.6%
Interagency Transfer - - - -
Total Revenues 27,315,187 22,599,482 3,362,625 25,962,107 | $§ (1,353,080) 82.7%
Expenditures
Salaries 15,343,775 12,828,940 2,508,344 15,337,284 | § (6,491) 83.6%
Other Compensation - - - -
Related Benefits 5,925,444 4,057,681 1,350,646 5,408,327 (517,117) 68.5%
Total Personal Services 21,269,219 16,886,621 3,858,990 20,745,611 | $ (523,608) 79.4%
Travel 505,000 323,759 100,000 423,759 (81,241) 64.1%
Operating Services 1,815,326 1,373,241 450,000 1,823,241 7,915 75.6%
Supplies 280,000 154,977 50,000 204,977 (75,023) 55.3%
Total Operating Expenses 2,600,326 1,851,977 600,000 2,451,977 | $ (148,349) 71.2%
Professional Services 1,250,000 548,877 20,000 568,877 (681,123) 43.9%
Other Charges 981,125 277,988 302,648 580,636 (400,489) 28.3%
Debt Services - - -
Interagency Transfers 264,517 340,271 324,735 665,006 400,489 128.6%
Total Other Charges 2,495,642 1,167,136 647,383 1,814,519 | $ (681,123) 46.8%
General Acquisitions - - - -
Library Acquisitions 300,000 262,732 37,268 300,000 87.6%
Major Repairs - - - -
Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 300,000 262,732 37,268 300,000 | $ - 87.6%
Scholarships 650,000 650,000 - 650,000 100.0%
Total Expenditures 27,315,187 20,818,466 5,143,641 25,962,107 | $ (1,353,080) 76.2%

Page 4




Southern University New Orleans Campus

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024
Over/(Under) | % Actual
FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24 Budget to Budget
Revenues
General Fund Direct 9,734,448 6,692,437 3,042,011 9,734,448 68.8%
Statutory Dedicated 552,652 261,424 291,228 552,652 47.3%
Federal - - - -
Self Generated
Tuition - Fall 2023 4,144,256 3,464,091 - 3,464,091 (680,165) 83.6%
Tuition - Spring 2024 3,760,661 3,258,589 - 3,258,589 (502,072) 86.6%
Tuition - Summer 815,662 258,845 556,817 815,662 - 31.7%
Out-of-State Fees 366,000 674,658 - 674,658 308,658 184.3%
Other 4,498,838 2,315,007 1,683,831 3,998,838 (500,000) 51.5%
Interagency Transfer - - -
Total Revenues 23,872,517 16,925,051 5,573,887 22,498,938 (1,373,579) 70.9%
Expenditures
Salaries 12,602,295 9,222,404 2,535,424 11,757,828 (844,467) 73.2%
Other Compensation - - - -
Related Benefits 5,040,918 3,307,376 887,398 4,194,774 (846,144) 65.6%
Total Personal Services 17,643,213 12,529,780 3,422,822 15,952,602 (1,690,611) 71.0%
Travel 20,000 20,000 20,617 40,617 20,617 100.0%
Operating Services 2,069,190 3,439,131 581,425 4,020,556 1,951,366 166.2%
Supplies 214,000 34,929 40,071 75,000 (139,000) 16.3%
Total Operating Expenses 2,303,190 3,494,060 642,113 4,136,173 1,832,983 151.7%
Professional Services 99,892 34,288 10,503 44,791 (55,101)
Other Charges 3,152,024 324,288 352,712 677,000 (2,475,024) 10.3%
Debt Services - - -
Interagency Transfers 299,198 678,416 - 678,416 379,218.00 226.7%
Total Other Charges 3,551,114 1,036,992 363,215 1,400,207 (2,150,907) 29.2%
General Acquisitions - - - - 0.0%
Library Acquisitions 125,000 182,419 - 182,419 57,419.00 145.9%
Major Repairs - - - - -
Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 125,000 182,419 - 182,419 57,419 145.9%
Scholarships 250,000 827,537 - 827,537 577,537 331.0%
Total Expenditures 23,872,517 18,070,788 4,428,150 22,498,938 (1,373,579) 75.7%

Page 5




Southern University Shreveport Campus

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024
Over/(Under) | % Actual
FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24 Budget to Budget
Revenues
General Fund Direct 7,531,907 5,178,182 2,353,725 7,531,907 68.7%
Statutory Dedicated 529,902 96,314 433,588 529,902 18.2%
Federal - -
Self Generated
Tuition - Fall 2023 3,961,944 3,558,880 - 3,558,880 (403,064) 89.8%
Tuition - Spring 2024 3,432,744 3,007,983 - 3,007,983 (424,761) 87.6%
Tuition - Summer 537,371 320,543 216,828 537,371 59.7%
Out-of-State Fees 181,500 285,375 - 285,375 103,875 157.2%
Other 1,170,391 553,304 617,087 1,170,391 47.3%
Interagency Transfer - -
Total Revenues 17,345,759 13,000,581 3,621,228 16,621,809 (723,950) 74.9%
Expenditures
Salaries 8,728,932 5,321,507 2,166,029 7,487,536 (1,241,396) 61.0%
Other Compensation - - - - - 0.0%
Related Benefits 3,868,603 2,285,671 1,016,807 3,302,478 (566,125) 59.1%
Total Personal Services 12,597,535 7,607,178 3,182,836 10,790,014 (1,807,521) 60.4%
Travel 43,000 34,830 15,000 49,830 6,830 81.0%
Operating Services 2,592,161 1,689,733 902,428 2,592,161 65.2%
Supplies 102,500 166,754 65,000 231,754 129,254 162.7%
Total Operating Expenses 2,737,661 1,891,317 982,428 2,873,745 136,084 69.1%
Professional Services 20,000 134,257 100,000 234,257 214,257 671.3%
Other Charges 426,000 596,631 490,259 1,086,890 660,890 140.1%
Debt Services - -
Interagency Transfers 1,464,563 805,259 659,304 1,464,563 55.0%
Total Other Charges 1,910,563 1,536,147 1,249,563 2,785,710 875,147 80.4%
General Acquisitions - - - - 0.0%
Library Acquisitions - - - - 0.0%
Major Repairs - - - - 0.0%
Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs - - - - - 0.0%
Scholarships 100,000 157,340 15,000 172,340 72,340 157.3%
Total Expenditures 17,345,759 11,191,982 5,429,827 16,621,809 (723,950) 64.5%

Page 6




Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

General Operating Budget Interim Financial Statement

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024

As of March 31, 2024
Over/(Under) | % Actual
FY24 Budget Actual Projected Total FY24 Budget to Budget
Revenues
General Fund Direct 11,123,420 | $ 7,647,348 3,476,072 | $ 11,123,420 | $ 68.7%
Statutory Dedicated 1,802,695 425,396 1,377,299 1,802,695 23.6%
Federal 3,654,209 910,945 2,743,264 3,654,209 24.9%
Self Generated
Tuition - Fall 2023 - - - -
Tuition - Spring 2024 - - - -
Tuition - Summer - - - -
Out-of-State Fees - - - -
Other - - - -
Interagency Transfer - - - -
Total Revenues 16,580,324 | $ 8,983,689 7,596,635 | § 16,580,324 | $ = 54.2%
Expenditures
Salaries 6,331,462 | $ 4,802,028 1,529,434 | $ 6,331,462 | $ 75.8%
Other Compensation 128,882 37,500 91,382 128,882 29.1%
Related Benefits 2,951,578 1,657,292 1,294,286 2,951,578 56.1%
Total Personal Services 9,411,922 | $ 6,496,820 2,915,102 | $ 9,411,922 | $ - 69.0%
Travel 231,441 134,045 97,396 231,441 57.9%
Operating Services 522,432 635,641 (113,209) 522,432 121.7%
Supplies 471,361 134,757 336,604 471,361 28.6%
Total Operating Expenses 1,225,234 | $ 904,443 320,791 | $§ 1,225,234 | $ - 73.8%
Professional Services 105,000 95,093 9,907 105,000 90.6%
Other Charges 2,285,808 29,141 2,256,667 2,285,808 1.3%
Debt Services - - -
Interagency Transfers 825,736 347,921 477,815 825,736 42.1%
Total Other Charges 3,216,544 | $ 472,155 2,744,389 | $ 3,216,544 | $ 14.7%
General Acquisitions 293,310 193,001 100,309 293,310 65.8%
Library Acquisitions - - - -
Major Repairs 2,433,314 2,803 2,430,511 2,433,314 0.1%
Total Acquisitions/Major Repairs 2,726,624 | $ 195,804 2,530,820 | $ 2,726,624 | $ 7.2%
Scholarships - - - -
Total Expenditures 16,580,324 | $ 8,069,221 8,511,103 | $ 16,580,324 | $ 48.7%

Page 7




Mission Statement

Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique

institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable

world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art research, creative scholarship, and
transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World.

LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

(Following Internal Audit Committee)

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda
4. Public Comments

5. Action Item(s)

AGENDA

A. Request Approval of Contracts, Amendments, Agreements, Grants,

Mobile Processing Trailers & Supply, LLC
Purchase Agreement

CLM Construction, LLC
Contract

Kingdom Builders Construction, LLC
Contract

Louisiana Public Service Commission
Award Agreement

Louisiana Public Service Commission
Award Agreement

Louisiana Department of Health (OBH)
Contract

etc... Equal to or Greater than $300,000.00.

Description

The Southern University Agricultural
Research and Extension Center will
purchase one 2024 53’ semi turnkey mobile
processing trailer for the purpose of
harvesting and processing live animals

Bid Documents (Contract, Insurance and
Bond Requirements, Affidavits, and General
Terms & Conditions for the Restroom
renovations al the Southern University
Laboratory School.

Bid Documents (Contract, Insurance and
Bond Requirements, Affidavits, and
General Terms & Conditions for the
exterior windows renovations at the
Southern University Laboratory School.

Award Agreement for renovations on the
John B. Cade Library

Award Agreement for renovations on the
F. G. Clark Activity Center

State’s Mental Health Promotion, Suicide
Prevention Training g system for
employees, contractors and other referrals
from the Office of Behavioral Health
(OBH)

Amount

$356,000.00

$522,622.00

$442,773.00

$518,057.00

$957,000.00

$807,876.00

SUS obo/
SUAREC

SUS obo/
SULS

SUS obo/
SULS

LA Public
Service Comm
SUBR

LA Public
Service Comm
SUBR




7. G.E. C, INC.
Professional Service Contract

Contractor agrees to furnish services to
the University as specified:
1. Review existing utility documents.
2. Geolocate and map ufility assets across
the main campus.
3. Categorize the existing utility
conditions, helping prioritize necessary
projects.
4. Assess current and prospective ufility
capacity for existing campus structures.
5. Determine futare utility capacity and
routing for planned campus expansions.
Utility Systems within the project to
include potable water, sanitary sewer,
natural gas, drainage, electrical, exterior

lighting, data and telecommunications

$ 1, 300,000,006

SUS

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment

Tony Clayton— Chair, Atty. Domoine Rutledge — Vice Chair

MEMBERS

Atty. Edwin Shorty, Mr. Jyron Young, Ms. Christy O. Reeves, and Ms. Maple L. Gaines

Mr. Myron K, Lawson - Ex Officio


























































PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Seller: Mobile Processing Trailers & Supply LLC Purchaser: Southern University System on behalf of
Chris Schmidt Southern University Ag Center
14235 County Road 154 Brian Phillips
Kiowa, Colorado 80117 Ashford O. Williams Hall
720-626-5180 181 B.A. Little Drive
mobileprocessingl0@gmail.com Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

This Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made effective February 26, 2024 by and between Mobile Processing
Trailers & Supply LLC, Chris Schmidt, (the “Manufacturer and Seller”), and Southern University Agricultural Center,
Brian Phillips, {the “Purchaser”} {collectively the “Parties”).

1.1

1.2

1.3

RECITALS

A. Seller desires to sell, assign, and transfer to Purchaser, and Purchaser desires to purchase from Seller
{1) one 2024 53’ x 8.5" x 11.5" semi turnkey mobile processing trailer.
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING Recital that shal! be deemed to be a substantive
part of this Agreement; the mutual covenants, promises, agreements, representations, and warranties
contained in this Agreement; and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby covenant, promise, agree, represent, and warrant as
follows:
ARTICLE | = ACQUISITION AND CLOSING

sale and Purchase Agreement. On the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Seller shall sell to Purchaser and Purchaser shall purchase from Seller, for the Purchase Price (as defined
below in Section 1.3 (a), the Mobile Meat Processing Semi Trailer and its associated equipment and
personal property items within the Units as described on the Equipment List attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit A.

Transfer and Bill of Sale. All necessary documents will be transferred to the Purchaser upon delivery of
said Unit. Including but not limited to Manufacturer Certificate of Origin and Bill of Sale.

a) Purchase Price.
The Purchaser shall agree to pay the Seller a sum of $356,000.00 for one (1) 2024 53’ X 85" X
11.5° Mobile Processing Semi Trailer (MPST). This trailer is for the purpose of killing and

slaughtering animals. Then cooling, cutting, wrapping, and freezing the meat.

b) Deposit of Purchase Price

Payment will be made by Purchaser and sent by money transfer once an invoice is received.
There will be at four (4} invoices sent by Seller based upon the purchased materials and work

-1-




2.1

3.1

performed. Final payment will be sent to Seller prior to delivery of the completed 53’ Mobile
Processing Semi Trailer.

ARTICLE II - TITLE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Representations AND Warranties. Sellers represent and warrant to Purchaser as of the date of the
Agreement, and as of the Closing, with each representation and warranty being material and being

relied on by Purchaser, as follows:

53

(a) Mobile Processing Semi Trailer will be free and clear of any lien, pledge, charge, adverse claim,
security interest, encumbrance (including any imposed by law in any jurisdiction), option, or right
to purchase of any kind once final payment is deposited in Seller’s bank account.

(b) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed, and delivered by Seller, and is the
legal, valid, and binding obligation of Seller, enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms,
except as such enforceability may be limited by equitable principles and by applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, moratorium, or similar laws relating to or affecting the
rights of creditors generally.

ARTICLE HI — REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER

Representations and Warranties. Purchaser represents and warrants to Sellers as of the date of this

Agreement, and as of the Closing, with each representation and warranty being material and being
relied upon by Sellers, as follows:

{a) Purchaser has the full right and power to execute and deliver this Agreement and perform its
obligations hereunder. The execution, delivery, and performance of the Agreement by Purchaser,
and the consummation by Purchaser of the transactions contemplated hereby, have been duly and
validly authorized by Purchaser.

(b) This agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Purchaser and is the legal, valid, and
binding obligation of the Purchaser, enforceable against Purchaser in accordance with its terms,
except as such enforceability may be limited by equitable principles and by applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, moratorium, or similar laws relating to or affecting the
rights of creditors generally. The execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement, and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will not conflict with, or result in any
violation or breach of or default under any operating agreement, partnership agreement, or
sharehoider agreement of Purchaser.

(c) There are no pending or actual or equitable proceedings, claims, or administrative actions against
Purchaser and, to the best of Purchaser’s knowledge, there are no facts or circumstances that would
give rise to any such legal or equitable proceedings, claims, or administrative actions against
Purchaser that will (i) adversely affect the ability of Purchaser to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, (ii) adversely affect any action taken or to be taken by Purchaser under this Agreement,
or (iii) restrict the authority or capacity of Purchaser to execute and deliver this Agreement or any
of the documents required hereunder.

-2



ARTICLE IV — COVENANTS OF ALL PARTIES

The Parties agree that from the date of this Agreement to the Closing:

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

Best Efforts. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Purchaser and Seller agree to use
their Best Efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, and to do, or cause to be done, all things
necessary, proper, or advisable under applicable laws and regulations to consummate and make
effective the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Further Assurances. From time to time following the Closing, each party shall execute and detliver (or
cause to be executed and delivered) to the other parties such other documents, assignments, and
instruments as such part reasonably requests to carry out the terms of this Agreement. This Section 4,2
shall survive the Closing.

ARTICLE V — DEFAULT AND REMEDIES; TERMINATION

Default: Remedies Generally, If any obligation under this Agreement is not performed as provided for
herein, the non-breaching party shall be entitled to pursue the remedies set forth herein. It is expressly
understood and agreed by the Parties that irreparable damage would occur if any of the provisions of
this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise
breached. Therefore, the Parties shall be entitled to an injunction to prevent breaches of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, in addition to any other remedy
to which they are entitled at law or in equity.

Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the start of construction of the
Units.

(a) By mutual consent in writing of Purchaser and Seller.

(b} By Seller if Purchaser breaches any of his representations, warranties, agreements, or covenants set
forth in this Agreement which is not curable or, if curable, is not cured within the (10) days after
written notice thereof is given by Seller to Purchaser; and in which event Seller shall be entitied to
retain up to 60% of the purchase price as liquidated damages, and Purchaser shall have no further
liability to Seller except for the loss of the 60% payment.

ARTICLE V1 — MISCELLANEOUS

Costs and Expenses. Purchaser and Seller shall each be solely responsible for and bear all their own
respective expenses, including without limitation, expenses of legal counsel, accountants, and other
advisors incurred at any time in connection with pursuing or consummating this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereby. The Seller is responsible for the cost of delivery of the Semi
Processing Trailer to the Purchaser’s Location near Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including Exhibit A hereto) constitutes the full, entire, and
integrated agreement between the Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and
supersedes all prior negotiations, correspondence, understandings, and agreements among the Parties
hereto respecting the subject matter hereof.

-3



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Assignability. This Agreement shall not be assignable by any party hereto without the prior written
consent of the other party except Purchaser may assign this agreement to a business entity in which
Purchaser owns an equity interest.

Binding Effect; Benefit. This Agreement shali inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties
hereto and their respective heirs, personal and legal representatives, guardians, and successors.
Nothing in the Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer upon any other person or entity
any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities.

Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable under present or future laws, the (a) such provision shall be fully severable and this
Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision were
not a part hereof; (b) the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect
and shall not be affected by such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision or by its severance from
this Agreement; and (c) there shall be added automatically as a part of this Agreement a provision as
similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as may be possible and still be legal,
valid, and enforceable.

Amendment: Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be amended, waived, or otherwise modified
except in writing signed by Purchaser and Seller. No action taken pursuant to this Agreement, including
any investigation by or on behalf of any party, shall be deemed to constitute a waiver by the party taking
such action of compliance with any representation, warranty, covenant, or agreement herein contained.
The waiver by any party hereto of a breach of any provision or condition contained in this Agreement
shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any other conditions

hereof.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed to be an original and all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts by facsimile signatures, and all counterparts of this
Agreement which are executed by facsimile signature shall be valid and binding as original signatures
for all purposes.

Applicable Law: Jurisdiction and Venue: Waiver of Jury Trail.

{a) This Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereunder shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana, without giving effect to conflict of laws
principles. Any suits, proceedings and other actions relating to, arising out of, or in connection with this
Agreement shall be submitted to the jurisdiction of the courts of the Nineteenth Judicial District Court,
Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana, and the parties hereby consent to and irrevocable waive
any claim against or objection to personal jurisdiction and venue in such court.

Counsel: Interpretation. The parties acknowledge that they have each been given ample opportunity
to consult with their own attorney or accountant regarding this Agreement, and that they have availed
themselves of such opportunity. Each party further acknowledges that it has participated in the
negotiation of this Agreement and that no provision shall be construed against or interpreted to the
disadvantage of a party based on the role of a party or its counsel in the drafting of this Agreement the
parties hereto intend that each representation, warranty, covenant, obligation, agreement, and
condition contained herein will have independent significance.

-4-




6.10

6.11

6.12

6:13

Due to unknown or unpredictable circumstances, a delivery date is not guaranteed or implied by word
of mouth or any form of written communication.

Change orders received after the start of construction will incur expenses to the purchaser as deemed
necessary by manufacturer. In the event of unique purchases to this unit(s) charges will be made prior
to the start of construction and could cause delays in construction.

Equipment owned by the purchaser will not be installed by the manufacturer and the manufacturer
assumes no responsibility for said equipment. Manufacturer will install utilities for said equipment
according to equipment manufacturers specifications.

Warranties: The manufacturer warrants the workmanship of the framework, axle mounts, aluminum

sheeting, vinyl panels, floor, and roof for a period of one year from the date of delivery except for

misuse, abuse, acts of God, normal wear and tear or accidents.

(a} If an issue arises involving the covered said items or equipment supplied by the manufacturer, the
purchaser must notify the manufacturer prior to any alterations, repairs, or removal of said items.
Any work or repairs performed on the unit and its systems by a third party will void warranties
unless express consent is provided by the Seller.

(b) Any expense incurred because of said actions will be the sole responsibility of the Purchaser.

(c) Equipment installed by the manufacturer is warranted by the individual equipment manufacturer
and not by Mobile Processing Trailers and Supply.

SELLER:

By:

Date

Mobile Processing Trailers & Supply LLC

PURCHASER:

By:

Date

Dennis J. Shieids, President-Chancelior
Southern University System on behalf of
Southern University Agricultural Center













































Reeves Coon and Fonderburg
03/26/2024 11;30 661500026327

THE GRAY INSURANCE COMPANY
THE GRAY CASUALTY & SURETY COMPANY

GENERAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

Bond Number: GSA4700061 Prineipal: CLM Construction, LLC

Project: Southern University and A & M College, Baton Rouge Campus
Bid Number 10315 Restroom Renovation for the Laboratory School

KNOW ALL BY. THESE PRESENT: 5, THAT 1he Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company, ¢orporations duly
organized and existing under the laws of Loisiana, and having their principal offices in Metairic, Louisinna, do hereby make, constitute, and
appoint: Baran H. Reeves, Ann Daron, Deborah L. Dillard, James Michac! Stephens, Reita Portman and Jeffrey B. Cnon of Monraoe,
Louisiana _|mnlly and severally on bebalf of cach ol the Compames named above its true and lawfill Atforsey(s)-in-Fact, l0 make, execute, seal
and deliver, for and on Jts bebnll'and os its deed, bonds, or other writings obligatory in the nature of'a bond, s surety, contrasts of suretyship as are
ormay be mqum:d or peninified by law, regulation, conlract or otherwise, provided that no bond or undertakin g or conlroct of suretyship exccuted
under this authority shall exceed the amount of

$25,000,000,00.

This Power of Attorney is granted and is signed by facsimile under and by the muthority of the following Resolutions ndopted hy the Boards of
Directors of both The Gray Insuranée Compnany and Tbe Gray Casualty & Surcty Company at meetings duly called and held on {he 26% day of
June, 2003

“RESOLVED that the Pregident, Executive Vice President, any Vice President, or the Secretary be and each or any of them hereby is authorized to
execute a power of Attorney qunhfylng the attorney named in the given Power of Atlorney fo execute on behalf of the Company bonds,

; underlokings, and all contracts of surety, and that each-or any of them is hereby authorized to aftest 1o ihe execiition of such Power of Attorney, and
to aitach the seal of the Company; and itis

FURTHER RESOLVED, thit ihe sipnature of such ofTicers and the sen] of the Company may be aflixed to any such Power of Attomney or 1o any
certificate relating thereto by fncsurule, and any such Power of Atforney or cerlificate bearing such facsiinile signature or facsimile seat shall be.
binding upon the Company now and iri the Tuture when so affixed with regurd to Aoy bond, undertaking or contract of surety to which it is attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Gray Insurance Company aud The Gray Cusualty & Surety Company have ¢aused their oflicial seals 1o be hereinto
offixed, and these presents 10 be 51gned by 1heir nulhonzed ofﬁcers this 4™ day of November, 2022, @

-

Michuoel T, Gray ' Cullen S. Pigke

Tresident President
The Gray Insurance Company The Gray Casualty & Surety Company

State of Louisiana

85,
Parish of Jefferson
On this 4%.day of November, 2022, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Michael T. Gray, President of The Gray Insurance
Company, and Cullen 8. Piske President of The Gray Casualty & Sutety Company, personally known to me, being duly sworn, acknowledged
that they signed the above Power of Attorney and affixed the seals of the companies us oficers of, and acknowledged snid instrument to be the

voluntary act and deed, of their companies. N .
.. w L_MIVLQ Wﬁ LM’
JW Leigh Anne Henican \6\%

NotN Ola;_gr ;‘ubli_c Leigh Anne Henicau
i otary 1L 0'92‘653 Notary Public, Parish of Otleans State of Loujsiana
w Orleans Parish, Louisiana My Commisgion is for Life

1, Mark 8. Manguno, Sceretay of The Gray Insurance Compuny, do hereby certify that the above and forgoing is a true and correct copy ol o
Power of Atiorney given by the companies, whichi is still in full foree and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have sel my hand and
alfixed ihe seals of the Company this 26th  day of Mareh 5 2024

1, Leigh Anne Henican, Secrctary of The. Gmy Cnsunlly & Surety Company » do hereby cerfify that the above and forgoing is a truc and correct
copy of a Power of Attorney given by the companies, which is'still in foll-force and effect, IN WITNESS WHEREOE, I have set my hand
nnd affixed the scals of the Compony thls 20m day of Maten = 2024

i o i













Reéves Coon and Funderburg
02/27/2024 10:52 695016018655
THE GRAY INSURANCE COMPANY
THE GRAY CASUALTY & SURETY COMPANY

GENERAL FOWER OF ATTORNEY

Bond Number: Bid Bond Principal: CLM Construction, LLC

Project: Bid #10315 Southern University and A & M College
Restroom Rencovations, Baton Rouge, LA

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surely Company, c_nrpora__liq_us duly
organized and existing under the laws of Louisiona, and having theit principal offices in Metairie, Loui siona, do hereby-muoke, constitute, and
uppomt Dm an H. Recves, Anu Dal ‘on, Deborah L. Dillard, J.xmca Michael. btcpl\ens, Reita Fortman and Jeﬂ‘rcy B. Cunn ofMum o,

and dclwer, for and on its behall and as its deed, bonds, or other. wruings obijgatmy in the ndturc ofa bond as surety, conllacls of surctyshtp as aro
or may be required or permitted by law,’ legu]auon coniract or otherwise, provided that no boid or underiaking or conttact of suretyship exeented
under this authority shali exceed 1l1c amount of

$25,000,000.00. ;

This Power of Attorney is granted and is signed by facsimile under and by ihe nuthority of the following Resolutions adopted by the Boards of
Directors of both The Gray lnsurancc Lompany and The Gray Casualty & Surcty Company al meetings duly called and held on the 26% duy of
June, 2003,

“RESOLVED, thal the President, Executive Vice Pres1dcnl, any Viee President, or the Seerctary be and cach orany of them hereby is authorized to
execute a power of Atiorney qualifying the attorney named in the gwen Power of Attorngy to execute on behalf of the Company bonds,
undcrlnkmgs, and all-contracts of surely, und that each or any of them s hereby authorized to attest to the execution of such Power of Attorncy, and
to attach thc sen] of 1hc Company; and 1l is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of such officers and the seal of the Company may be affixed 1o any such Power of Attorney or 1o any
certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any such Power of Altorney or cerlificate bearing such facsimile signature or [acsitnile seal shall be
binding upon the Company noew and in the future when so affixed with regard to any bond, underiaking of contract of surcty to which it is attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & :Surety Company have _L_aus.ed their officinl seals to be hereinto
affixed, and these presents to be signed by their authorized officers this 4* day of November, 2022. /

Michas! T. Gray Cullen S. Piske

President President
The Gray Insurance Company The Gray Casually & Surety Company

State of Louisiann
55

Parish of Jefferson
On this 4' day of November, 2022, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Michael 1. Gray, President of The Gray Insurance

Company, snd Cullen 8. Piske, President of The Gray Casually & Surety Company, personally known to me, being duly sworn, acknowledged
that they signed the above Power of Attorney ond aflixed the seals of the companies as officers of, and ncknowledged said instrument to be the

voluntary act and deed, of their companies, g
Leigh:Anne Henican 6}{%

Notary Publiic

&%  Notary iD No.92653
g Orleans Parish, Loulsiana

Leigh Anne Henicon
Notary Public, Darish of Orleans State of Louisiana
My Comunission is for Life

1 Matk S, Manguno, Sceretary of The Gray Insurance Company, do hereby certify that the above and forgoing is a true and correct copy of a
Power of Attorey given hy the companies, which is still in l‘ull force and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, l have set my hand and
afTixed the scals of the Company this 27th day of February ~ < 2024

m %%/‘M | o L

1, Leigh Anne Henican, Secretary of The Gmy Lasua}t) &. Suretgg_rjompm iy .do hereby certify that the above and forgoing is a true and correct
copy of a Pawer of Attorney given by the Gompanies, which is still in’ ﬂui foree and effect, IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have set my hand

and affixed the seals of the Company this 2Tth dny of Febary .- _‘_2024






















Officers

MICHAEL HEBERT
MEMBER, MANAGER
19545 RIVER BREEZE DR
BATOM ROUGE, LA 70816

LAURA HEBERT

MEMBER

19545 RIVER BREEZE DR
BATON ROUGE, LA 70816

Amendments on File
Description

Appointing, Change, or Resign of Officer

Date

06/10/2014


























































































Suvety Bond Solutions, LLC
04/01/2024 16:28 154312804385

THE GRAY INSURANCE COMPANY
THE GRAY CASUALTY & SURETY COMPANY

GENERAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

Bond Number: GS56500334 Principal: Kingdoni Builders Construction, LLC
Project: Exlerior Windows - Laboratory School

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT The Gray Insurance Compuny and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company, corporations duly
organized and existing under the laws of Loulsiana, and having their prineipal offices in Melajrie, Louisiana, do hercby mnake, constitute, and
appoint: Randolph A, Brunson, Flona ¥, Boyd, Miller B. Hitliord, and Myra L. Aupicd of Baton Rougg, Louisiana jelntly and severally on
behalf of each of the Companies named above its true and lawful Attomey(s)-in-Fact, to make, execitle, seal and deliver, for and on its behalf and as
its deed, bonds, or other writings obligatery in the nature of'a bond, a3 surety, contragts of surctyship as nre or may be required or permitied by law,
regulntion, contract or otherwise, provided that no bond or undertaking or contract of surelyship executed under this authority shall exceed the

amount of $25,000,000,00.

This Power of Aliorney is granted and is signed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following Resolutions adopted by the Boards of
Directors of both The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surely Company at meetings duly called and held on the 26™ day of
June, 2003.

“RESCLVED, that the President, Exeeulive Vice Pregident, sny Vice President, or the Secretary be and each or any of them hereby is authorized to
oxecute a power of Attorney qualifying the attorncy nuned in the given Power of Altorney o execute on behalf of the Company bonds,
undertakings, and all contracts of surely, and that each or any of them is hereby authorized to attes to the execution ol such Power of Attormcey, and
to attach the senl of the Company; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the sighature of such officers and the seal of the Company may be affixed to any such Power of Atlomey or to any
certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any such Power of Allorney or certificate bearing such facsimile sighature or facsimile scal shall be
binding upon the Company now and in {he future when so affixed with regard to any bond, undertaking or contract of surety to which it is attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company have caused their official seals 1o be hereinto
affixed, and these presents 1o be signed by their authorized officers this 4h day of November, 2022,

Michael T. Gray Cullen S. Piske

President. President
The Gray Insurance Company The Gray Casually & Surcly Company
State ol Louisiuna
55

Parish of Jefferson

On this 4' day of November, 2022, before me, 4 Notary Public, personaily appeared Michael T, Gray, President of The Gray Insurance
Company, and Cullen 8. Piske, President of The Gray Casualty & Surety Company, personalty known to tne, being duly sworn, acknowledged
that they signed the above Power of Atlorney and alfixed the seals ol the companies as officers of, and acknowledged said instrument {o be the

voluntary act and deed, of their compunies. .
YJH‘ e Nowl -
Leigh Anne Henisan

Nolary Public
$ Notary 1D No, 92653
w Orleans Parish, Louisiana

Leigh Anne Henican

Notary Public, Parish of Orleans State of Louisiana
My Commission is for Lifc

1, Mark S, Manguno, Secretary of The Gray Insuranoc Compaity, do hereby certify that the above and forgoing is a true und cotrect copy of

Power of Atforney given by the companies, which is still in full force and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and
alTixed the seals of the Company this 18t day of Aprll . 2024

e

I, Leigh Anne Henican, Sectetary of The Gray Casuaity &"_S'u._t‘_ret)_r'_(:dmp';my , do hereby certify that the above and forgoing is a true and correct
copy of a Power ol Attorney given by the companies W‘hg}:h is still in full force and effect. TN WITNESS WHLREOF, 1 have set my hand
and affixed the seals of the Company this 18t day of Apidl -y 2024 7L







This Power of Attorney llmiis the acts of thoge named herein, and they have no authority to
kind the Company except in the manner and fo the extent hereln stated,

[
leet’ty Liberty Mulual Insurance Company

Mut“a] The Ohlo Casualty Insurance Company Cerliicata No: 8205075-875775
S West American insurance Gompany
SURETY
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That The Ohlo Gasually Insurance.Company Js & camporation duly proanized wnder Lhe.laws of the Statg of New Hampshire, that
Liverly Mutuel Insurance Company 16 & corporation duly organized undar Lhe faws of he Skite of Massachusalls, and West American Insurance Company Is & carporalion duty organized

under the Jawé of the State of indlana {herein collectively called the *Companles), puréuant Lo and by authority hereln set forih, doss hereby name, conslitute and appalnt, Garrett T,
'I‘umer, Mary Caﬂ\erine Tumer, Ma&hmm C Turnar :

all of Lhe dily of ‘Daton Rouge Y A Y N eech Individually if there be more than one amed, 15 (o ang lawiyl a%turnay i maka,
wizewrle, saal, acknowledge and deiver, Tor and on s bahalf as etingly 6 oS Ils acland dest, any and.all underiskings, borkds, recoghizances and athar suraty ohiigations, In pursuance
of these pragenls and shall be a3 binding Upon the’ Cornpanias as If they have basn duly signed by the president snd eilesied by lne secrelary of Ihe Companles in thelr awn proper
pereans. < .-

IN wn_usss WHEREQF,'tha Pawer of Attomey has been aubscrbed by an auihorized officer or officlal.of the Companies and Lhe corporate saals of the Compailes have been affived
heretothis _22nd _deyef  March ., 2021 .

Libarty Mutuat frsurence Company
The Chio Casualty Insurénca Gompany
Weal American fnsuranca Company

8 W é’ 28
g Byo TN Garey, Aosioant S 25
avid M. Carey, Assistant Secrela
o 5 s ot PESLYAN ’ 4 £8
83 Counly of MONTGOMERY 16 g
u.g 2 loninis - 2264 -day of . March . 2021 ‘bfore me personally appeared David M. Carey, who acknowledged himself 1o be the Assistant Secrotary of Liberty Mulual Insutance § 2
,_-’g Company, The Ohlo Gasualy Company, and Wesl American Insirance Gompany, and that he, as sugh, being authorized 50 to do, exacuts the foregolng instrument for the purposasl%:z
,% = thareln oontained by slgnlng on behaif of the oo;pmﬂnns by himselfas a duiy authorized officar, L4 g
'93_% IN WITNEBS WHEREDF. ! have hereun!a subscribed my namaand affixed my notarial seal at King of Prussia, Pennsyivania, on the day and year first abova wiitlan, ga
=8
& . A.C
Q? eamn;mmdmmm-umwi f\ ;E
PL _ Torssa Pastala, Notay Publc }ﬂ O
8 ] My m"‘fs“m""’.’l}.ﬁ.?ﬁ"& 20,2028 ° 1241’(:!60 g E
ﬁ‘g Pl mummmm. Teresa Pastelia, Nolary Pilbic LG
=) BQ
1+ putt-2
-E’.g This Pawer of Attomey 18 made and exgouled pursuanl to and by duthordly of the following ByJaws and. Aulhonizations of The Ohle Casually Insurance Cermpany, Liberly Mutual g%
g = | nsurance Compeny, and West Amerlcan Insurance Company which resolutions are naw in full force and effact reading a8 folfows: L8
Pt} ARTICLEWV - OFFICERS' Secﬂm 12, Powor of Atlomey, 3“09
=R Any officer oF Other official of the Gorporation authérized for hal: purnose In wiiting by the Chaliman or the President, and subject 1o such kmitaiion a3 the Chelrmen or the EE
2 President may prescribe, shall appoint such altomays-in-fagl, as may be netesaary 1o acl in behal of the Comokation o make, exscule, saal, acknowledge and deliver assurely| &5 —
g any and all underiakings, bonds, Tecognizances and other suraty ohigations. Such altomays-in-lacl, subjee! to the Himbtations set forih in thelr respaclive powers of attomey, shall z g8
o g have Tull power to bind the Comoration by their sighature and execulion of any such instrumants ang fo atlach Ihereto the seal of the Corporation. When so executed, such| G o
~ o inshuments shal be as bindlng as |f lgned hy the Prasident and attested o by tho Secvelary. Any power or authorty granled bo any represenlafive or atlomey-infact under the [ %
(= 81
L

provislons of mls artice mayba Tevoked al. any l;ma by the Board, {he Chalrman, the President ar by tha officer or officars granting stich powar or authorily.

ARTICLE Xl Execution of Contracts: Secllon 5. Sureiy Bonds and Underlaldngs.

Any offer of the Gompany authorized for that purposa in wiiting by the chalrman or the president, and subjact to such timitations as the chalrman or he proskient may prescribe,
shall appoinl such attomeys-n-fac), as may be hecessary lo act in bishalf of the Company to make, Bxeeits, seal, acknowledge and doliver as suraly any.and ell underiakings,
bonds, recognizances and other surely ohligations, Such aitomeyi-indact subjaet fo Ihe limitallons sat forth In thelr respecive powers of attomey, shall have full power 1o bind the
Company by thelr slgnature and execution of any such [nstiuments and to atlach thereto he seal of the. Company. When so exacuted such Instruments shall e as binding as if
slgned by ihe president and atlasted by the secolary.

Certificate of Bazlgna\lon "The President of the Companhy, acting pursuant 1o tha Bylaws of the Company, suthorizes David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary o appolnt sush altomays-in-
facl as may ba hecossary 10 acl on behalf of the Company o make, mieculs, sesl, acknowledge and deliver as surely any and all underlakings, bands, recopnizances and olner Eurely
obrgalloﬂs ’

Authorlzation - By unanimous congénl of the Company's Board of Directors, the Compeny consenta that fecsimile or mechanically reproduced sigrialur of any assistant secretary of he
Cnmpany. wheraver appéaring upon a certified copy of sy power of atlomey issued by the Company In connsetion with uursly bonds, shalt be valld end binding upon the Gompagy with
the sama foma and offect o though rnanually affixed. -

I, Rense C. Ltewaliyn. e indersigned, Asslstant Socralary, The Ohlo Casuelty Insurance Gompany, Liverty Mutual insurance Compeny, and West American Insurance Company do
hereby Gestty hat the origlnal power of atlomey of which the faregoing ks @ full, Lrue and comegt copy of the Powar of Attomay exetatad by seld compamas. 1s {i fuii torea and affad and
has not been favoked,

N TES‘HMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunio sat my hand and aﬂb(ed lhe saals of said Gompantes this 23rd _ dayof Eebruary gggfl

| Ranae 0'. uéweilyn. ‘Assistant Secretary

LMS-12673 LMIC OCIC WAIC Mulli Co 02721







Surety Bond Solutions, LLC
04/01/2024 16:28 154312804385

THE GRAY INSURANCE COMPANY
THE GRAY CASUALTY & SURETY COMPANY

GENERAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

Bond Number; G556900334 Principal: Kingdom Builders Construction, LLC
Project: Exicrior Windows - Laboratory School

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company, corporations duly
organized and existing undsr the laws of Louisiana, and having their principal offices in Metairie, Louisiana, do hereby make, constitule, and
appoint: Rondelph A. Brunson, Fiona J. Boyd, Miller B, Hilliard, and Myra L, Aupied of Baton Rouge, Louisiana jointly and severally on
behalf of cach of the Companies named abovo its true and lawful Attorney(s}-in-Fact, to make, execute, scal and deliver, for and on its behalf and as
its deed, bonds, or other wrilings obligatoty in the nature of a bond, ns surely, contracts of sufetyship as are or may be required or permitted by law,
regulation, contract or otherwise, provided that no bond or undeniaking or contract of suretyship executed under this authority shall exceed the
amount of $25,000,000.00.

‘This Power.of Altorney is granted and is signed by facsiinile under and by the authority ol the following Resolytions adopted by the Boards of
Direclors of both The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company &t mectings duly called and held on the 26™ day of
Tune, 2003.

“RESOLYED, that ihe President, Execwtive Vice President, any Vice President, or the Sceretary be and each or any of them hereby is authorized 1o
execute a power of Attorney qualifying the attorney nanied in the given Power of Atloriiey 1o execide on behalf of the Company bonds,
undertakings, and all contracts of surety, and that each or any of them is hereby authorized 10 attest to the execution of such Power of Attomey, and
to attach the senl of the Company; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of such officers and the seal of the Company may be alfixed to any such Power of Attomney or to any
certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any such Power of Altorney or cerlificate bearing such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be
binding upoi the Company now and in the future when so aflixed with regard to any bond, undertaking or contraet of surety to which it is atlached,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Gray Insurance Company and The Gray Casualty & Surety Company have caused their official seals to be hercinto
alfixed, and these presents 1o be signed by {heir authorized officers this 4™ day of November, 2022,

Michoet T. Gray Cullen S. Piske

-

President ' President
The Gray Insurince Company The Gray Casualty & Surety Company
State of Louisiana
85I
Parish of Jelferson

On this 4% day of November, 2022, before me, a Notary Public, personaily appeared Michael T. Gray, President of The Gray Insurance
Company, and Cullen S, Piske, President of The Gray Casualty & Surety Company, personally known to me, being duly swom, acknowledged
that they signed the obove Power of Attorney and affixed the seals of the companies as officers of, and acknowledged said instniument to be the

voluntary acl and deed, of their companies. ,
bd SR N
Leigh Anne Menican \

Natary Publig
£\ Notary iD No. 92653
g Orleans Parish, Loulslans

Leigh Anne Henican
Notary Pubiic, Paish ol Orleans State of Louistana
My Commission is for Lile

1, Mark S. Manguno, Secretary of The Gray Insurance Company, do hereby certify that the above and forgoing is a true and correet copy of 2
Power of Attorney given by the companies, which is still in full force and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have set my hand and
affixed the seals of the Company this 18t day of Aprif , 2024

L L

1, Leigh Anne Henican, Secretary of The. Gray Casualty & Surcty Comﬁm ~dohereby certify that the above and forgoing is a {rue and correct
copy of 1 Power of Attorney given by the companies, which s still in'full force and effect, IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have set my hand
and affixed the seals of the Company this 1st  day of Aprl y 2024 I













POA#H 1810055

JOINT LIMITED POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN DY THESE PRESENTS: That SureTec insurance Company, a Corpaoratiop duly organlzed and existing undet the laws of the State of Texas and having its
principal office in the County of Harrls, Texas and Markel Insurance Company (the “Company”), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the state
of linois, and having its princlpal administrative office in Glen Allen, Virginia, does by these presents make, constitute and appolnt;

Kathleen L. Berni, George V. Baus Jr., Edward J, Murphy Ili, Gregory R. Weston, Jean Viola

Their true and lawfut agent(s) and attorney(s}-in-fact, each in their separate capacity if more than one is names above, 1o make, axecute, seal and deliver for and on
thelr own behalf, individually as a surety or Jointly, as cd-3uretles, and as thelr act and deed any dnd all bonds and other undertaking in suretyship provided, however,
that the penal sum of any oné such instrument executed hereunder shali not exceed the sum of;

Fifty Million and 007100 Doliars ($50,000,000.00)

This Power of Attarney is granied and is signed and sealed under and by the autharity of the following Résolutions adopted by the Doard of Directors of SureTec
Insurance Company.and Markel Insurance Company:

“RESCLVED, That the Prestdent, any Senior Vice President, Vice President, Assistant Vice President, Secretary, Assistant Secretary, Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer
and each of them hereby I3 authorized to execute powers of alterney, and such authority can be executed by use of facsimile signature, which may be attested or
acknowledged by any officer or attorney, of the company, qualifying the attomey or attorneys named i the given power of attorney, to execute in behall of, and
acknowledge as the act and deed of the SureTec Insurance Company and Markel Insurance Company, as the case may be, all bond undertakings and contracts of
suretyship, and to affix the corporate seal thereto.”

iN WITNESS WHEREOF, Markel Insuranee Company and SureTec Insurance Company have caused their officiat seat to be hereuitto affixed and these presents to be
signed by their duly authorized officers on the 25m  day of January ;2023 .

: VB iy
E SureTec Insurance Company -3\:\\\';::'.?“\";15?""
SEREO %
. §> Ky ;3,_5‘%::
‘ el 25; SEAL 5
By / e, b rRT
Y=t B g TS
Michael C. Keimig, President I
gHT

State of Texas
County of Harris:

Onthis 250 dayof Junuary , 2023 A.D., before me, a Notary Public of the State of Texas, in and for the County of Harris, duly commissioned and gualified,
came THE ABOYE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANIES, to me personally known to be the individuals and officers described in, who executed the preceding Instrument, and
they acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me duly sworn, dispased and said {hat Lhey are the officers of the said companies aforesald, and that the
seals afflaed to the proceeding Instrument are the Corporate Seals of said Companies, and the sald Corporate Seals and their signatures as officers were duly affixed

and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and direction of the said companles, and that Resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of said Companies
referred to in the preceding instrument Is now in force.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand, and affixed my Official Seal at the County of Harris, the day and year first above written.

" JULIE E. MCCLARY

Notary Public State of Texas Bv:(}ﬁ be g . ma

Com"?jssm", # 12047660-5 Julie E. McClary, Notary Public
Commission Expires M.awh 29, 2026 y commission expires 3/29/2026

Wa, the undersigned Officers of SureTec Insurance Company and Marke! Insurance Cempany do herby certify that the original POWER OF ATTORNEY of '_Nhich the
foregaing Is a full, true and correct copy is stilf in full force and effect and has not been revoked. :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands, and affied the Seals of said Companies, on the _23rd day of : February . 2024: .

U, sur, Company Miarkel Insurance Company
B By _, ,:

M. Brdnt Beaty, Adsistant Seciatary /\ndréw WMatquis, Askisként Sedrftary

Any Instrument Issued in excess of Lhe panalty stated above Is totally void and without any valldity, 1840065
For verification of the authority of this Power you may call {713}8£2-0800 on any business day between 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM CST.




Ot _
ACORLS CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE AT e

4/3/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND GONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY ANEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE .A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poiicy{les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endersed.
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, ceitain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificaie does not confer rights to the certificate holder In Yieu of such endorsement(s). .

PRODUGER . [CONTACT  Samear Khan
THE WOODLANDS FIN GRP-BR409 (AL, o, Exy; (B55) 201-8934 | TA% noy,(281) 407-6250
5700 NW Central Dr Ste 100 | Abpress: Skhan@twifg.com
Houston, TX 77092 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERNGE NAKC #
msurer A : Evanston Insurance Company 35378
INSURED lNSU.ﬂERB:
KINGDOM BUILDERS CONSTRUCTION LLC
INSURERC :
337 N. 25TH STREET INSURER D ;
BATON RQUGE, LA 70802 INSURERE :
_ INSURERE-:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD.
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE ‘FOLICIES DESGRIBED HEREIN 15 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

JE&‘ TYPE OF INSURANGE W POLICY NUMBER ‘ﬁﬂ_ﬁm iﬁﬁﬁ%}%‘;} LIMITE
24| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIAGILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
I CLAIMSMADE OCCUR "ﬁéﬁf‘%’é’i"?“ﬁ" ey |3 100,000
- MED EXP (Any orie person) s 5,000
Al ] Y | Y | 3AA478194 6/20/2023 | 6/20/2024 | personaL& ADviILRY |5 1,000,000
| GEN't AGGREQATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
|| POLICY EE(?.T l:] Loc PRODUGTS - COMPIOP Aca | s 2,000,000
OTHER: ha
_Ag'ror:gsn.e LABILITY EEREO SNGLE T — 5
ANY AUTO BOOILY INJURY {Parparson) | $
| AUTOS onLY AUTOS DNLY (Per aceident) !
UMBRELLALAB | | acouR EAGH OCCURRENCE s_3,000,000
A [X] excessuas N camsmage] Y | Y | EZXS3117316 6/20/2023 | /2012024 | AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
oED | Trerenmons - - $
e T A (S [ 13
ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE E.L EAGHACCIDENT . 3
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? NiA
{Mendatory In NH) EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH $
DL RETION OF SpcRATIONS below EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES {ACORD 104, Additional Remearks Schedula, may be attached H more spaca i required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOLLD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
Southern University ASM College Baton Rouge THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
801 Harding Bivd ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Baton Rouge, LA 70807

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Susmeer W Akt

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights raservad.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registerad marke of ACORD




Raney Landry

SECRETARY OF STATE
S Ferstong of Sots of e Sots o Lriionas I hrodly Corly o

In response to your request we are pleased to provide the information on the subject
Limited Liability Company which flled articles of organization in this office on January

17, 2008,

Name: RONALD JOHNSON INVESTMENTS L.L.C
Type: Limited Liability Company
City: BAKER
Status: ACTIVE
Business: RONALD JOHNSON INVESTMENTS L.L.C
Charter Number: 3663B569K
Registration Date: 1/17/2008
Domicile Address
‘ 4848 MYRTLE ST

BAKER, |A 70714
Mailing Address

C/O RONALD T, JOHNSON JR.

4848 MYRTLE STREET

BAKER, LA 70714
Status: ACTIVE

Annual Report Status:

In Good Standing

Last Report Filed: 21112024
Type: | Limited Liability Company
Registered Agent(s)
Agent: RONALD T. JOHNSON JR.
Address: 4848 MYRTLE ST

Page 1 of 2 on 2/23/2024 9:50;13 AM



City, State, Zip:  BAKER, LA 70714
Appointment Date: 1/17/2008
Officer(s) - Additional Officers: No
Officer: RONALD T. JOHNSON JR.
Title: Manager, Member
Address: 4848 MYRTLE STREET
City, State, Zip: BAKER, LA 70714

Amendments on file

Date Description

3/31/2022 DomesticLLC Agent/Domicile Change
3/17/2023  Appointing, Change, or Resign of Officer

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and caused the Seal of my Office to be
affixed atthe City of Baton Rouge on,

February 23, 2024

Moy fondhio

-Web 36638569K

Certificate ID: 11847834#LUL73

To validate this certificate, visit the following web site,
go to Business Seyvices, Search for Louisiana
Business Filings, Validate a Certificate, then follow
the instructions displayed.

wWww.sos la.gov

Page 2 of 2 on 2/23/2024 9:50:13 AM



Rancy Landry
SECRETARY OF STATE
S Sreting of Tt ke Sots oy Loisionss I ool Cortf s

the annexed and following is a True and Correct copy of the Certificate of Organization
as shown by comparison with document filed and recorded in this Office on January 17,
2008.

in testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and caused the Seal of my Office to be
affixed at the City of Baton Rouge on,

February 23, 2024

ﬂow. c«a M Certificate ID: 118478354UXM73
To validate this certificate, visit the following web site,

go to Business Services, Search for Louisiana
Business Filings, Validate a Certificate, then follow

L%.;@% /L%é the instruclions displayed.

WWW.sos la.gov
VWeb 36638569K

Page 1 of 1 on 2/23/2024 3:50:13 AM




Jay B

SHRCRETMAIRY I STATNS

4 »%’me!m# of Haale, (/1) the Hate of. Foutstanes, Fedo herely, (ge?,/%ﬁ/, Ll

a copy of the Articles ¢f Organization and Initial Repert aof

RONALD JOHNSON INVESTMENTS L.L.C

Domiciled at BAKER, LOUISIANA,
Was Ffiled-and recorded in this Office on January 17. 2008,

And all fees having begen paid as required by law, the
limited liability company is authorized to transact business
in this State, subject to the restrictions imposed by law,
including the provisions of R.S. Title 12, Chapter 22.

T festimon Y mﬁe?_apf_ﬁ S have herearilasel

iy Heendaned eartied lie }_(-}_:cr/ (/ 7] ?fy’- (/WFN

le be eoffiivedd ol Hoe %{y off Preton Forge an.,
January 17, 2008

WHE 3663¥8569K

Secrelanyy of Tl

(U







3/28/23, 2:09 PM : geauxBIZ

Officers

MICHAEL WICKER
MANAGER

337 NORTH 25TH
BATON ROUGE, LA 70802

TARAWICKER
MANAGER

337 NORTH 25THST.
BATON ROUGE, LA 70802

SAMONA GAUDET

MEMBER

101 STUDENT UNJION, STE, 16458
BATON ROUGE, LA 70803

SHERMAN RUTH
MEMBER

10044 HAGEWOOD DRIVE
BATON ROUGE, LA 70809

Amendments on File
Description Date
Appointing, Change, or Resign of Officer 10/12/2020

Appolinting, Change, or Resign of Officer 07/14/2022







< 600 North Street, Baton Rouge, 70802 % {225)}765-2301 8 Text-To-Verify: 1 {855) 995-7856 n

Louisiana State Licensing Board for Contractors

Contractor Information

Business Name
Mailing Address

Phone Number
Emall Address
Website

Active Licenses
License Number
Type
Status
Effective
Expiration
First issued
L|cense thber
Type
Status
Effective
Expiration
First Issued

Classifications
Class

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION

Kingdom Builders Construction, LLC

PO Box 4182
Baton Rouge, LA 70821

(225) 953-1904
mikewicker@kbcinfo.org
http://

70964

Commercial License
LICENSED
1171972021
11/18/2024
11/18/2020
888605

Residential License
LICENSED
08/16/2023
08/15/2026
08/15/2022

Qualifying Party
Samona Gaudet

Sherman Gerald Ruth









The successful bidder shall be required to furnish a Performance and Payment Bond
written by 2 company licensed 10 do business in Louisiand, in an amount equal to 100%
of the contract amount and who is cuetently on the U.S. Department of the Treasury
Financtal Management Service List.

Bidders shall include the following on envelope of choice: company’s name, address,
Louisiana contractor s llcense number bid number, bid opening date and time.

Bids may be withdrawn by written, telegrap}nc fax notice or email and received at the
address ‘or email address designated in the Invitation to ‘Bid prior to the time set for bid
opeoning, s recorded by date stamp at the Purchasing Office.  Bids received after closing
time will be returned unopened. Evidence of authority to submit the bid shall be required

in accordance with R.S. 38:2212(a)(1)(c) and/or R.8. 3%: 1594(0)(2)(d)

The Southern University System is a participant in the Lovisiana for the Small Entreprencurships

Program (the Fudson Initiative) and the Louisiana Initiative for Veterans and Service-Connected

Disabled Veteranis-Owned :Business Small Entrepreneurships. ‘Bidders . are encouraged 1o

consider: pmtlclpatlon A list of certlﬁed vendors and additional mformatlon can _be obtained
WIATLVATA

from - webmte i “Potential ‘perticipants may also register at this
websife. '

ALL BID SPECIFICATIONS CAN BE OBTAINED BY ACCESS]N GTHELA
STATE I’ROCUREMEN_T WEBSITE ’

. Any. qucstmns com:ermng bid documcnts please contact Mary Jane Spruel, Assistant
- :Du'ector of Purchasmg at (225) 771-2800 or email to. Maryjane. spmel@subr edu

_'_'The Umvcrsﬂy reserves the nght to rc;cct all bids and to waive any informalities
- -incidental thereto Bids will ‘he accepted only from contractors who are licensed under
_'Louisiana R.S.: 39 2150-2173 * for the oclassification of; 72000000 Building and
o fConstructlon, and ‘Maintenance Serwces' 72100000 Building .and Construction, and
' _-_'antcnﬂnce and Repau‘ Servwes, 72131600 ‘Commercial or Industrial Construction.

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY & A&M COLLEGE
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
Lmda A.. Antome, Director of Purchasing
: “DATES ADVERTI§ED
.TANU ARY 24 & JANUARY 31 2024 & FEBRUARY 7, 2024

























E

GENERAL TERMS, CONDITIONS AND UNDERSTANDING

In addition to the specific terms and conditions in the award letter dated March 21, 2024 to
which these General Terms, Conditions and Understandings are attached, the Louisiana Public
Service Commission is approving your application for the Statewide Energy Efficiency Program
contingent upon the following:

A. Expenditure of Funds:

Energy Efficiency Program application awards are to be used only for the purposes described in
the approved application. Expenditure of funds will not occur until 100% of the project is
completed by the contractor. Should the contractor fail to complete the project or not adhere to
the purposes stated in their application, there will be no expenditure of funds.

B. Commencement of Project:

Projects must commence within six months of the application approval notification date or the
application approval may be withdrawn. Commencement means the contractor has begun
physical work described in the application. At which point, a Notice of Commencement should
be in accordance with the Required Notifications Section F below, as well as to the District
office. '

If such commencement of the awarded project is not carried out, the project will be considered
stale and no longer an actively awarded energy efficiency project of the Commission, unless
written request for extension is sent to the to the Commission in accordance with Section F of
this document and such extension request is approved by the District Office.

C. Program Year Schedule and Amount of Funds Disbursement:

Program Year 2023
Southern University- John B. Cade Library
TOTAL: $518,057.00

D. No Assignment or Delegation:

You may not assign, or otherwise transfer, your rights or delegate any of your obligations under
this program.

E. Records and Reports:

You are required to keep a record of all receipts and expenditures relating to this program and to
provide the Louisiana Public Service Commission Executive Secretary with an annual evaluation
report for a period of three (3) years from the award date on the results of the energy efficiency
project. This report shall contain at a minimum:

a. Entity Name
b. Project Location
¢. Project Description



Amount of Funds Received
Amount of Funds Expended
Efficiency Savings

Final Project Cost

o o

Reports are to be sent to:

Louisiana Public Service Commission
Galvez Building, 12 Floor

602 North Fifth Street

Post Oftice Box 91154

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-9154
Attn: Brandon Frey, Executive Secretary

Re: Statewide Energy Efficiency Program, Docket No. R-31106,
(*“Applicant’s Name”)

F. Required Notifications:

You are required to provide the Louisiana Public Service Commission Executive Secretary with
written Notification of the following:

(1)  Pursuant to Section B above, upon the start of each project a written notice shall be sent
notifying the Executive Secretary of the project commencement date along with an estimated
completion date. The Notification is to include:

o Detailed / up close pictures of fixtures / equipment that is being upgraded / removed, as well
as an area view of the room / area. Where possible the pictures must denote equipment
model number and manufacturer.

e Physical Address / location where fixtures / equipment is to be installed.

(2. Project updates are to be given to the District office at least once every three months in a
form agreed upon by the applicant and the District Office. If these updates do not show
continual work being completed by the contractor, the Commission has the discretion to provide
thirty (30) day notice that the project award will expire.

(3.)  Upon the completion of each project a written notice shall be sent notifying the Executive
Secretary of the project completion. The notification is to include:

e This notification should include detailed / up close pictures of fixtures / a brief (1-3
sentences) written explanation of the value provided by each piece of new equipment
installed / equipment that was installed (after installation), as well as an area view of the
entire room / area. Where possible the pictures should denote equipment model number and
manufacturer.

e Physical Address location where fixtures / equipment were installed.

e A copy of material invoice(s) to serve as proof of purchase for model and quantity of
equipment outlined in the application. Model and quantity of purchased equipment on the
invoice must matched model and quantity installed for this project.




e A copy of most recent utility bill(s)
(3.)  Notices are to be sent to:

Louisiana Public Service Commission
Galvez Building, 12" Floor

602 North Fifth Street

Post Office Box 91154

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-9154

Attn: Brandon Frey, Executive Secretary
Re: Statewide Energy Efficiency Program, Docket No. R-31106,
(“Applicant’s Name”)

(. Disbursements:

Payment of approved application funds by the utility are to be remitted at the conclusion of the
project after inspection for verification is done by Project Team, which is to include on-site
inspection and review of required documentation included in the project completion notification.

H. Reasonable Access for Further Evaluation:

You will permit the Louisiana Public Service Commission and/or its representatives, at its
request, to have reasonable access during regular business hours to your files, records, accounts,
personnel and clients or other beneficiaries for the purpose of making such financial audits,
verifications or program evaluations as the Public Service Commission deems necessary or
appropriate concerning this program award.

The undersigned certifies that he/she is authorized to accept this award to obligate the applicant
to observe all of the terms and conditions places on this award, and in connection with this award
to make, exccute and deliver all agreements, representations, receipts, reports and other
instruments of every kind.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

Mr. Dennis J. Shields, President- Chancellor Date
Southern University '

Mr. Mike Morris Date

MM Energy Solutions










GENERAL TERMS, CONDITIONS AND UNDERSTANDING

In addition to the specific terms and conditions in the award letter dated March 21, 2024 to
which these General Terms, Conditions and Understandings are attached, the Louisiana Public
Service Commission is approving your application for the Statewide Energy Efficiency Program
contingent upon the following;

A. Expenditure of Funds:

Energy Efficiency Program application awards are to be used only for the purposes described in
the approved application. Expenditure of funds will not occur until 100% of the project is
completed by the contractor. Should the contractor fail to complete the project or not adhere to
the purposes stated in their application, there will be no expenditure of funds.

B. Commencement of Proiect:

Projects must commence within six months of the application approval notification date or the
application approval may be withdrawn. Commencement means the contractor has begun
physical work described in the application. At which point, a Notice of Commencement should
be in accordance with the Reguired Notifications Section F below, as well as to the District
office.

If such commencement of the awarded project is not carried out, the project will be considered
stale and no longer an actively awarded energy efficiency project of the Commission, unless
written request for extension is sent to the to the Commission in accordance with Section F of
this document and such extension request is approved by the District Office.

C. Program Year Schedule and Amount of Funds Disbursement:- -

Program Year 2023
Southern University- F.G. Clark Activity Center
TOTAL: $957,000.00

D. No Assignment or Delegation:

You may not assign, or otherwise transfer, your rights or delegate any of your obligations under
this program.

E. Records and Reports:

You are required to keep a record of all receipts and expenditures relating to this program and to
provide the Louisiana Public Service Commission Executive Secretary with an annual evaluation
report for a period of three (3) years from the award date on the results of the energy efficiency
project. This report shall contain at a minimum:

a. Entity Name
b. Project Location
c. Project Description




d. Amount of Funds Received
e. Amount of Funds Expended
f. Efficiency Savings

g. Final Project Cost

Reports are to be sent to:

Louisiana Public Service Commission
Galvez Building, 12% Floor

602 North Fifth Street

Post Office Box 91154

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-9154
Attn: Brandon Frey, Executive Secretary

Re: Statewide Energy Efficiency Program, Docket No. R-31106,
(“Applicant’s Name”)

F. Required Notifications:

You are required to provide the Louisiana Public Service Commission Executive Secretary with
written Notification of the following:

(1)  Pursuant to Section B above, upon the start of each project a written notice shall be sent
notifying the Executive Secretary of the project commencement date along with an estimated
completion date. The Notification is to include:

e Detailed / up close pictures of fixtures / equipment that is being upgraded / removed, as well
as an area view of the room / area. Where possible the pictures must denote equipment
model number and manufacturer.

e Physical Address / location where fixtures / equipment is to be installed.

(2.)  Project updates are to be given to the District office at least once every three months in a
form agreed upon by the applicant and the District Office. If these updates do not show
continual work being completed by the contractor, the Commission has the discretion to provide
thirty (30) day notice that the project award will expire.

(3.)  Upon the completion of each project a written notice shall be sent notifying the Executive
Secretary of the project completion. The notification is to include:

o This notification should include detailed / up close pictures of fixtures / a brief (1-3
sentences) written explanation of the value provided by each piece of new equipment
installed / equipment that was installed (after installation), as well as an area view of the
entire room / area. Where possible the pictures should denote equipment model number and
manufacturer.

e Physical Address location where fixtures / equipment were installed.

e A copy of material invoice(s) to scrve as proof of purchase for model and quantity of
equipment outlined in the application. Model and quantity of purchased equipment on the
invoice must matched model and quantity installed for this project.










LDHCR

Revised 2023-08-13 Pape 1 of 7

CONTRACT BETWEEN STATE OF LOUISIANA
LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

1) Effectre Date 41} Terminaton Date

12 Maxdmom Gantract Amoaos

1) Terms of Payment
I rogrem and for complation of worvies dee provided to tha saisbicrisn of 1he kaltasing O fiive/Facility, papmea o 1o be made as

follows

Teet

Conmactar phEgased 10 submir fnal buvgloes 10 Agenoy within ffees {13) dars afie fenination of contoiét,
4] PAYMENT WILL BEMADE Flrse Mome Lot Macme

ONLY UPON AFFROVAL OF:

Types of Amachmeuis knd Exhibhe
TETACAMENTS
* Srasttent of work




LDH CF4
Revised 2023-08-12 Poge 2ol ¥

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor hareby agrees {o the following terms and conditions:

1.

Discrimination Clause: C  herelry agress to abide by the requirements of the following, as appicable: Seciion 1857 of the
Patient Pmotection and Aflordable Care Act (42 U,S.C, §18116)%: Tite VI of tha Civil Rigitts Acl of $9684 (42 1.5.C. §2000d, &t seq.);
Titla VH of the Civil Rigils Acl of 1964 (42 U,5.C. §2000e, et seq.); Tille 7 of the Education Amendments of 1972 (30 U.5,G, §1691, et
seq); tha Age Discimination Act of $976 {42 L.5.C. §8101, &t seq.); Section 504 of 1he Rehabilitation Acl of 1973 (26 US.C. §TH4);
Saction 508 of the Rehabiitation Aol of 1973 {20 U$.C. §794dy; the Amarcane with Disablities Acl of 1880 (42 LLS.C, §12104,
ot 5eq.; the Viatnam Era Veterans® Readjustment Asslslance Acl of 1874 (38 U.S.C. §4212); the Falr Housing Act of 1868 (42 U.5.C.
§3801, et s9q); and Federal Executive Order 11246; and all applicable requirements imposad by of pursuant to the regulations of the
U1 8. Department of Healh and Human Services.

Contractor agreas not to discriminala In the rendering of senvcas to andior employment of Individimls becausa of race, color, relgion,
sax, sexual orlentation, age, nadonal crighn, disabiity, politicat effiiation, veleran stalus, o any cther norHment factor. Amy act of
discriminetion commitied by Comraciar, or Eilure to tomply with thesa y obllg; when applicable, shall be g for
termiaation of this Coatract.

Confidentiality: Contracior shall ablde by the laws end reguistions concaming confidentetly whith safegusrd information and
patienticlient confidentiality. Information obtalned under this Contrect shall not be used In any manner except a3 necessary for the
proper discharge of Contractor's obligations. {Contractor shall establish, subject to review and approval of the Department,
confidentiality rules and facilty access procedures.}

Right to Audit: The Louisiana Legisiaiive Auditor, Office of the G -, Division of A , and Departmsnt auditors or (hoge
designated by the Depaitment shal have the option of auditing ell accounts pestalaing to this Contrect during the Contrect and for @
period of five (5} years following final payment. Contractor grants to tha State of Loulstana, {hreugh the Office of the Loulsiana
Leglslativa Auditor, Loulglana Dep t of Health, and State Inspactor Qeneral's Offfce, Federal Govemment andior other such
officially designated body the Hght to Inspect and review alt books and recards pertaining lo services randered under thls cortaet, and
Turther agrees to quilefnea for Nlscal adminisiration as may be promuigated by the Department. Records wil be mads avallable during
nanmal warking hours,

Gontrattor shall eomply with fedaml end state laws and/or Department policy requiring en aydit of Contractor's opemation as a whole
or of specific program activities, Audit reports shall ba sent within thirty (30} days after tha complétion of the audit, but ao fater than alx
(6} months after the end of the audit period. 1f an audit ls performed withirt the temn of Lhis confract, for any perled, four (4} coples of
the audit report shellbe sent lo the Loulstana Department of Health, Aftentior: Division of Fiscat Managamant, P.Q, Bax 81117, Baton
Rouge, LA T0821-3727 and ona {1} copy of the audit shail be sent to the otfginating office within the Department.

Record Retentlon: Contractor agreas 1 retaln ali books, records, ead other decuments melevant to the Contract end funds
expanded thereumder for &\ least four (4) years afler final payment of as prescribed in 48 CFR 75.361, whichever s longer.

Contractor shall make available 1 the Department such records within thirty (30} days of the Depariment's writtan request end shall
deliver such records to the Department’s central affios In Baton Rouga, Louisiana, ell without exp lo the Department. Conlractos
shall allew the Depariment to Inspact, ewdit, or copy records st Contractor's s, without expensa to the Department

Record Ownership: All records, reports, & and other ial defivered or transmitled to Contracior by the Department
shall ramaln $1e property of the Dapartment, and shall be retumed by Contracior to the Dep 1, at C ’ Bxp at
termination or exqiration of this contract. All reconds, reports, dacuments, or olher matera! related to this Coniract andlor obiained or
prepared by Contractor in connection with the parformance of the services contracted for herein shail become tha property ot the
Depariment, end shall, upon request, be retumed by Contracior to the Departm t, at C 'S exp , et termination or explration
of this contract.

Nonaesignability: Contractor shall not assign any interest [n this Contract end shalf not transfer any interest [n the sama (whethar by

- asslgnmentor novation), without writien consent of the Department heseto, provided, however, Uhat clafms for monay dua of fo become

10.

1

12.

due to Conbactor from the Department under this Contract may be assigned fo a bank, bust company, of other finandlal nsthution
without advanced approval, Notice of any such esslgnment or transfer shalt be promptly fumished to the Department and the Division
af Adminlstration, Offica of State Procurement.

Taxes: Contrecior hereby agrees that the respansibliity for paymen of taxes from the lunds recsived under this Contract shall be
Corractor's. Contractor sssumes responsibiity for Hts p | providing servicas hi der and shall make wli deductions for
withhalding taxes, and contributions for unemployment oampensation funds.

{nsurance: Contracior shall obialn and malmtaln during the tamm of this Contract el Y § Including a 1!
| workars' compensaton insurance, and general iability insucance. The required Insurances shalé protect Conlractor, the
Loulsiana Department of Health, and the State of Loulstana trom al dalms related 1o Contraciors performiaints of Wi contracl
CertNicates of Insurance shall ba Hled with the Department for approval, Said pollcles shall not be cancaked, pemitted o axple, orbe
changed without thirty (30) days edvance wiiten nofice to the Def it G rckal j Liablity k shall provide
protection during the performance of work coverad by the Contract from caims or damages for personal injury, including accidental
desth, as wedl as caims for property damages, with combined sinple Bmits prescribed by the Dspariment.

Travel: in cases whete travel and related expensus are required {o be identified separate from the fse for servicas, such costs shail
ba In accordancs with State Travel Regutations. The Conlract cantains 8 maximum compensation thal shall be nclusive of all charges
including fees and travel expenses,

Polltical Astivities: No funds provided hereln ehall be used Lo urge any slector to vola for of agalnst any candidate or proposifon on
an efection bafiot ror shall such funds. ba used to lobby for or against any proposiion of matter having the eflect of aw being consldered
by tha Leglsiatuce of ey jocal governing authority, This provision shall not prevent the noamat dk Han of factual infe i
relative to a propasition or any election ballot or a proposition or matler having the effect of law being conskiered by tha Legislature or
any kocal goverming authordty. Contracts with indhiduals shall be exempt from this prevision.

State Employment: Should Contractor become an empioyea of the dassified or unclassified service of the Stale of Lowslzna durng
the teqm of the contrast, Contractor must noify hisfer appointing authortty of any exdeing Contract with the Stafe of Louisiana and
notity the contracting office with the Department of any addiionat $lala empioyment. This 15 applicable only lo contracts with
IndhAdusals.

Ownershlp of Proprietary Data: All non-third pary softwane and source code, records, reports, documeants, and other materal
dallvered or transmitied 1o Contracter by the State shall remain the property of the State, and shall be retumed by Contractor to the
State, at Gontraciors expense, at termination or axpiration of this contract. All non-third party software and solrce code, records,
reports, documents, or other material reiated to tis Gontracl and/or obtained of prepared by Contractor In connaction with the
performancs of the services contracted for harein shell become the: property of the Stats, and shall be retumed by Contraclor o the
Stala, at C tor's expenso, al termination or expialion of thts cantract.




- LDH CF-1
. : Revised 2023-08-13 Pagadof 7

13. Subcontracting: Gontaclor shall not enter Tnlo any subcontrect for work o aedvices conlemplalad under this Contract without
oblaining prior writien approval of the Dapartment. Any subcontracts approved by the Depatment shall be sublect 1o conditions and
prowisions as the Department may deem necessary; provided, however, that notwithstandirtg the foregoing, unkess clhensise provided
In this contract, such prior written epproval shail pot be requlred for the purchase by Contracter of ttems and services that ere Inddental
but necessary for the performance of the work required under this contract.

No subcontract shalt refieve Contractor of the responsibility for the pedormence of contractual obfigations described hain,

14, Confiict of Interest: Contraclor acknowledges that the Code of Govemmental Ethks, La, R.S. 421101, el seq, applies ta
Conlracior in the performancs of services under this contracl Contraclor warrants that no person and no entity providing sesvices
pursuantto this Contract on behalf of Contractor or any suboontmctor Is prohibked from providing such services by the provisions of La.
R.5.42:1113. Contracior agrees to lmmediataly nofify the Departmant if polential violations of lhe Code of Govemmantal Ethics arse
&t any time during the tecm of the contract

16. Unauthortzed Services: No claim for services fumished or requested for relmbl nt by Contractor, nat provided for fn this
wontrad, shall be aliowad by the Department. bn the event the Department detenmines that certai costs hat have been relmbursed to
Conlraclet p k this or previous « are not allowable, the Department shall have the rdght to offset and withhakd sald

amounts frem any amount due to Gonlractor under this Contract for costs hat are aliowable.

46. Fiscal Funding: This Contrect ks subject to and conditioned upen the availability and eppropration of federal and/or stata funds; and no
llzbliity or abligation for payment will develop betwaan the parties uatll the Contract has been approved by required authorties of the
Department; and, f Contract sxceeds $2,000, the Diiston of Administration, Office of Stale Procurement.

‘The canlinuation of this Contradl s ingent upan the appr ion of furkds from the Legistature to fulll the requirementy of the
contrack if the Leglskature falis to appropriale sufficient mondes to provide for the ion of the or if such eppropiiation ls
reduced by the velo of Ihe Govemor or by any means provided In the appropriations act io prevent the total appropriation for the year
from exceeding revenuas for that year, o for gy other lawful purpase, end the effect of 2uch reduction [ to provide ingufficlent monles
for the contlnuation of the contract, the Contract shalt terminate on the date of the beginning of the firet fiscat year for which furds are
nolappropriated.

7. State and Federal Funding Requirements: Contractor shali comply with all applicable requiremants of state or federal &avws of
lions relating o G: r's recelpt of state or federa! funds under this contract.

If Contractor Is & *aubreciplent’ of federal funds under this coritrast, as dafined in 2 CFR Part 200 (Uniform Adminlstrative
Requi s, Cost Princp wrd Aot Requirements for Federal Awards), Gonfractor shall comply with all appicable
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Including but not imHzd o the following:

+  Contractor must disclose any potential conflict of interest bo the Department and the federal awarding agency as required by
2CFR§200.112,

. G tor must disclose to the Deparimant and the federal awarding agency, Umely and in writing, al violations of federal
criminal ws that may affect the federat award, & required by 2 CFR §200.113.

« Contractormust safeguard protected parsanally [dentifiable information and other sensitive information, &3 required by 2 CFR
§200,303,

« Contractor must have end follow wittien procurement standards and procedures in : with federally approved
methods of procurement, 85 requined by 2 CFR §§200.047 - 200,326,

»  Coniracior must comiphy wih (he sudit requinsments set torth Jn 2 GFR §5200.601 - 200,621, a3 apphicable, ncuding bl not
fimited ta:

o HEectronic submission of data and reports to the Federal AwiR Clearinghousa {FAC) (2 CFR §200.51 Ad)).

o Ensuting that reparts do notinciude protected pevsonally identiable information (2 CFR §200.5120){2}).

Notwithstanging the provislons of paregraph 3 (Auditors) of thess Terms and Coadillons, copies of audiLreports for audits conductad
pursuant lo 2 CFR Part 200 shall re be required to be sentto the Department.

18, Amendments: Any alterabion, varabion, modification, or walver of provisions of this Conlract shall ba vatid only when reduced o
writing, as an amendment duly signed, and epproved by requited aulhorities ofthe Dapariment; and, If the Contract exceeds 35,000, by
the Divialon of Adminigtratian, Office of State Proc st Bukdget revish P Iry both parties in cost reimbursement contracts
do not require an amendment if the revision only Tavoives the realignment of monkes betweon ofginally approved cost categaries.

19, Non-Infingement: Contractor will waman! all maferisls, products, end/or services produced hereunder wili not infringe upon of
violate any paient, copyright, trade secrel, or other propriatary right of any third party. In the event of any such clalm by any third party
against the Department, the Departnrent ehall prompity noliy Contracior fn writing and Comtmcior shall defend swch claim In the
Depatment's name, but at Contractor's exp and shall indemnify and hold the Department harmless agakst any foss, expense,
or iabflity arlsing out of such ctalm, whether or not such tlalrm s successtul, This provision Is nol appiicabla to contracts with physidans,
paychisirists, psychologlats, or other aifed bheaith providers sclely for madical sorvices,

20. F d Eq t: Any equipment purch d under this Gontract remaing the property of Contractor for the period this Contract
and future continuing contracts for the provision of the same services, Contraclor must subrnit & vendor Invoice with tha relmbursement
request. For the purposa of thls contract, equipment s defined as any langlbie, durable property having a uselu fife of al least (1) year
and acquisiion cost of ane thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or more. Gontractos has the responsibitty to submit W the Gontract Monitor
an Inventory list of equipment liems when acquired under the Contract and any edditions io the disting s they ocour. Contracior witi
submitan updated, completn invenkary List on a quarerly basis o the Conlract Monitor, Conlractor agrees thed upan ternination of the
o d sendces, the squipment purchased under this Conlract reveits (o Lhe Depastment Contractor agrees to defiver any such
equipment to tha Department within thirty (30} days of temination of services.

2

=

{ndemnity: Contractor agrees to proteat. indemnty, and hold hamless the Stala of Loulaiana end the Dep 1 from alk claims for
d cnsis, exp and atomey fees aulsing in Contract or tord from this Conlract or from any acts or omisskang of Contractor's
agants, subcontraciors, ampioyees, officers, or clients, Induding, bul not limited to, pramises (kabillty and ary clalm based o amy bheory
of strict Imblity. This proviskon does not apply to actions or omlsslana for which La. RS, 40:1237.1, ef seq. provides malpractice
coverage to Contractor, nor clalms related to treatment and perk of gvatuations of p when such perscns cause ham o
third parties {La. R.S. 13:5108.4{E}). Further, it does notapply to premises Iablity when Lhe senices are being perd d on praml
owned and opevatad by the DepartmenL




LCH €F-1

Revised 2023-06-13 Paga4of ¥

22,

2%

24,

28,

26,

27.

28,

29,

30.

E)N

.

M

3%.

Severablfily: Any provision of this Contracl ks severable if that provision Is in violation of the laws of the State of Loulslana or the
United States, or becomes Inoperative dus 1o changes In stale of federal faw, or spplicable state or federal regulations.

Entire Agreement: Contractor egrees that the curent Conbract supersedes ali provious contracts, neg allons, and ali other
communications between the parkies with respect to the subject matter of this contrack.

EVerify: Gontracior acknowledges and aprees to comply with the provision of La. R.S. 36:2212.10 and federsl law pertaining to
E-Verify in the pefarmance of services under this contract.

Remedies tor Dafault Any claim oe contraversy arlsing out of this Gantract shall be rssalvad by the provisions of Le. RS,
89;1672.2-1072.4.

Other Remedlos; i the Contraclor fails o perform In accardance with the terme and conditions of this Contract, or if any lien or dlaim
for damages, penalties, costand the Hke Is asserted by or agalnst the State, then, upon notice (o the Contractar, the State may pursue
all temedies available 1o K at law or equly, Indluding netalning mornles from amounts due tha Comtractor and proceeding against any
surely of the Contraclor.

Governing Law: Thia Contracl shall be govemed by and interpreted In eccordence with Lhe laws ot the State of Loulslana, including
barl, i Gmiited to Le, R.S. 39;1661-1736; rules and regulati orders; d terms and condiions, and spacificationa

tistad in the Request for Propasals (RFP), if applicable; and this oontract

Contraclor's Cooperation: Contractor has the duly to fully cooperata with the Stale and provile any and oli requested information,
docimaniation, etc. to tha State, when requasted, This applles even if this Contract is terminated andior a lawsLit is fited. Specifically,
Contractor shall not Bt or fmpeda tha State's right Lo Budit or shall not withhold State-owned documents.

Continulng ObTigation: Cortractor has & continuing obligation to disthse to the Dapartment any suspension or debarment by any
govemmant entity, Inciuding, but not fmited to, the General Services Administration {GSA). Failure to dizciose may constitula grounds
for suspension andlos tenminatian of the Contract and deb t from futune

Eligibllity Status: Contractor and each fier of subcontractors, shail certity that i is not excluded, disquailfied, disbarred, or
suspended fram contracting with or receiving Federal funds of granis from the Federal Govemmant. Centractor and each tier of
subcortractors shall certity that i s not on tha List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Nonprocurement Programs
pomuigated in socordanca with Execirive Orders 12548 and 12669, and "NonProcurement Debarment and Suspension” set forth at 2
CFR Par 378,

Act 244 Taxes Clause; In accordance with La, R.S. 38:1624{A){10}, the Loulstana Depariment of Ravanue must determine that
Contractor [s curtent in e filing of all appilcable tax retums and repozis and fn paymant of all taxes, intaragt, penaities, end fees owed
(o the Stals and col d by the Loulglana Dep of Revenue pricr to the approvel of this Contract by the Office of State
Procurement. Contractor hereby sttesls to Hs cument andfor prospective compliance, end agrees to provide Hs seven-digit LDR
Account Number to the Department so that Contractar's tax payment compliance status may ke werfisd. Confractor furlher

led| tanding that b of & tax clearance cerificate by the Loulsiana Department of Revenue 13 a necessary
pracanditioz to the approval and effeciveness of this Contract by the Office of State Procutement. The Depariment reserves the dight
{o withdraw Hs consent fo his Conlract without penalty and proceed with alternate ts should C fail (o resale
any [denlified apparent outstanding tax compliance discrepancies with the Loulslana Departmant of Revenue within seven {7}
business days of such notification.

Terminatien for Cause: The Depertment may terminaté this Convact for tause based upon the fallure of Contractor to comply with
the tarms andior conditions of the corract; provided that the Department shall give Centractor waitien notice speclying Contractor's
failure. If within thirty {30) days after recelpt of such notice, Contrecior shall not heve either comected such fallurs of, In the case of
taliure which cannot be comected in thiry (303 days, begun in good falth to comect said fallure and therafter proceeded diigenty lo
oomplele slich correction, then the Departmest may, &t Ks option, placa Contractor In defauit and the Contrad shall termiate on the
date spectfied in such notice, G clor may exercise any rights avalizble 10 { under Loulstana law to erminste for cause upan he
fasiure of the Department to comply wih the terms and conditjons of this conlract; provided thal Contracior shall give the Department
writtens natice specifying the Departmenta fallure and a reasonable opportunity for the State to cure the dafect.

Termination for Convenlence: The Depariment may lemminate this Contract at any fime by giving thiry (30) days waitten notice to
Contractor, Contractor shalt be entitied to payment for deliverables in progress, to the extent work has been performed satisfactorily.

Confidentiality: Confsactor shell protect from urrauthorized use and disciosure all information relating to the Stata'a operations and
deta {e.g. Fnanclal, slatistical, p I, technical, elo) lhat b available ko the Conlractor in camying ut this Conlract
Contractor shall use protecting measures thatvra the same of more effective than those used by the State, Conlractor |5 not required
to protect information or data Uvatls publicly evailabie outside (hascops of this Contract; already ightfully in the Conraclor's pessesslon;
independantly developed by the Contractar outside the scope of this Conftract: or rightfully obtalned from third parlles. Under no

shall 1ha Contracior discuss andiof reease Information ta the madia cancaming this project without prior express witten
approval of the Slate.

Prohitillon of Disciminatory Boycotts of fsrask In accord with La. R.S. 38;16021, any Conlract for $100,000 or move and
for any contraclor with five (5) or hore employess, Contractor, and any subconiractor, shail certify it is not engaging in a boyoott of
Israed, and shad, for the duration of this Contrach, refral from a boycolt of Lsrael. The State reserves the dght to terrlnats this Contract
K Canbractor, or any subcontractor, i 2 boycott of israel during the term of the conlracL

By

Cybersecurity Tralning: In accordanics with Ls. R.S. 42: 1267 {B)(3) and lhe State of Laulsiane'a Information Securlty Policy, i the
Conlractor, any of s employees, agents, or subcontraclors will have access to Stele government information technology essets,
the Contracior's employees, agents, of subconlracters with such atcess must complets cybemesurily trakning ennuaty, and the
Contracior must present avicance of such compfience snnually and upon request The Contractor may use the cybersecurlty
wraining course offered by the Louisana Department of State Civd Senvce without addiional cost.

For purposes of this Section, “access to State govemment infacmaton technology assets® means the possession of credentials,
equipment, or authorizalion to access thé intemal worklngs of State Information technology systams of networks, Examples would
tnclude but not ba Imied to Statelssusd isptops, VPN credentfals to credentials to access the Stals networl, badging to access the
Stale's telecomm dossts or sysl lseions lo maintain or modfy IT systems used by the Slate. Final

or p
determinatlon of stope inclusions or extlustons refative to access fo State government Information Yechnology assets will ba
made by ths Offica of Technology Sarvices.




LDH CF-1

Revised 20230613 Pags 5ol 7

36.

ar.

38,

38,

40.

a1,

42

4.

Cotle of Ethlea: The Contractor acknawledges that Chapter 15 of Titke 42 of the Loulslana Revised Stalines (R.S, 424101 et seq,
Coda of Govemmental Ethies} applles to the Co Hng Party In the p of services called forin this Contracl The Contractor
ag1mas to Immediately notify the state if potential viclations of the Goda of Govemmantat Ethles arise at any tima during the tem of
thls Contract.

Counterslgnature; This Conlract may be executed In bwo or more counterparts, each of which ghall be deemed an original, bu all
of which, 1aken togelher, shall tonstitube one and tha same Instrument.

No Employment Retationship: Nothing in thls Coriract ahalf ba constived Lo create an smployment of apency refationship,
partrership, or jolnt verfture batween the empioyess, agents, of subcontraciars of Contracior and the Stela of Loulsiana,

Venue: Venue for eny aclion brought with regard to this Contract shall be in tha Nineteenth Judicial District Coun, Parish of East
Balon Rouge, State of Louistera.

G lasfoner's 51 ts: acis, and omlesi mada by of on behalf of the C of A Istration
tegarding the RFP ar REP process, this contract, Goatractor, and/or any subcontraclos af Contractor shall not be deemed a confMct of
Interest when tha Commisshoner Ls discharging his dutles and responsiblifies under law, Including, but not fimited, Wothe Commissloner
of istration's ity kn p maters, R

Order of Precedence Glause; [n the ovent of any inconsistent or Incompatible provisions in & Contract which resutted from an
RFP, Ihis signed Contract (exduding e RFP and G clo's prapoesal) shall fake p followsd by the provisians of the
RFP, Bnd lhan by the terms of Gonlracior’s proposal. This Order of Precedence Glavse appiies only fo conlracts thal resulfed from
an RFP,

Contractor must comply wih the Office of Tethnology Services (0TS} Information Security  Polley,
LX) I gov) formationSecurity.

a  Contraclar must report to the Stae any known breach of secirity no [ater than forly-elght {48) hour aker confimmation of
i evenl. Notify the Information Security Team (4ST") by calling the Information Security Hotline at 1.844-692-8012 and
emaling the eecurity ieam at infosecleam@fa.gov.

b. Contractor must follow OTS Informatien Seeurtty Palicy for Data Sanitization requi ts for aury equip placed during
the Contract and at tha end of the cantract, For all equipment which house confidentiairestricted data provided by the State.

& Contractor must ensure approprate protections of data is ins ecoordance with HIPAA Rules and HITECH Acts.

d. I Contractor wili have aocess to data originating from the Ceniers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), hen
Conlractor must ensure thelr computar system le in compliance with CMS fatest version of the Minfmum Acceptabla Risk
Standards for ges (MARS-E) Ix t Suite, curently MARS-E 2.0. The CMS MARS-E 2.0 requiraments include
But are net limibed 1o the bedow Osted requlrsmants:

»  Muliactor authentication i3 a CMS requirement for all remote users, privilaged s and non-privileg
accounts. In this context, B *romoate uses” Is referencing stoff accessing the network from offahe, nomnatly with a
diantvirhual private natwork with the abllity to access CMS data.

s Perform criminat history check for all staff prior to granting access to GMS data. All employeea and contraclors
requling acsess to Patient Profection and Affordable Care Act {PL 111-148) sensitve information musl mest
personnel suitabifity standards. These sukabifty standards are based on a valid need-lo-know, which cannat be
assumed from posion or title, and favarable resuls from & background check. The background checks for
prospestive and existing emplayess (if not praviously completed) should include, at a minimum, conbacting
mferences provided by the emplayee as well as tha local law enforcement agency or agencies.

HIFAA l A zate Provisk

If Conlracior is a Business Assodate of the Department, as that tenn is defined heceln, because Contractor glther; {a) oreates,
recelves, Ins, or transmilg protected health imformation (PH) for or on behalf of the ey t; or (&) provides kegal, faj,
accounting, coneuliing, dats aggregation, i, fre, ditation, or finencial sarvices for the Department imvoiing

the disclosure of PHL, the Tollowing provisions will apply:
a. Definitions; As used in these provisions -

I The lerm "HPAA Relea” refers 1o tha fadenal regulations known ais the HIPAA Privacy, Security, Enforcement, and
Breach Natiication Rules, found at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 184, which were originally promulgaied by the U, 5.
Department of Hesith and Human Serviees (DHHS) pursvant to e Heallh insurance Portabiity and Accountabliity
Adt (HIPAAT of 1998 and wero sub Uy ded p t fo the Health Information Technology For
Econornic and Ciinkal Health (HITECH™ Azt of the American Recovery and Reinvestent At of 2009.

. Theterms "Business Associale”, "Covered Entity”, “disclosure”, “electonic pratected health information” Cetectonic
PHIY, ‘health care provider, ‘hesith lafomation”, *health plan’, "p d health informaton” (FHIY,
*subcantracior, and “use” have the same meang as set forth in 45 CFR §180.103.

. The term *securfty Incideat has the eame meaning as set forlh in 45 CFR §164.304,

W, The tenms “breach® and “unsecured protected health information” (unsecured PHIM have the same meaning as set
forth In 45 CFR §164,402.

b. Conbracior and #s agenis, employess and sulx fars shali comply with ail applicable requinementa of the HIPAA
Rules and shall maintain the cor tafity of all PHI obtained by them p t lo lhis Contract. 83 required by the
HIPAA Rules and by this Contracl.

L v tor shall use or disclose PH) solely: {a) for meeting its cbligalions under the contract or (b} as requiced by law,
rule, regulation {Including the HIPAA Rules), o as otherwisa requlred of peimitied by this Contrect

d. Contractor shall implement and utiize ail appropriate safeguards to pravent any use of of PHi pot required
or panmitad by thls Contract, Including administretive, phyeical, and technicel safeguards thet reasonably and
ppoprataly protect tha iy, Integrity, and avallability of the etectronic protacted haalth information thet
creales, i tntains, or its on behalf of tha Department.

e. In accoidance with 45 CFR §164.502(e)(1}) and (If applicable) §184.308(b)(2), Cortractor shall gnsure thet any
agents, employees, subconiractors, of others thal creata, receiva, maintaln, or ransmit PHi on behalf of Contractor agree to
e 2ama restriclions, tondibons, and requinements that apply to Conlractal with respedt to such information, and i ehalf




N 1DH GF-1

. Revised 2023-06-13 Pago 8 of 7
ensure that they implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect such Informabion. Confractor shalt take ail
reasonable eleps to ensure that Its agants', employess’, oF subec ctors’ actions or omissions do not cause Contraclor io
violate this Contracl.

{.  Contractor shall, within three (3) days of becoming ewaue of any use or disclosune of PHI, other then as pemitted by
this Contrad,, reporf such discksure In wiiting to the person(s) named In Tenns of Paymen on page 1 of this
document. Disclosures which must be reported by Contractos include, bul are not limited fo, any security incident, any
breach of unaecured PHI, and 2ny "breach of the securlty system’” as defined in tha Lovlslana Database Security Breach
Notificalion Lew, La, FLS. §1:3071 ef seq. At the opilon of the Dapariment, ey kamn o damage resulting from any use
or dlsdosure which violales this Contract shall be mitigated, to the extent practicable, elther; (a) by Contracior ot is own
xpense; of () by the Depertment, In which case Gonlractor shall reimburse tha Department for alf expanses that the
Depertmen ts required & incur In undertaking such mitigation activities.

g. To the extent that Contractor is 1o camy out one or more of the Department's obligations under 45 CFR Parl 184, Subpart
E. Conlracior shall comply with the retuinements of Subpart E that apply io the Department &1 the pedormance of
such obligation(s). .

h. Contractar shall make availabla such ian in it p ton which s required for the Department {0 provkie
an acoounting of disciosures jn accsndance wiin 45 CFR §164.528, In the event that & request for accounting Is made
directly to Contractex, Gontracior shall forward such request i the Department within two (2} daye of such recelpl.
Contractor shal implement an approprate record keeping process 1o enabla it {o comply with the raquirements of this
peovision, Contractor shall malntaln data on all discl of PHI for whith acoounting s required by 46 CFR §164.528

far gt [east six (8) yeare after the date of the fast stich disdosure.

I, Contractor shall make PH! available to the Department upon reguest In accondance with 45 CFR5164.524.

J. Gontractor shall make PHI avalleble to the Dapartment upon reques! for amandment and shall incocporate any
amendments 1o PHE In accordance with 45 CFR §164.620.

Kk Contractor shall make its intemal praciices, books, and recoids relating to the use and disciosure of PHI recalvad from
or created or recelved by Gontractor on behalf of the Department avahiable to the Secretary of the DHHS for pwposes
of datermiaing the Depariment’s compliance with the HIPAA Rules.

I Gontractor shatl indemnity ard hotd the Department harmless from and egainst any and all (labllies, dalms for

13ges, COSlS, Exp and * fees resulting from amy violation of this pravislon by Contractor or by {ts agents,
amployees or subcontracines, withoul regard o any limitation or exclusion of damages provision othenvise sel forth in the
contracl

m. The parties agree that the legal refationship between the Depariment and Contractor is sticlly an ndependant
coriracior retatipnship. Nothing Un this Contract shall be deemed to craate a jolnt veniure, egency, partnership, or
player- employog ip the Departmant and Coatractor.

. Notwithstanding any other provision of the canract, the Deparlman shal heve the right to terminate the Contract
immediately f the Department determines that Confraclor has violated any proviglon of the HIPAA Rules or any
materat term of this contract,

0. Atthe temination of the contract, or upon requestof the Department, whithever occurs first, Contractor shatl vetum or
destroy (gt e option of the Department) all PHI recelved or created by Contractor that Gontractor 4ifl malntains In any form
and retaln no coples of such information; of if such retum or destruction lg not teaslble, Contracior shalt axtend tha
confidentiality protections of the Contract to Ure infommation and limit further uses and disclosure 1o thosa purposes that
make the refum oF d jon of the It

SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON THE NEXT PAGE




- . LDH CF4
< Revised 2023-05-13 Page 7 of 7

THIS CONTRACT CONTAINS OR HAS ATTACHED HERETO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS AGREED
UPON BY THE CONTRACTING PARTIES. IN WITNESS THEREQF, THIS CONTRACT IS SIGNED ON THE
DATE INDICATED BELOW,

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE




ATTACHMENT 1

P.0. 2000801950

STATEMENT OF WORK

SOUTHERN UNWERSITY A & M COLLEGE

GOAL/PURPOSE

The purpose of this contract between the Office of Behavioral Health (OBH) and Southern
University A & M College (SU) is to provide statewide mental health promotion and suicide
prevention training. This partnership between OBH and SU will help build and operete a training
system to increase awareness of, and sensitivity to the needs of individuals with, or at risk, for
mental health concerns and svicide. These trainings will provide educators, youth, counselors and
others in the prevention community the skills needed to empower individuals to conduct outreach
and support to a person in crisis, or in need of mental health services, or suicide related problems.
Additionally, mental health promotion and suicide prevention trainings will help to identify and
connect individuals who need mental health treatment with the appropriate level of care.

COMPONENT A

OVERVIEW

Mental Health Promotion and Suicide Prevention Trainings will be provided to community partoers
such as faith-based organizations, schools, colleges, universities, recreational departments, social
service and behavioral health organizations and law enforcement departments. Trainings below are
unique, evidence-based trainings that empowers individuals, organizations, and communities to
work together to help keep people safe from suicide. Common sectors of the community to
participate in the trainings include educators and staff across primary, secondary and tertiary
education setting, plus courses appropriate for senior students are provided. Workplace training in
all industry sectors, such as, construction, healthcare, technology, business, agriculture, hospitality,
entertainment, and manufacturing are among the common sectors that are trained. Additional
common sectors trained are Christian clergy, lay leaders for ministry in many contexts, including
parishes, hospitals, and the military, Southern University A&M College will work with
LivingWorks to plan and arrange the mental health promotion and suicide prevention trainings.
Each type of training offered is listed and outlined below:

Deliverable A-1 - LivingWorks Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) Train-
the-Trainer (T4T)
Contractor shall:

e Provide one (1) five (5) day Train-the-Trainer (T4T) annually for Applied Suicide
Intervention Skills Training (ASIST). The five (5) day ASIST Training for Trainers (T4T)
trains people with existing teaching, presentation, or leadership experience to conduct the
two-day ASIST training and the five (5) day T4T. The five (5) day T4T is the first step
toward becoming a registered LivingWorks ASIST trainer. Attendees learn the content and
process of LivingWorks ASIST training and the skills needed to conduet it. Collaborate with
Living Works national training facilitators to create a flyer to promote the five (5) day
Train-the-Trainer training. The fiyer will be distributed to community partners statewide
urging qualifying participants to register.

e Coordinate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to finalize the logistics of the five
(5) day Train-the-Trainer training, determining the appropriate time, date, and location.

e Coordinate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to review participant registrations
and assess eligibility criteria.

» Keep arecord of course completion and provide a report t0 OBH within 7 days of the
training.

¢ Provide trainings in Baton Rouge, Louisiana, the exact location to be determined once the
dates for the trainings has been scheduled.

e Provide training opportunitics based on job role relevance as well as organizational
objectives. The potential participants are made aware of the trainings through emails
disseminating flyers advertising the trainings, newsletters, and social media platforms.

¢ Provide for participant overlap, where individuals may need to attend multiple training
sessions managed through careful scheduling and prioritization. Trainings will be staggered
‘o mimmize conflicts and accommodate participants® availability. Clear communication
regarding scheduling options will be provided.

1




ATTACHMENT 1

P.0. 2000801950

STATEMENT OF WORK

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

OUTCOMES:
o Trainings will be facilitated annually by two (2) national trainers from LivingWorks. A

minimurm of fifteen (15) with a maximum of twenty-four (24) participants will receive
training on how to teach ASIST. Participants will be on a first come, first serve basis, for
individuals who have the potential to apply the knowledge and skills gained to become
effective ASIST trainers. Participants may include mental health professionals, educators,
social workers, health care providers, first responders, community leaders and others who
are likely to encounter individuals at risk of suicide, Participants attending this training will
provide two trainings within the first year of becoming an ASIST trainer. Emails and
registration links will be sent with instructions on how to register to all potential
pasticipants. Social media and websites will announce the upcoming trainings.

Trainings will be completed between January and March of each contract year.

Materials and kits to include printed training workbooks, handouts, posters, brochures and

jump drives will be provided for up to twenty-four (24) participants per annual {raining.

Deliverable A-2 -Twe (2) Day Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training (ASIST)
Contractor shall:

Provide a two (2) day ASIST training annmually. ASIST is a two (2) day training that teaches
participants, anyone 16 years or older, regardless of professional background, to provide a
skilled intervention and develop a collaborative safety plan to keep someone safe and alive.
Collaborate with Living Works national training facilitators to create a flyer to promote the
ASIST two (2) day training. The flyer will be distributed to community parmer’s statewide
urging participants to register.

Coordinate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to finalize the logistics of the
ASIST two (2) day training, determining the appropriate time, date, and location.

Coordinate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to review participant registrations
and assess eligibility criteria.

Keep & record of course completion and provide a report to OBH within 7 days of the
training.

Hold the trainings in Baton Rouge, Louisiana, the exact location to be determined once the
dates for the training has been scheduled.

Provide training opportunities based on job role relevance as well as organizational
objectives. The potential participants are made aware of the trainings through emails
disseminating flyers advertising the trainings, newsletters, and social media platforms,
Provide participant overlap, where individuals may need to attend multiple training sessions
managed through careful scheduling and prioritization. Trainings will be staggered to
minimize conflicts and accommodate participants’ availability. Clear communication
regarding scheduling options will be provided.

OUTCOMES:

A two-day (2) ASIST training will be facilitated by two (2) national trainers from
LivingWorks annuaily. Trainings will be completed between Japuary and March of each
contract year.

The training will train a minimum of fificen (15) with 2 maximum of thirty (30) participants
annually. Participants attending this training will be on a first come, first served basis and
may include mental health professionals, educators, social workers, heath care providers,
first responders, community leaders and any other others who are likely to encounter
individuals at risk of suicide. Emails and registration links will be sent with instructions on
how to register to all potential participants. Social media and websites will announce the
upcoming trainings.

Materials to include workbooks, and handouts will be provided for up to thirty (30}
participants per annual training.

Deliverable A-3 - Suicide Alertness for Everyone Training, Tell, Ask, Listen and Keep Safe’
(safeTALK)

2



ATTAGHMENT 1

P.0. 2000801950

STATEMENT OF WORK

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

Contractor shall;

» Provide One (1) safeTALK Train-the-Trainer (T4T) annually. SafeTALK provides in-depth
skills to recognize signs of suicide, engage someone, and ensure a comnection to an
intervention provider, such as a LivingWorks ASIST trained helper.

¢ Collaborate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to create a flyer to promote the
safeTALK Train-the-Trainer training, The flyer will be distributed to community partners
statewide urging qualifying participants 1o register.

s Coordinate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to finalize the logistics of the
safeTALK Train-the-Trainer training, determining the appropriate time, date, and location.

o Coordinate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to review participant registrations
and assess eligibility criteria.

s Keep a record of course completion and provide a report to OBH within 7 days of the

» Provide trainings in Baton Rouge, Lonisiana, the exact location to be determined once the
dates for the training has been scheduled.

e Provide training opportunities are provided based on job role relevance as well as
organizational objectives. The potential participants are made aware of the trainings through
emails disseminating flyers advertising the trainings, newsletters, and social media
platforms.

» Provide for participant overlap where individuals may need to attend multiple training
sessions managed through careful scheduling and prioritization. Trainings will be staggered
to minimize conflicts and accommodate participants’ availability. Clear communication
regarding scheduling options will be provided. '

OUTCOMES

¢ A safeTALK Train-the Trainer (T4T) training session will be provided annually by two (2)
national trainers from the developer, Living Works. Trainings will be completed between
January and March of each contract year.

¢ A minimum of fifteen (15) with a maximum of twenty (20) participants will be trained to
teach safeTALK per year. Participants will be selected on a first come, first served basis.
This training is safe for participants ages 15 plus, with no adverse effects from the training,
Training will be made available in school settings and community events to include bus
drivers, custodial workers, cafeteria workers, administrative staff, medical personnel and
anyone else they may encounter someone with suicide ideations. Potential participants will
receive emails, newsletter and other social media platforms announcing the upcoming
trainings. Emails and registration links will be sent with instructions on how to register to all
potential participants. Social media and websites will announce the upcoming trainings.

e Materials to include workbooks, jump drives, posters and handouts will be provided for up
to twenty (20) participants annually.

Deliverable A-4 - Online Start Training
Contractor shall:

s Provide three (3) Online Start Training program facilitated by two (2) national facilitators.
LivingWorks Start is a 90 minute online virtual training that can teach anyone to recoguize
the signs of suicide and take life-saving action by connecting someone to hope and support.

« Deliver an online course that will train a minimum of fifty (50) with a meximumn of one
hundred (100) participants. Living Works Start is appropriate and safe for anyone aged 15
years and older (13+ with parent/carer supervision). Participants participating in the Online
Start requires no formal training and is available to anyone. Potential participants will be
on & first come, first served basis and may include educators, students, community partners,
family members, colleague, etc. Participant overlap, where individuals may need to attend
multiple training sessions will be managed through careful scheduling and prioritization.
Trainings will be staggered to minimize conflicts and accommodate participants’
availability. Clear communication regarding scheduling options will be provided to avoid
ovetlap in trainings.

3




ATTACHMENT 1

P.O. 2000801950

STATEMENT OF WORK

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

Establish and provide login information to each participant per annual training.
Collaborate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to create a flyer to promote the
Online Start training. The flyer will be distributed to community partners statewide urging
qualifying participants to register.

o Coordinate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to finalize the logistics of the
Online Start training, determining the appropriate time, date, and location.

» Coordinate with LivingWorks national training facilitators to review participant regisirations
and assess eligibility criteria.

e Keep a record of course completion and provide a report to OBH within 7 days of the

e Participant overlap, where individuals may nced to attend multiple training sessions will be
managed through careful scheduling and prioritization. Trainings will he staggered to
minimjze conflicts and accommodats participants” availability. Clear communication
regarding scheduling options will be provided.

OUTCOMES:

s Online Start will be provided every year of the contract.

« Living Works Start is appropriate and safe for anyone aged 15 years and older (13+ with
parent/carer supervision) and requires no formal training or prior experience in suicide
prevention. Participants will complete coursework, a powerful four-step model to help keep
someone safer from suicide, practicing engaging an individual with direct and open talk
about suicide. A minimum of fifty (50) with a meximum of one hundred (100) participants
will complete coursework, submit post surveys and test to receive complefion certificates.
Emails and registration links will be sent with instructions on how to register 1o all potential
participants. Social media and websites will announce the upcoming trainings. Materials to
include workbooks, and handouts will be provided for each participant.

Deliverable A-5 - Signs of Suicide (SOS) Training

Contractor shall:

« Provide the two-day (2) SOS training. SOS is a school-based suicide prevention program
that teaches secondary school students ages 13-18 and school staff to recognize the signs
and symptoms of suicide and depression in themselves and others. The training is offered
virtually through & guided video discussion that encourage students to ACT (Acknowledge,
Care, Teli) when worried about themselves or a friend.

. Collaborate with the Local Goveming Entities (LGEs) to analyze and utilize data from the
latest Caring Communities Youth Survey (CCYS) report to identify two (2) schools with the
highest prevalence of behavioral health concems and exposure to risk factors to receive the SOS
{raining. Work with identified schools to offer the SOS training to eligible students (ages 13-18)
based on interest in the training topic, Trainings will be held in Baton Rouge, Louisiana, the
exact location to be determined once dates for the training has been scheduled.

o Training opportunities are provided based on job role relevance as well as organizational
objectives. The potential participants are made aware of the trainings through emails
disseminating flyers advertising the trainings, newsletters, and social media platforms.

Participant overlap, where individuals may need to attend multiple training sessions will be

managed through careful scheduling and prioritization. Trainings will be staggered to minimize

conflicts and accommodate participants’ availability. Clear communication regarding
scheduling options will be provided.

OUTCOMES:

e The contractor will provide two (2) SOS trainings with a minimum of seventy-five (75) and
& maximum of one hundred twenty-five (125) participants to be trained anmually. The
training are school-based trainings that teaches secondary school students ages 13-18.

« Materials to include training workbooks, Tole playing exercises and handouts will be
provided for up to one hundred twenty-five (125) participants per yearly training.

e Students will complete and submit an exit slip at the conclusion of the training program. The

exit slip will be reviewed by school personnel and ensure timely follow-up for any student
seeking support.



ATTACHMENT 1

P.Q. 2000801950

STATEMENT OF WORK

SOUTHERN UNWERSITY A & M COLLEGE

e Contractor will keep a record of course completion and exit slips for all students for the
duration of the contract period.

Deliverable A-6 - Question, Persuade, Prefer (QPR) Training

Contractor shall:

« Provide one (1) QPR a gatekeeper training for suicide prevention. QPR is designed to teach
participants how to recognize someone who may be in emotional distress or having suicidal
thoughts. QPR also teaches how to question, persuade, and refer someone to help that may
be experiencing suicidal thoughts.

e Develop promotional material that will be distributed to community pariners urging
participants to register for the QPR iraining,

e Contractor will keep a record of course completion and provide a report to OBH within 7
days of the training. Training will be held in Baton Rouge, Louisiaua, the exact location to
be determined once the dates for the training has been scheduled.

o Training opportunities are provided based on job role relevance as well as organizational
objectives. The potential participants are made aware of the trainings through emails
disseminating flyers advertising the trainings, newsletters, and social media platforms.

» Participant overlap, where individuals may need to attend mulfiple training sessions will be
managed through careful scheduling and prioritization. Trainings will be staggered to
minimize conflicts and accommodate participants’ availability, Clear commumication
regarding scheduling options will be provided.

OUTCOMES:

s The training will be facilitated by two (2) national facilitators in person or online with a
minimum of fifteen (15) and a maximum of thirty-five (35) participants annually. Trainings
will be completed between December and February of each contract year.

= Materials will be provided for up to thirty-five (35) participants per annual training.

o FEmails and regjstration links will be sent with instructions on how to register to all potential
participants. Social media and websites will announce the upcoming training. Participants
will complete coursework requirements and submit post-surveys and tests to receive
completion certificates.

Deliverable (A-7) - Zero Suicide Community of Practice (CoP)
Contractor shall:

s Provide a Zero Suicide Community of Practice (CoP) training that will enable participants to
gain access to new knowledge, direct questions to national implementation experts, and
share resources among peers. Through this training participants will learn what it takes to
make a system-wide, organizational commitment to a safe suicide community. The Co
training is designed to facilitate group learning and to bring participants together to share
learning and advance practices that will make our communities safer.

¢ Work with Community of Practice to provide nine (9) months of planning and consultation
from four (4) Zero Suicide Institute staff and faculty. Trainings will be held in Baton Rouge,
Louisiana, the exact location to be determined once the dates for the training has been
scheduled.

s Provide training opportunities based on job role relevance as well as organizational
objectives. The potential participants are made aware of the trainings through emails
disseminating flyers advertising the trainings, newsletters, and social media platforms.

» Provide participant overlap, where individuals may need to attend multiple training sessions
through careful scheduling and prioritization. Trainings will be staggered to minimize
conflicts and accommodate participants’ availability. Clear communication regarding
scheduling options will be provided.

OUTCOMES:



ATTACHMENT 1

P.0O. 2000801950

STATEMENT OF WORK

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

e One (1) Community of Practice Training will be provided by two (2) national trainers from
Zero Suicide Institute/Educational Development Center in year one of the contract.

¢ The Community of Practice will include six {(6) months of planning and consultation, hosted
application process, participant materials, four (4) Zero Suicide Institute staff and faculty,
and advertising agsistance per the first year of the contract.

¢ The training will train 8 minimum of thirty (30) with a maximum of sixty (60) participants
per year one (1) of the contract. Emails and registration links will be sent with instructions
on how to register to all potential participants. Social media and websites will announce the
upcoming trainings.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES:

= Provide copies of the agenda, participant registrations, and curriculum and the end of each
training.

= Provide copies of ell sign-in sheets for services provided on and off-site with all invoices
submitted.

» Provide copies of pre-post evaluation and course satisfaction at the end of each training.

» Provide invoices to include documentation service delivery, including but not limited to the

above, as requested by the program manager.

» The contractor will maintain a list of trainers for all training for the duration of the contract
pexiod.

= Provide coordination of trainers to maintain the sustainability of the training network during the
contract period.

*  Provide copies of training materials at the end of each training.

Payment Terms
Fiscal Year 2024 Expenses:

» Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A -1 Applied Suicide Intervention Skills
Training (ASIST) Train-the-Trainer (T4T) T4T $116,684.00 for year one.

= $116,684.00. The total anticipated hours for two trainers is 180 hours, The hourly cost per
national trainer is $324.12. This cost includes all travel requirements per trainer, iraining
facility, and materjals to include wotkbooks, handouts, posters, jump drives, post-it notes, and
highlighters for participants to conduct two trainings within the first year to maintain their
certification.

» Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A -2 Two (2) Day Applied Suicide
Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) ($44,684.00 for year one. The total anticipated hours for
two trainers is 50 hours. The hourly cost per national trainer is $446.84. This cost included all
travel requirements, training facility, and materials for participants including workbooks, and
handouts.

= Payment will be made upon completion of deliverables A -3 Suicide Alertness for Everyone
Training, Tell, Ask, Listen and Keep Safe (safeTALK) Train the Trainer (T4T) $11,934.00 for
year one, The anticipated hours for two trainers is 50 hours. The howly rate for two national
trainers is $119.34. This cost includes all travel requirements, training facility, and training
materials including workbooks, jump drives, and handouts.

» Deliverable A-4 Payment will be made upon completion of deliverables A - 4 Online Start
Program T4T $7,682 for year one. The anticipated hours for two trainers is 20 hours. The hourly
rate for two national trainers is $192.05. This cost includes a training platform and materials to
train a minimum of fifty (50) with a maximum of one hundred (100) participants.

= Deliverable A-5 Payment will be made upon completion of deliverables A -5 the two (2) day
Signs of Suicide (SOS) training $14,684.00 for year one. The anticipated hours for two naticnal
trainers is 50 hours. The hourly rate is $146.84. This cost includes all travel requirements,
training facility, and the training materials including workbooks and handouts.

6



ATTACHMENT 1

P.O. 2000801950

STATEMENT OF WORK

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

» Deliverable A-6 Payment will be made upon satisfactory completion of deliverables A -6
Question, Persuade, Prefer (QPR) training totaling $54,684.00 for year one. The anficipated
hours for two national trainers is 45 hours. The hourly rate to include all travel requirements,
training facility and training materials, i.e., workbooks, posters, jumnp drives and handouts.

» Deliverable A-7 Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A-7 Zero Suicide
Community of Practice (CoP) training $59,684.00 for year one only of the contract. The
anticipated hours for two trainers is 160 hours. The howrly rate is $186.51 per national trainer.
This cost includes travel requirements, training facility, and training materials for participanis,
including workbooks, posters, and jump drives.

Total Expenses for Fiscal Year 2024 $310,036.00
Fiscal Year 2025 Expenses:

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A -1 Applied Suicide Intervention Skills
Training (ASIST) Train-the-Trainer (T4T) $116,445.00 for year two. Total anticipated hours for
two trainers is 90 hours. The hourly cost per national trainer is $646.92. This cost includes all travel
requirements per trainer, training facility, materials to include workbooks, handout, posters, jump
drives, post it notes, and highlighters for participants to conduct two trainings within the first year
to maintain their certification. ,

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A-2 Two (2) Day Applied Suicide
Intervention Skills training (ASIST) $44,445.00 for year two. Total anticipated hours for two
trainers is 50 hours. The hourly cost per national treiner is $444.45. This cost included all travel
Tequirements, training facility, and materials for participants to include workbooks, and handouts.

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A-3 Suicide Alertess for Everyone
Training, Tell, Ask, Listen and Keep Safe (safeTALK) Train the Trainer (T4T) $11,695.00 for year
two. The anticipated hours for two trainers is 50 hours. The hourly rate for two national trainers
is $116.95 this cost includes all travel requirements, training facility, training materials to include
workbooks, jump drives and handouts.

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A~4 Online Start Program T4T $7,445.00 for
year two. The anticipated hours for two trainers is 20 hours. The howrly rate for two national
trainers is $186.12 this cost includes training platform and materials to train a minimum of fifty (50)
with a maximnm of one hundred (100) participants.

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable

A-5 two (2) day Signs of Suicide (SOS) Train-the-Trainer training T4T $14,445.00 for year two.
The anticipated hours for two nationa! trainers is 50 hours. The hourly rate is $144.45. This cost
includes all travel requirements, training facility and the training materials to include workbooks
and handouts. :

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverablss a -6 Question, Persuade, and Prefer (QPR)
training T4T $54,684.00 for year two. The anticipated hours for two trainers is 45 hours. The
_ hourly rate is $607.60 to include all travel requirements, training facility and training materials,
workbooks, posters, jutnp drives post it notes, highlighter, and handouts.

Total Expenses for Fiscal Year 2025 $248,920.00
Fiscal Year 2026 Expenses:

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverables A-1Applied Suicide Intervention Skills

Training (ASIST) Train-the-Trainer (T4T) $116,445.00 for year three. Total anticipated hours for

four trainers is 90 hours. The hourly cost per national trainer is $646.92. This cost includes all travel

requirements per trainer, training facility, materials to include workbooks, handout, posters, jump
7




ATTACHMENT 1

P.0O. 2000801950

STATEMENT OF WORK

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

drives, post it notes, and highlighters for participants to conduct two trainings within the first year
to maintain their certification.

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverables A-2 $44,445.00 for year three. Total
anticipated hours for two trainers is 50 hours. The hourly cost per national trainer is $444.45. This
cost included all travel requirements, training facility, and materials for participants to include
workbooks, and handouts,

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A-3 $11,695.00 for year three. The
anticipated hours for two trainers is 50 hours. The houly rate for two national trainers is $116.95
this cost includes all travel requirements, training facility, training materials to include workbooks,
jump drives and handouts

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A4 Online Start Program T4T $7,445.00 for
year three. The anticipated hours for two trainers is 20 hours. The hourly rate for two national
trainers is $186.12 this cost includes training platform and materials to train a minimum of fifty (50)
with a maximum of one hundred (100) participants.

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A-5 the two (2) day Signs of Suicide (SOS)
training $14,445.00 for year three. The anticipated hours for two trainers is 50 hours. The houry
rate is $144.45. This cost includes all travel requirements, training facility and the training materials
to include workbooks and handouts.

Payment will be made upon completion of deliverable A-6 Question, Persuade, Prefer (QPR)
training for $54,445.00 for year three. The anticipated hours for two trainers is 45 hours. The hourly
mte is $607.60 to include all travel requirements, training facility and training materials,
workbooks, posters, jump drives post it notes, highlighter, and handouts.

Total Expenses for Fiscal Year 2026 $248,290.00

MONITORING PLAN:

The Project will be monitored by the Office of Behavioral Health, Prevention services, Program
Manager, or his/her designee/successor. (Mrs. Felecia Johnson currently holds the position of
Program Manager for OBH, Prevention Services).

» Conduct an on-site programmatic review menthly to determine if the contractor is completing
the requirements of the statement of work.

« Monitor quarterly to determine if the deliverables outlined the SOW are being met to determine
the quality of services being delivered by the contractor.

» Monitor quarterly to determine if all management and administrative procedures are followed
and to determine if the program has implemented safety guidelines to protect the well-being of the
program’s enrollees and participants.




P.0.2000:0000
ATTACHMENT 2

2000801950

P.O,

STANDARD PROVISIONS PAGE 1 OF 3
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

OFFICGE OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH (OBH}
STANDARD PROVISIONS

Cortracior granis to the L oulslana Department of Heaith {LDH) and its offic deslgnees tha right to inspect
the faclities [n which services are belng provided at all limes, particularly with respect to ita stenderds of
operation, maintenance and compliance with Stete and Federal reguiations and the terms of this cantract.

Contractor shall establish and malintaln an accounting systam that contsing complete and accurate recards
that will Justify and document all expenditures, reflect ali aceruals, and provide e dlear audd trail to the point
of origin.  All funds received In the furtherance of {hls contract, whether fees, state, federal, private or n-
kind contributions, shall be accounted for In the same manner end according 1o generally accepted
actounting principles.

Eaifuce 1o establish and retain adequate documentation will result in disallowance of expenditures and
represent a contractuel breach.

Contraclor further agrees that in the event that mote than one program s oparated by Contractor, the funds
provided in ihis contract will be expanded only lo provide the senvices described herein fo eligible
participants. Under no circumstances are monfes to be {ransferred from one program budget to another
withoul contract amendment.

In order hat costs be considered allowable under this contract, they must eatisty the following genaral
requirements:

a. They must ba calculated using ganerally acceptable actounting principles, unless some olher
procedure 1s specified in federal regufation,

b. They must be consisient with the contract outcomes estabiiahed In the Statament of Work.

[ They raust be reasonable and necessary (or lhe proper administration of this conlracl

Contractor agrees that funds provided under this contract may not be used for.

a Gosls that are prohibited by federa), state or locat laws or regulations or by other provislans within

this contracl
This provision agpties to cost relmbursement contradts only. Contractor agrees to request relmburssment

of axpenses incumed in performance of this cantract only aftar the Contractor has peid the expense,
Further, shoulkd LDH determine the Condracter has not pald a reimbursabla expense; LDH may withhold en
amout equal 1o the unpald expense from the relmbursable expenses uniil such tima as LDH determines
that payment has been made. In the event that payment has nol been made by the end of the fiscal year,
the Contractor will forfeit Lhe disputed amount

Contraclor shall abide by the Drug Ahuse Office and Treatment Acl of 1872, 8s amended; ihe
comprehensive Alcohal Abuse and Alcohotism Prevertion, Treatment and Rehabiltation Acl of 1970, et.
seq., as amended, the Mental Health System Act, THla V: the Prolection and Advocacy for Mental 1
Individuals Act of 1968, as amendad; a!l olher requirements of the U.9, Department of Health and Human
Services; all applicable licensing standards and requirements; and requirements as enumeraled In Tite
¥Vl and Tille XX, of the Soclal Security Acl as applicable.

Contractor further agrees to establish and ebide by intemal petides and proceduras that adhere to Federal
and State statutory requirements and o applicable regulalory and Hegnsure etandards for reporting and
Investigabing aflegations of abuse, neglact and exploitation, and where applicable, ta¥ing appropriate
preventative and corection action.

Contracior agrees lo develap and implement e drug-free workplace policy thatmeals the foliowing minimum
requirements;

a, Contractor shall publish a slatement nofifying the Contractor's employees that the unlawful
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, of uae of a controlled substanca is prohibited
In {he workplace and specifying the aclions that will be taken against employees for viclations of
such prohibition;

b. Contracior shall establish a drug-free awareness program to Inform the Contreclor's employees
about (i) the dangers of drug abusa in ihe workpiace; ) tha Contracior's peficy of mainlaining a
drug-free workplace; (i) any avaliable counseling, rehabifitation, and emgioyee assiatence
programs; and () (he penatties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse viokations;

c. Contraclor shall provide each of its empioyees with a copy of Lhe writien statament required in A.,
above, and aecure a signed stat t from each employsa indlcating that the employee will, as &
condition of employment, {i) abide by the terms of the slatement; and (i} nolify the Contractor of
any crminal drug statule conviction for a viotation occurring in the workplace ne leter than five (5)
days after srch convicton.

d. Contractor shall notify OBH of any violations of the drug-free workplace policy.

Farvl sod GA0RHE




1.

12,

13.

14.

15.
185,

18,

19.

20,

21,

ATTACHMENT 2
STanpARD PROVISIORS
Pase208d

inthe preparation of any statements, press releases or printed documents describing the program provided
under this contract, Contractor shalf clearly acknawledge federal and/or state government funding recelved,
and such credii will be given (he same degree of prominence as any other sponsor, supporter of funding
agency.

Confractor agress to gerve any clients (hat LDH refers o the Condractor whosa needs mest the program’s
desexiplion of services.

Contractor agrees to pesmit the LDH open access to all information and data eencemning the program, the
program fisczl operations and the program parlicipants. Contraclor shall provide the LDH such Information
and data as the LDH may from time to lime raquire or request, such information to be provided in the form
and manner as may ba prescribed by the LDH.

LDH mey terminate this Contract immediatety fos actions or omisslens of the Cortraclor that endanger client
life, health and/or safety.

Conlractor agress to provide @ monthly and an annual datailed written accounting of all in-kind contributions
and all income gensrated by activities supported through funding from WIS Conlrect, Including payments
recaived from cliens or third partiss, and to mainiain records of the recelpt and disposilion of grant related
Incame In the same manner as mquired for Federa) funds recelved i suppon of the grant.

Contractor agrees that the Depariment of Health and Hospilals ls entified to end msy pursua recoupment
in the event of an overpayment resulting from an eror [n billing or &g a resull of an awdit o monitodng
reviews.

Contractor egrees that no funds, nalther federal nor funds oblained thiough a cest raimburssment
mechanism, may be ulized under the terms of this conlract for renovation of real propesty.

Contractor agrees to secure and malnlaln current applicable ficenses.
Contractor agrees that the Office of Behaviora! Health Is the payor of fast resorl.

Contractor shali abide by all monthty/quartery data gathering and recard keeping procedures necessary Lo
detemmine the number of persons utilizing (he services of he contract and other service-outcoma ralated
information as determined by the OBH deslgnated program office,

Faiture of Ihe Contractor to specilically perlomn senvices required by this agreement will constitute cause
for the Office of Behavioral Heallh to impose fiscal sanctions against the Contractor for such fallure.
Sanctions of up to $100.00 a day may be impased against the Contractor by permanenily withholding
paymen{ when a detemmination has been made by the Offica of Behavioral Health that required sarvices
are not belng provided.

Contractor shall maintain personnet policles and procedures Induding Job descriptions and job
quaiifications to assure quatified stalf are employed,

Cantractor must comply with legal marwates related o the populations bsing served (e.g. background
checks for staff In contact with children) as provided by the Loulslana Child Protection Act (RS 16:687.1).

Pubtic Law 103-227, also known s the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be
permitied fn any porion of any Indoor faciity owned or leased or contracted for by an entity end used
routinely or regulady for the provision of health, day care, early thildhood developmert services, education
o Wbrary services to children under the age of 18, i tha services are funded by Federal program elther
direcily or through Stale or local governments, by Fedaral grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee, The law
akso applles 1o children's services that are provided in indoor fachities that are construcled, operated, or
maintalned with such federal funds. The law does not apply to children's services provided In private
residences; porlions of facilites used for inpatient drug or alcehol treatment; eervice Contrastors whose
sole source of appiicable Federal funds Is Medicare or Medicald; or fadlities where WIC coupans are
redeemed. Fallure fo comply with the provislons of the law may resuitin the impesition of an edministrative
compliance order an the responsibie entity.

By signing thia certificatlon, the contractor certiffes that i will comply with the requiementa of the Actand
will ot allow smoking within any portion of any indoor faciity Used for the provision of services for chidren
gs defined by lhe Act. Conlractor agrees that it will require that the language of this certification be included
in any sub-contracts which contzin provistons for children's services and that ol sub-contracts shail certify
accordingly. .

The stardard provisions spedific to cost reimbursement method of payment contracts are as follows:

In arder to be refmbursed for axpenses incurred i the delivery of services, the confractor must follow the
procedures outlined below:

B, Submil an involce to the Office of Behavioral Health contract office, Attention designated contract
monhtor, as specified oh face eheet of contract (iterm #14)

Reised DEDEHE



ATTACHRENT 2

STANDARD PROVISIONS

Paoedorl

b. Malntain documentation of proof of purchase and payment of expenses incurmed prior fo the baling

invoice submitted to OBH. (If pre-payment prior to recelpt of services such as registration for
conference Is necessary, prior approval from OBH conlract monitor must be granted.)

c Comply wilh all applicable state =nd federal laws regarding audit requirements and records
retention,

d. Comply with contractor's published policies on time and attendancs,

§ 96,135 Restrictions on the Expendture of the Grant

1.

The conlracor does not expend SAPT Block Grant funds to provida inpatient hospital substance abuse
services, except In cases when each of the foliowing conditions is met

a. The indlvidual cannol ba effectively freated in & community-based, non-hosphal, residential
contractor
b. The daily rate of payment provided 1o the hospital for providing the services does nct exceed the
comparable daily rate provided by a community-based, nonhospitel, residential traalment
contractor
c. A physician makes a determination that the following condtlons have been met:
i, The primary diagnosis of the Individual Is substance abuse and the physiclan cerlifies

that fact
i.  The Individual cannot be sefely treated In a community-based, nonhospital, residentlal
trealment conlracioy
i, The service can reasonably be expected to improve the person’s condition or level of
functioning
iv. The hosplal-based sul abuse co or follows national standarde of substance

abuse professional practice
d. The service is provided only to the extent that It Is medicalty necessary (s.g., enly for those days
that the patient cannot be safily treated in a residential, community-besed program)

The contractor does not expend SAPT Block Grant funds to purchase orimprove land; purchase, censinicl,
or permanently imprave (other than minor remedeling} any building or oiher facllity; or purchase major
medical equipment.

The contractor does not expend SAPT Block Grant funds fo satisfy any requirement for the expandituze of
non-Federal funds as a condilon for the receipt of Federal funds.

The contractor does not expend SAPT Block Grant funda to provide financlal assistance to any erity other
Lhan & public or nonprofit private entity.

The contracior does not expend SAPT Block Grant funds to make payments to intanded reciplents of heaith
sanvices.

The conlractor does not expend SAPT Block Grant funds to provide Individuela with hypodermic neadles
or syringes.

The contractor does not expend SAPT Block Grant funds fo provide Lreatmant services in penal or
comectiomal institutiors of the Stale.

Ravised DETAME




Revised Nov. 2022

Attachment 3

PO 2000801950

D & I Statement

Southern University A&M College

Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Statement

The Lonisiana Department of Health (LDH) characterizes equity, diversity and inclusion as
representing the differences and similarities of all individuals while creating a work environment
in which those same individuals are treated fairly and respectfully, have equal access to
opportunities and resources, and can contribute fully to the work of LDH in a safe and welcoming
environment.

LDH values diversity in its workplace, vendor network, customers, and communities. As a state
egency, LDH believes that diversity contributes to the success of Louisiana and society. LDH
values the unique contributions of individuals with wide ranging backgrounds and experiences.
and believes an inclusive culture allows our employees to contribute their best. Because of this,
LDH is committed to equal opportunity and fair treatment for all.

This agency prohibits discrimination on the basis of age, race, color, gender, religion, ethnicity,
disability, marital or family status, national origin, sexual orientation, veteran status, genetic
information, medical condition, or any other non-merit factor. LDH is fully commiited to being a
model for equity, diversity, inclusion, belonging, and accessibility, where all team members are
treated with dignity and respect. This principle extends to all decisions relating to recruitment,
hiring, contracting, treining, placement, advancement, compensation, benefits, and termination.
By signing this contract, contractor acknowledges the following:

a. That LDH values diversity in the workplace and that contractor agrees to value
diversity in its workplace, further;

b. That contractor is subject to uphold this Diversity and Inclusion Statement in actions
related to the execution and/or fulfillment of this coniract; and

¢. That subject to federal and/or state laws, contractor agrees not to discriminate on the
basis of age, tace, color, gender, religion, ethnicity, disability, marital or family status,
national origin, sexual orientation, veteran status, genetic information, or medical
condition, in any action related to the execution and/or fulfillment of this contract.




ATTACHMENT 4
P.O. 2000801950
FEE SCHEDULE
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

FEE SCHEDULE

Invoices submitted monthly in the arrears for work completed and expenses incurred during the
immediately preceding monthly period, due to LDH on or before the 15th day follow the close of
each calendar month or partial month during the term, to be submitted with detailed narratives to
the reasonable satisfaction of LDH, and accompanied by required monthly status reporting.
Payment to be remitted on a net thirty (30) days basis measured from the receipt of timely
submitted and properly documented invoices, which are certified true and correct under penalty
of law by the point of contact/relationship manner for Southern University A & M College.
Deviation from which may result in delayed payment under the agreement.

Fiscal Year 2024 Expenses:

Deliverable A-1 Payment will be made upon $116,684.00
completion of deliverable A -1 Applied Suicide
Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) Train-the-
Trainer (T4T) T4T $116,684.00 for year one.
Deliverable A-2 Payment will be made upon $44,684.00
completion of deliverable A -2 Suicide Alertness for
Everyone (safeTALK) Train-the-Trainer (T4T)
$44,684.00 for year one.

Deliverable A-3 Payment will be made upon $11,934.00
completion of deliverables A -3 Two (2)-Day
Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training
(ASIST) T4T $11,934.00 for year one.
Deliverable A-4 Payment will be made upon $7,682.00
completion of deliverables A - 4 Online Start
Program T4T $7,682 for year one.
Deliverable A-5 Payment will be made upon

completion of deliverables A -5 the two (2) day $14,684.,00
Signs of Suicide (S§OS) training $14,684.00 for year :

one.

Deliverable A-6 Payment will be made upon $54,684.00

satisfactory completion of deliverables A -6
Question, Persuade, Prefer (QPR) training T4T
totaling $54,684.00 for year one.

Deliverable A-7 Payment will bs made upon $59,684.00
completion of deliverable A-7 Zero Suicide :
Community of Practice {(CoP) training T4T
$59,684.00 for year one only of the contract.

Total Expenses for Fiscal Year 2024 $310,036.00




ATTACHMENT 4
P.O. 2000801950
FEE SCHEDULE

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

Fiscal Year 2025 Expenses:

Deliverable A-1: Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverabie A -1 Applied Suicide
Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) Train-the-
Trainer (T4T) $116,445.00 for year two.

$116,445.00

Deliverable A-2 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverable A-2 Suicide Alertness for

Bveryone (safeTALK) T4T $44,445.00 for year two.

$44,445.00

Deliverable A~3 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverable a-3 Two (2) Day Applied
Suicide Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) T4T
$11,695.00 for year two.

$11,695.00

Deliverable A-4 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverable A-4 Online Start Program
TAT $7,445.00 for year two.

$7,445.00

Deliverable A-5 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverable two (2) day Signs of
Suicide (8O8) Train-the-Trainer training T4T
$14,445.00 for yeer two.

$14,445.00

Deliverable A-6 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverables A -6 Question, Persuade,
Prefer (QPR) training T4T $54,684.00 for year two.

$54,445.00

Total Expenses for Fiscal Year 2025

$248,920.00




ATTACHMENT 4
P.0. 2000801950
FEE SCHEDULE

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE

Fiscal Year 2026 Expenses:

Peliverable A-1: A -1 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverables A-1Applied Suicide
Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) Train-the-
Trainer (T4T) $116,445.00 for year three.

$116,445.00

Deliverable A-2 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverables A-2 Suicide Alertness for
Everyone (safeTALK) Train-the-Trainer (T4T)
$44,445.00 for year three,

$44,445.00

Deliverable A-3 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverable A-3 Two (2)-Day Applied
Suicide Intervention Skills Training (ASIST) TAT
$11,695.00 for year three.

$11,695.00

Deliverable A-4 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverable A-4 Online Start Program
T4T $7,445,00 for year three.

$7,445.00

Deliverable A-5 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverable A-5 the two (2) day Signs
of Suicide (SOS) training $14,445.00 for year three.

$14,445.00 |

Deliverable A-6 Payment will be made upon
completion of deliverable A-6 Question, Persuade,
Prefer (QPR) training for $54,445.00 for year three.

$54,445.00

Total Expenses for Fiscal Year 2026

$248,920.00

*#**Contractor must maintain expenditures and submit monthly invoices to OBH/LDH by the

20th of the month, including any requested backup documentation.****




LDH 10.2023

ATTACHMENT 5

P0O2000801950

LDH Liquidated Damages

Southern University A & M College

LDH Liguidated Damages
Liquidated Damages

A In some cases, the actual damage to State as a result of Contractor's failure to meet specific
deliverables or other material obligations as set forth herein are difficult or impossible to determine
with precise accuracy. Therefore, the parties agtee that State may assess liquidated damages as set
forth below; provided that State has given Contractor written notice thereof and an opportunity to cure
in accordance with the terms as set forth below.

B. Failure to Meel Performance Standgrds, Except to the extent Contractor’s failure to meet the
deliverables of the Contract is caused by or results from (i) any act or omission of any entity other
than Contractor or its subcontractors; (ii) an event of force majeure; or (iii) other factors beyond the
Contracter’s reasonable control, State may assess to the Contractor liquidated damages in an amount
not to exceed $1,000 per occurrence per day, up to the 5th ocourrence in any month. After the 5th
occurrence in any month, and up to the 10th occurrence in any month, the Contractor’s liguidated
darnages for that month will not exceed $2,000 per occurrence per day for such additional occurrences.
After the 10th occurrence in any month, the Contractor’s liquidated damages for that month will not
exceed $10,000 per occurrence per day for such additional occurrences.

C. Contractor shall ensure that there are no federal, state, or departmental audit findings in which
Contractor has been found to have failed to comply with federal, state, or departmental legal
requirements, policies, or procedures, The State may assess to the Contractor liquidated damages in
an amount not to exceed fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) per audit.

D. The State, at its option, may collect any assessed liquidated damages from Contractor by deducting
them from jts monthly invoice payments or quarterly retainage payments to Contractor,






CONTRACT

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE
NAME OF DEPARTMENT/AGENCY
Office of Facility Services — Physical Plant
AND
CONTRACTOR NAME
G.E.C, Inc.

CONTRACT/PROPOSAL NUMBER
Proposal Number 50016-10314

TYPE OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSULTING SERVICES [J SOCIAL SERVICES [1 PERSONALSERVICES []

CONTRACTOR (Legal Name if Corporation) FEDERAL EMPLOYER TAX ID NUMBER
G.E.C,, Inc. 72-1268093

STREET ADDRESS TELEPHONE NUMBER

8282 Goodwood Boulevard 225-612-3000

CITY Baton Rouge STATE Louisiana ZIP CODE 70806

TERM OF CONTRACT

This Contract shall begin on April 1, 2024 and shall end on April 1, 2025. The University has the right to extend this
Contract up to a total of three years with the concurrence of the Contractor and all appropriate approvals. With
all proper approvals and concurrence of the Contractor at the same rates, terms and conditions of the initial
Contract term. The total contract term, with extensions, shall not exceed five (5) years. The continuation of this
Contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds by the legislature to fulfill the requirements of the
Contract.

COMPENSATION AND MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF CONTRACT

In consideration of the services required by this Contract, the University hereby agrees to pay to Contractor a
maximum fee of $ 1,300,000.00. Payments are predicated upon successful completion of the services described
in Description of Services and acceptance of deliverables described in Acceptance of Deliverables; receipt of an
invoice; and written approval of Linda Antoine, Director of Purchasing.

The University shall make every reasonable effort to make payments within 25 business days of receiving an
invoice. Contractor shall comply with the Division of Administration State General Travel Regulations, as set forth
in the Division of Administration Policy and Procedure Memorandum No. 49.

PROHIBITION AGAINST ADVANCE PAYMENTS
No compensation or payment of any nature shall be made in advance of services actually performed, unless
allowed by law.



GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
Southern University wishes to establish a proactive planning process for the execution of utility infrastructure
enhancements.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES
Contractor agrees to furnish services to the University as specified in this Section and in any attachments.
Scope of work to include:
1. Review existing utility documents.
Geolocate and map utility assets across the main campus.
Categorize the existing utility conditions, helping prioritize necessary projects.
Assess current and prospective utility capacity for existing campus structures.
Determine future utility capacity and routing for planned campus expansions.

vk wnN

Utility Systems within the project to include potable water, sanitary sewer, natural gas, drainage, electrical,
exterior lighting, data and telecommunications.

Remaining details are included in Attachment A.

A full description of the scope of services is contained in the following documents, which are made a part of this
Contract:

e Statement of Work

e Contractor Personnel and Other Resources

DELIVERABLES
The Contract will be considered complete when Contractor has delivered and the University has accepted all
deliverables specified in the Statement of Work.

ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERABLES
Deliverables shall be submitted, reviewed, and accepted according to the following procedure:

A. General. The University shall accept work performed in accordance with the Statement of Work
and/or as subsequently modified in University approved documents.

B. Submittal and Review. Contractor shall provide written notification to the University Project
Director/Manager that a Deliverable is completed, and available for review and acceptance.

Upon Contractor’s written notification, the University Project Director/Manager shall review the
Deliverable within 10 days. Within this period, the University Project Director/Manager shall direct
the appropriate review process; coordinate any review outside the Project team; and present results
to any appropriate committee(s) for acceptance. The review process shall be comprehensive—
identifying all items that must be modified or added.

C. Acceptance or Rejection. A Deliverable shall be considered accepted unless, within the 10 days, the
University Project Director/Manager notifies the Contractor in writing that the Deliverable is rejected
and specifies the items that, if modified or added, will cause the Deliverable to be accepted. A failure
to submit all or any essential part of a Deliverable shall be cause for rejection of the Deliverable.



D. Resubmitting Deliverables. Contractor shall provide written notification to the University Project
Director/Manger when the Contractor resubmits a Deliverable for acceptance. The University Project
Director/Manger shall review the resubmitted Deliverable within 5 business days. A resubmitted
Deliverable shall be considered accepted unless, within this period, the University Project Director
notifies the Contractor in writing that the resubmitted Deliverable is rejected and specifies the items
that, if modified or added, will cause the resubmitted Deliverable to be accepted. The parties shall
repeat this process until the resubmitted Deliverable is accepted, or the University determines that
the Contractor has breached the Contract and places the Contractor in default.

TERMS OF PAYMENT
The Contractor may submit invoices, not more frequently than monthly. If progress and/or completion of services
are provided to the satisfaction of the initiating Office/Facility, payments are to be made as follows:

Payment will be made based on completion of services per task specific within the deliverables section of the
statement of work.

Such payment amounts for work performed must be based on at least equivalent services rendered, and to the
extent practical, will be keyed to clearly identifiable stages of progress as reflected in written reports submitted
with the invoices. Contractor will not be paid more than the maximum amount of the Contract.

PAYMENT WILL BE MADE ONLY UPON APPROVAL OF
Ken Dawson, System Director of Facilities Planning

VETERAN/HUDSON SMALL ENTREPRENEURSHIP PROGRAM PARTICIPATION

During the term of the Contract and at expiration, the Contractor will be required to report Veteran-Owned and
Service-Connected Disabled Veteran-Owned and Hudson Initiative small entrepreneurship subcontractor
participation and the dollar amount of each.

SUBSTITUTION OF KEY PERSONNEL

The Contractor's personnel assigned to this Contract shall not be replaced without the written consent of the
University. Such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed provided an equally qualified replacement
is offered. In the event that any University or Contractor personnel become unavailable due to resignation, illness,
or other factors, excluding assignment to project outside this contract, outside of the University's or Contractor's
reasonable control, as the case may be, the University or the Contractor, shall be responsible for providing an
equally qualified replacement in time to avoid delays in completing tasks. The Contractor will make every
reasonable attempt to assign the personnel listed in his proposal.

STATE FURNISHED RESOURCES

The University shall appoint a Project Manager for this Contract who will provide oversight of the activities
conducted hereunder. Notwithstanding the Contractor’s responsibility for management during the performance
of this Contract, the assigned Project Manager shall be the principal point of contact on behalf of the University
and will be the principal point of contact for Contractor concerning Contractor’s performance under this Contract.

TAXES

Before the Contract may be approved, La. R.S. 39:1624(A)(10) requires the Office of State Procurement to
determine that the Contractor shall be in compliance with filing of all applicable tax returns and reports and in the
payment of all taxes, interest, penalties, and fees owed to the State and collected by the Department of Revenue.



The State’s obligations are conditioned on the Contractor resolving any identified outstanding tax compliance
discrepancies with the Louisiana Department of Revenue within seven (7) days of such notification. If the
Contractor fails to resolve the identified outstanding tax compliance discrepancies within seven days of
notification, then the using agency may proceed with alternate arrangements without notice to the Contractor
and without penalty.

TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

Should the University determine that the Contractor has failed to comply with the Contract’s terms, the University
may terminate the Contract for cause by giving the Contractor written notice specifying the Contractor’s failure.
If the University determines that the failure is not correctable, then the Contract shall terminate on the date
specified in such notice. If the University determines that the failure may be corrected, the University shall give a
deadline for the Contractor to make the correction. If the University determines that the failure is not corrected
by the deadline, then the University may give additional time for the Contractor to make the corrections or the
University may notify the Contractor of the Contract termination date.

If the Contractor seeks to terminate the Contract, the Contractor shall file a complaint with the Chief Procurement
Officer under La. R.S. 39:1672.2-1672.4.

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

The University may terminate the Contract at any time without penalty by giving thirty (30) days written notice to
the Contractor of such termination or negotiating with the Contractor a termination date. Contractor shall be
entitled to payment for deliverables in progress, to the extent the University determines that the work is
acceptable.

REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT
Any claim or controversy arising out of this Contract shall be resolved by the provisions of LSA - R.S. 39:1672.2 -
1672.4.

GOVERNING LAW

This Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana, including
but not limited to La. R.S. 39:1551-1736; rules and regulations; executive orders; standard terms and conditions,
special terms and conditions, and specifications listed in the RFP (if applicable); and this Contract. Venue of any
action brought, after exhaustion of administrative remedies, with regard to this Contract shall be in the
Nineteenth Judicial District Court, Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana.

E-VERIFY
Contractor acknowledges and agrees to comply with the provisions of La. R.S. 38:2212.10 and federal law
pertaining to E-Verify in the performance of services under this Contract.

OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT

All software, data files, documentation, records, worksheets, or any other related materials developed under this
Contract shall become the property of the University upon creation. All material related to the Contract and/or
obtained or prepared by Contractor in connection with the performance of the services contracted for herein shall
become the property of University, and shall be returned by Contractor to University, at Contractor's expense, at
termination or expiration of the Contract.



DATA/RECORD RETENTION

Contractor shall retain all its books, records, and other documents relevant to this Contract and the funds
expended hereunder for at least five (5) years after final payment, or as required by applicable Federal law, if
Federal funds are used to fund this Contract. Contractor shall comply with all applicable State and Federal laws
regarding data retention and provide for a transition period that accommodates all data retention requirements
of the State, including data retained and length of retention, following Contract termination, regardless of the
reason for Contract termination. Additionally, all State data must be sanitized in compliance with the most
currently approved revision of NIST SP 800-66.

RECORD OWNERSHIP

All records, reports, documents and other material delivered or transmitted to Contractor by University shall
remain the property of University, and shall be returned by Contractor to University, at Contractor's expense, at
termination or expiration of the Contract. All material related to the Contract and/or obtained or prepared by
Contractor in connection with the performance of the services contracted for herein shall become the property
of University, and shall be returned by Contractor to University, at Contractor's expense, at termination or
expiration of the Contract.

CONTRACTOR’S COOPERATION

The Contractor has the duty to fully cooperate with the University and provide any and all requested information,
documentation, etc. to the University when requested. This applies even if this Contract is terminated and/or a
lawsuit is filed. Specifically, the Contractor shall not limit or impede the University’s right to audit or shall not
withhold University owned documents.

ASSIGNABILITY

No contractor shall assign any interest in this contract by assignment, transfer, or notation without prior written
consent of the University. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit the contractor from assigning his bank,
trust company, or other financial institution any money due or to become due from approved contracts without
such prior written consent. Notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to the
University.

RIGHT TO AUDIT

Any authorized agency of the State (e.g. Office of the Legislative Auditor, Inspector General's Office, etc.) and of
the Federal Government has the right to inspect and review all books and records pertaining to services rendered
under this contract for a period of five years from the date of final payment under the prime contract and any
subcontract. The Contractor and subcontractor shall maintain such books and records for this five-year period and
cooperate fully with the authorized auditing agency. Contractor and subcontractor shall comply with federal and
state laws authorizing an audit of their operations as a whole, or of specific program activities.

FISCAL FUNDING

The continuation of this Contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds to fulfill the requirements of the
Contract by the legislature. If the legislature fails to appropriate sufficient monies to provide for the continuation
of the Contract, or if such appropriation is reduced by the veto of the Governor or by any means provided in the
appropriations act to prevent the total appropriation for the year from exceeding revenues for that year, or for
any other lawful purpose, and the effect of such reduction is to provide insufficient monies for the continuation
of the Contract, the Contract shall terminate on the date of the beginning of the first fiscal year for which funds
are not appropriated.



NON-DISCRIMINATION

Contractor agrees to abide by the requirements of the following as applicable and amended: Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972; Federal
Executive Order 11246; the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Assistance Act of
1974; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; Age Discrimination Act of 1975; Fair Housing Act of 1968;
and, Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor agrees not to discriminate in its employment practices, and shall render services under this Contract
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, veteran status, political affiliation,
disability, or age in any matter relating to employment. Any act of discrimination committed by Contractor, or
failure to comply with these statutory obligations when applicable shall be grounds for termination of this
Contract.

CONTINUING OBLIGATION

Contractor has a continuing obligation to disclose any suspensions or debarment by any government entity,
including but not limited to General Services Administration (GSA). Failure to disclosed may constitute grounds
for suspension and/or termination of the Contract and debarment from future Contracts.

ELIGIBILITY STATUS

Contractor, and each tier of Subcontractors, shall certify that it is not on the List of Parties Excluded from Federal
Procurement or Nonprocurement Programs promulgated in accordance with E.O.s 12549 and 12689, "Debarment
and Suspension," as set forth at 24 CFR part 24.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor shall protect from unauthorized use and disclosure all information relating to the University's
operations and data (e.g. financial, statistical, personal, technical, etc.) that becomes available to the Contractor
in carrying out this Contract. Contractor shall use protecting measures that are the same or more effective than
those used by the University. Contractor is not required to protect information or data that is publicly available
outside the scope of this Contract; already rightfully in the Contractor's possession; independently developed by
the Contractor outside the scope of this Contract; or rightfully obtained from third parties.

AMENDMENTS
Any modification to the provisions of this Contract shall be in writing, signed by all parties, and approved by the
required authorities.

PROHIBITED USE OF FUNDS

Contractor shall not use funds received for services rendered under this Contract to urge an elector to vote for or
against any candidate or proposition on an election ballot, or to lobby for or against any matter the Louisiana
Legislature or a local governing authority is considering to become law. This provision shall not prevent the normal
dissemination of factual information relative to any proposition on an election ballot or any matter being
considered by the Louisiana Legislature or a local governing authority.

SUBCONTRACTORS

The Contractor may, with prior written permission from the University, enter into subcontracts with third parties
for the performance of any part of the Contractor’s duties and obligations. In no event shall the existence of a
subcontract operate to release or reduce the liability of the Contractor to the University for any breach in the
performance of the Contractor's duties. The Contractor will be the single point of contact for all subcontractor
work.



PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATORY BOYCOTTS OF ISRAEL

In accordance with La. R.S. 39:1602.1, for any contract for $100,000 or more and for any Contractor with five or
more employees, Contractor, or any Subcontractor, shall certify it is not engaging in a boycott of Israel, and shall,
for the duration of this Contract, refrain from a boycott of Israel.

The University reserves the right to terminate this Contract if the Contractor, or any Subcontractor, engages in a
boycott of Israel during the term of the Contract.

DUTY TO DEFEND

Upon notice of any claim, demand, suit, or cause of action against the University, alleged to arise out of or be
related to this Contract, Contractor shall investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense for, and defend at its
sole expense, even if the claim, demand, suit, or cause of action is groundless, false, or fraudulent. The University
may, but is not required to, consult with or assist the Contractor, but this assistance shall not affect the
Contractor’s obligations, duties, and responsibilities under this section. Contractor shall obtain the University’s
written consent before entering into any settlement or dismissal.

LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION

CONTRACTOR LIABILITY

Contractor shall be liable without limitation to the University for any and all injury, death, damage, loss,
destruction, damages, costs, fines, penalties, judgments, forfeitures, assessments, expenses (including attorney
fees), obligations, and other liabilities of every name and description, which may occur or in any way arise out of
any act or omission of Contractor, its owners, agents, employees, partners or subcontractors.

FORCE MAIJEURE

It is understood and agreed that neither party can foresee the exigencies beyond the control of each party which
arise by reason of an Act of God or force majeure; therefore, neither party shall be liable for any delay or failure
in performance beyond its control resulting from an Act of God or force majeure. The University shall determine
whether a delay or failure results from an Act of God or force majeure based on its review of all facts and
circumstances. The parties shall use reasonable efforts, including but not limited to, use of continuation of
operations plans (COOP), business continuity plans, and disaster recovery plans, to eliminate or minimize the
effect of such events upon the performance of their respective duties under this Contract.

INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall fully indemnify and hold harmless the University, without limitation, for any and all injury, death,
damage, loss, destruction, damages, costs, fines, penalties, judgments, forfeitures, assessments, expenses
(including attorney fees), obligations, and other liabilities of every name and description, which may occur or in
any way arise out of any act or omission of Contractor, its owners, agents, employees, partners or subcontractors.
The Contractor shall not indemnify for the portion of any loss or damage arising from the University’s act or failure
to act.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall fully indemnify and hold harmless the University, without limitation, from and against damages,
costs, fines, penalties, judgments, forfeitures, assessments, expenses (including attorney fees), obligations, and
other liabilities in any action for infringement of any intellectual property right, including but not limited to,
trademark, trade-secret, copyright, and patent rights.



When a dispute or claim arises relative to a real or anticipated infringement, the Contractor, at its sole expense,
shall submit information and documentation, including formal patent attorney opinions, as required by the
University.

If the use of the product, material, service, or any component thereof is enjoined for any reason or if the
Contractor believes that it may be enjoined, Contractor, while ensuring appropriate migration and
implementation, data integrity, and minimal delays of performance, shall at its sole expense and in the following
order of precedence: (i) obtain for the University the right to continue using such product, material, service, or
component thereof; (ii) modify the product, material, service, or component thereof so that it becomes a non-
infringing product, material, or service of at least equal quality and performance; (iii) replace the product,
material, service, or component thereof so that it becomes a non-infringing product, material, or service of at
least equal quality and performance; or, (iv) provide the University monetary compensation for all payments made
under the Contract related to the infringing product, material, service, or component, plus for all costs incurred
to procure and implement a non-infringing product, material, or service of at least equal quality and performance.
Until this obligation has been satisfied, the Contractor remains in default.

The Contractor shall not be obligated to indemnify that portion of a claim or dispute based upon the University’s
unauthorized: i) modification or alteration of the product, material or service; ii) use of the product, material or
service in combination with other products not furnished by Contractor; or, iii) use of the product, material or
service in other than the specified operating conditions and environment.

LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

For all claims against the Contractor not governed by any other provision of this Section, regardless of the basis
on which the claim is made, the Contractor's liability for direct damages shall be limited to two times the maximum
dollar amount of the Contract.

The Contractor shall not be liable for incidental, indirect, special, or consequential damages, unless otherwise
specifically enumerated herein, or in a resulting task order or purchase order mutually agreed upon between the
parties. In no circumstance shall the University be liable for incidental, indirect, special, or consequential damages;
lost profits; lost revenue; or lost institutional operating savings.

OTHER REMEDIES

If the Contractor fails to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, or if any lien or
claim for damages, penalties, costs and the like is asserted by or against the University, then, upon notice to the
Contractor, the University may pursue all remedies available to it at law or equity, including retaining monies from
amounts due the Contractor and proceeding against any surety of the Contractor.

STAFF INSURANCE

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Contract insurance against claims for injuries to
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work
hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. The cost of such insurance
shall be included in the total Contract amount. For insurance requirements, refer to Exhibit A.

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Contractor shall secure and maintain all licenses and permits, and pay inspection fees required to do the work
required to complete this Contract.



SECURITY

Contractor's personnel shall always comply with all security regulations in effect at the University's premises, and
externally for materials belonging to the University or to the project. Contractor is responsible for reporting any
breach of security to the University promptly.

CYBERSECURITY TRAINING

In accordance with La. R.S. 42:1267(B)(3) and the State of Louisiana’s Information Security Policy, if the Contractor,
any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors will have access to State government information technology
assets, the Contractor’s employees, agents, or subcontractors with such access must complete cybersecurity
training annually, and the Contractor must present evidence of such compliance annually and upon request. The
Contractor may use the cybersecurity training course offered by the Louisiana Department of State Civil Service
without additional cost or may use any alternate course approved in writing by the Office of Technology Services.

For purposes of this Section, “access to State government information technology assets” means the possession
of credentials, equipment, or authorization to access the internal workings of State information technology
systems or networks. Examples would include but not be limited to State-issued laptops, VPN credentials to
credentials to access the State network, badging to access the State’s telecommunications closets or systems, or
permissions to maintain or modify IT systems used by the State. Final determination of scope inclusions or
exclusions relative to access to State government information technology assets will be made by the Office of
Technology Services.

CODE OF ETHICS

The Contractor acknowledges that Chapter 15 of Title 42 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S. 42:1101 et. seq.,
Code of Governmental Ethics) applies to the Contracting Party in the performance of services called for in this
Contract. The Contractor agrees to immediately notify the state if potential violations of the Code of
Governmental Ethics arise at any time during the term of this Contract.

SEVERABILITY

If any term or condition of this Contract or the application thereof is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect
other terms, conditions, or applications which can be given effect without the invalid term, condition, or
application; to this end the terms and conditions of this Contract are declared severable.

OUTSOURCING OF KEY INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Applicable if outsourcing a key internal control. Note that if the scope of work involves information technology,
the IT/Data Processing contract template should be used instead, along with this language)

The University will also require the Contractor and /or subcontractors, if performing a key internal control, to
submit to an independent SSAE 18 SOC 1 and/or type Il audit of its internal controls and other financial and
performance audits from outside companies to assure both the financial viability of the (outsourced) program and
the operational viability, including the policies and procedures placed into operation. The audit firm will conduct
tests and render an independent opinion on the operating effectiveness of the controls and procedures.

The Contractor could be required to provide a quality control plan, such as third party Quality Assurance (QA),
Independent Verification and Validation (IV &V), and other internal project/ program reviews and audits.

These audits will require the Contractor to provide any assistance, records access, information system access, staff
access, and space access to the party selected to perform the indicated audit. The audit firm will submit a final
report on controls placed in operations for the project and include a detailed description of the audit firm’s tests
of the operating effectiveness of controls.



The Contractor shall supply the Department with an exact copy of the report within thirty (30) calendar days of
completion. Such audits may be performed annually during the term of the contract. The Contractor agrees to
implement recommendations as suggested by the audits within three months of report issuance at no cost to the
University. Cost of the SSAE 18 audit is to be included in the cost being proposed in response to this RFP.

HEADINGS
Descriptive headings in this Contract are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction or meaning of
contractual language.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

This Contract, (together with the Request for Proposals and addenda issued thereto by the University, the
proposal submitted by the Contractor in response to the University’s Request for Proposals, and any exhibits
specifically incorporated herein by reference) constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect
to the subject matter.

This Contract shall, to the extent possible, be construed to give effect to all provisions contained therein: however,
where provisions are in conflict, first priority shall be given to the provisions of the Contract, excluding the Request
for Proposals and the Proposal; second priority shall be given to the provisions of the Request for Proposals and
amendments thereto; and third priority shall be given to the provisions of the Proposal.

CONTRACT APPROVAL
This Contract is not effective until executed by all parties and approved in writing by the Southern University Board

of Supervisor and Southern University President-Chancellor.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS
See Exhibit A.

The cost of such insurance shall be included in the total Contract amount.

THUS DONE AND SIGNED AT Baton Rouge, Louisiana on the day, month and year first written above. IN WITNESS
WHEREQOF, the parties have executed this Agreement.

WITNESSES SIGNATURES: SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE
By:
Title:

WITNESSES SIGNATURES: CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE:
By:

Title:




OPTIONAL FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

ANTI-KICKBACK CLAUSE

Contractor agrees to adhere to the mandate dictated by the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act which provides that
each Contractor or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the
completion of work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled.

CLEAN AIR ACT

Contractor agrees to adhere to the provisions which require compliance with all applicable standards, orders or
requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act which prohibits the use under nonexempt Federal
contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA list of Violating Facilities.

ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT
Contractor recognizes the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency with are contained in

the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-
163).

CLEAN WATER ACT

Contractor agrees to adhere to all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 508 of the
Clean Water Act which prohibits the use under nonexempt Federal contracts, grants, or loans of facilities included
on the EPA List of Violating Facilities.

STATEMENT OF WORK

SCOPE OF SERVICES
Contractor shall perform services according to the terms of this Contract and according to the Statement of
Work (SOW) further described in Attachment A.

INTRODUCTION
Information is included in Attachment A.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES/TASKS
Information is included in Attachments A and B.

SCHEDULE REQUIREMENTS

Anticipated project duration is 12 months, broken down into three phases: Phase 0, Phase 1, and Phase 2. Phase
0 includes existing document review and geolocation planning. Expected duration and completion of Phase 0
deliverables is 1 month. Phase 1 includes utility inventory geodatabase with technical memoranda documenting
existing condition and capacity assessments and methodologies. Expected duration and completion of Phase 1
deliverables is 8 months. Phase 2 includes project definition statements for proposed improvements to improve
system reliability. Expected duration and completion of Phase 2 deliverables is 3 months. In depth detail of each
phase and task is included in Attachment B.



PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND MONITORING PLAN
Performance will be monitored and evaluated for each delivered task to assess compliance with specifications
and schedule.

The performance of the contract will be measured by the Project Director/Manger, authorized on behalf of the
University, to evaluate the Contractor’s performance against the criteria in the Statement of Work and are
identified as:

All tasks shall be completed and deliverable within the timeline set for each individual phase of the project.
Following completion of a task, work cannot begin on subsequent tasks without written notification from the
Project Director/Manager.

MONITORING PLAN

Ken Dawson, System Director of Facilities Planning, will monitor the services provided by the Contractor and the
expenditure of funds under this Contract. Maurice Pitts, Director of Facilities for the Southern University Baton
Rouge campus, will be primarily responsible for the day-to-day contact with the Contractor and day-to-day
monitoring of the Contractor’s performance.

DELIVERABLES
Contractor agrees to provide the following deliverables within the time frames specified herein:

Phase 0 (Completion Time — 1 month)
-Task 0 — Existing Document Review and Geolocation Planning

Phase 1 (Completion Time — 8 months)

-Task 1 — Utility Field Survey

-Task 2 — Development of Geodatabase/GIS System
-Task 3 — Drainage System Assessment

-Task 4 — Wastewater System Assessment

-Task 5 — Potable Water Distribution System Assessment
-Task 6 — Electrical Power System Assessment

-Task 7 — Lighting System Assessment

-Task 8 — Natural Gas System Assessment

Phase 2 (Completion Time — 3 months)

-Task 9 — Data Telecommunications

-Task 10 — Coordination with Pipeline Companies/Railroad
-Task 11 — Master Plan Report

To see tasks described in further detail, see Attachment B.

CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL AND OTHER RESOURCES

CONTRACTOR RESOURCES



Contractor agrees to provide the following Contract related resources:

A. Project Manager. Contractor shall provide a project manager to provide day-to-day management of
project tasks and activities, coordination of Contractor support and administrative activities, and for
supervision of Contractor employees. The project manager shall possess the technical and functional
skills and knowledge to direct all aspects of the project.

B. Key Personnel. Contractor shall assign staff who possess the knowledge, skills, and abilities to
successfully perform assigned tasks. Individuals to be assigned by the Contractor are listed in

Attachment A.

C. Personnel Changes. Contractor's Project Manager and other key personnel assigned to this Contract

shall not be replaced without the written consent of the University. Such consent shall not be

unreasonably withheld or delayed provided an equally qualified replacement is offered. In the event
that any University or Contractor personnel become unavailable due to resignation, illness or other
factors, excluding assignment to project outside this contract, outside of the University's or Contractor's
reasonable control, as the case may be, the University or the Contractor, as the case may be, shall be
responsible for providing an equally qualified replacement in time to avoid delays to the work plan.

CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL

The following individuals are assigned to the project, on a full time basis (unless otherwise indicated), and in the

capacities set forth below:

Name Company Responsibilities Classification Rate Expected Duration

Cary Bourgeois Principal $276.00 282 hrs 100%

Alejandro Flores Project Manager $212.00 846 hrs 100%
Senior Engineer $200.00 1,168 hrs 100%
Project Engineer $150.00 1,552 hrs 100%
Engineering Intern $116.00 2,157 hrs 100%
Engineering Technician $120.00 958 hrs 100%
CADD Operator $130.00 1,237 hrs 100%
Senior Field Representative $91.00 100 hrs 20%
Clerical $90.00 138 hrs 100%




Mission Statement
Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique
institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable
world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art research, creative scholarship, and
transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World.

PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
(Following Student Affairs Committee)

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda
4. Public Comments

5. Action Item(s)

A. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than
$60,000.00 (SUNO)

on/Ler
LA L A €

1. Monchielle Instructor New Position Search 75,00 0
Bolds School of Nursing New Appointment :
2. Monique Hurst | Program Coordinator, Title | Existing Position N/A $57,200.00 | $60,648.00 Federal
IV-E Salary Adjustment
School of Social Work
3. Ivan Johnson Asst. Director Existing Position Search $ 58,000.00 | $60,000.00 State
Financial Aid New Appointment
4, Shantel Lee- Chief Disbursement Officer | Existing Position Search $59,987.00 $ 62,000.00 State
Hubbard Comptroller New Appointment
5. Courtney Smith Director Existing Position Search $59,000.00 $65,000.00 State
Residential Life New Appointment

B. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than
$60,000.00 (SUBR)

1. Bianca Lloyd Staff Pharmacist New Position Search | $103,000.00

Student Health New Appointment




C. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than
$60,000.00 (SUAREC)

1. D’Andrea Lee Special Assistant for New Position Waived
Stakeholder Engagement | New Appointment
Communications/External

Relations

D. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than
$60,000.00 (SUS)

1. Darren Dixon Director of Alumni Affairs | Existing Position

Institutional Advancement New Appointment

E. Request Approval of Leave of Absence for Deleso Alford, Director of the Off-
Campus Instructional Site (SULC)

F. Request Approval of Leave of Absence for Dr. Joycelyn Harrison (SUBR)
G. Request Approval of Retirement Incentive Plan (SULC)
H. Request Approval of Flexible Summer Hours Work Plan (SUNO)

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Mr. Sam Gilliam - Chairman, Mrs. Christy Reeves—Vice-Chair,
Atty. Tony Clayton, Ms. Zazell Dudley, Dr. Leon Tarver, II, and Dr. Arlanda Williams,
Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio









DocuSign Envelope ID: DCFEO7BC-ADCB-44AE-ADGE-EBBAZO0F29E7
This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and
does not afiect employment considerations.

ETHIC ORGIN (Please check one):

Hispanic or Latino X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):

White. Not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Affica, or the Middle East.
X Black. Not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerio Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins,
regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in auy of the original peoples of tie Far East, Southeast Asin, the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Istands. This area inchudes, for example, Chinn, Japut, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samon.

Amercan Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peaples of Norih American, and who
maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or commaonity recognitions,

W

COMMENTS:
EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: varies per Class ScheduTe
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: br. Kelly smith
| NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) n/a
| HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. Al prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (§) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens,

Documentation_must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is

offered.

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS):

TYPE CODES EXPIRES
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization us
Resident Alien RA
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability} H1
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) )
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at 3.U.) Fl1
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience”) Fo

Do Not Write Below This Area _
For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions}
Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee)
Exemptions Survey Form

Proposed Employee Appointment

Proposed Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

|

il

Rov. 6/30/2005



















CREDENTIALS AND CERTIFICATIONS

BLS, AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION-EFFECTIVE 7/21-7/23

ACLS, AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION-EFFECTIVE 7/21-7/23

CNE, NATIONAL LEAGUE FOR NURSING EFFECTIVE 10/2019-10/2024

OTHER ACTIVITIES

Student Advisor

Class of December 2018 Faculty Advisor

CARE Faculty Representative on the Admission, Progression and Graduation Committee
Joanna Briggs tnstitute Systematic Reviewer Training Certification

Safe Zone Training

Faculty Coordinator of Night Out Against Crime-October 2016

Junior Faculty, Research and Schofarship Committee

AWARDS AND SPECIAL RECOGNITION

OCTOBER 2015-HONORED LOUISIANA GREAT 100 NURSES
APRIL 2016-NOMINATION FACULTY DAISY AWARD
DECEMBER 2016-RECEIVED FACULTY CARING AWARD
APRIL 2018-RECEIVED FACULTY DAISY AWARD









DacuSign Envelope ID: 7FF572AC-BB54-4ECE-B3BF-BF 1ESB4ABIEE
This information is requested sofely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and
does not affect employment considerations,

ETHIC ORGIN (Please check one):

Hispanic or Latino : X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):

White, Not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Alrica, or Lhe Middle East.
X Black. Not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish cultuse or origins,
regardless of race,

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the For East, Southeast Asia, the Indion
Subcontinett, or the Pacific Islands, ‘This area icludes, for example, China, Japon, Kores, the Philippine Islands, ond Samon.

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peaples of North American, and who
maintains cultural identification through Lribal affiliation or commmunity recognitions.

o

COMMENTS:

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Monday-Friday, 8am to Spm

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Rebecca chaisson, Ph.D.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 0

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work, All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
D, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The laiter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

Documentation_must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is
offered,

CLASS OF EMPLOVMENT (VISA STATUS):

TYPE CODES EXPIRES
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization uUs

Resident Alien RA

H-1 Visa (Distingnished Merit & Ability) H1

J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) J1

F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) F1

OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Expetience”) FO

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee)
Exemptions Survey Form

Proposed Employee Appointment

Proposed Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

|

/]

Rev. 6/30/2005



DocuSign Envelope ID; 7FF572AC-B654-4ECB-B3BF-BF 1{ESB4ABOEE

Monique M. Hurst, LMSW

EDUCATION/CERTIFICATION
05/21 — Certification — Diversity, Equity & Inclusion in the Workplace, University of South Florida Muma
College of Business
10700~ LA State Board of Sacial Work Examiners, Licensed Master Social Work, (LMSW)
05/99— Graduate — Master of Social Work, MSW, Southern Untversity at New Orleans, LA
Administration, Planning and Organization; /Children, Youth and Families
05/94 — Graduate — Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, BA, Southern University at New Orleans, LA

SKIILS

Organization & Program Management Grant Writing & Fiscal Management
Facilitate & Influence Change Policy and Operations Development
Education and Training Facilitator Knowledge of Accreditation Certifications
Professionalism & Leadership Skills Facilitate Community Collaborations
Effective Communication Innovative & Critical Thinking
Ability to Problem Solve Priovitize inultiple task demands
Computer Skills / Electronic Client Data Systems Working with Diverse Populations
EMPLOYMENT

Southern University at New Otleans, School of Social Work

03/ 18 — Present Prograni Coordinator

Title IV-E Child Welfare Training Academy
Serve as the university linison, as a member of the Child Welfare Training Academy Statewide Alliance. Responsibilities
consist of recruitment and placement of student in field internship, working with students, field supervisors and field
agencies. Facilitate training and collaborations with the Department of Children and Family Services (DCF. S).
Facilitating the interviewing and selection process for both undergraduate and graduale students in field placement within
DCFS, to obtain the necessary skills to advocate for children and their families to maintain the safety of children. Co-
Facilitator of the Statewide Scholar Community of Practice Groups, Coordination and planning of workshops for
professional development and continuing educations opportunities for Social Workers as required by the La. Board of Social
Work Examiners, Presenter at the National Title IVE Child Welfare Roundtable Conference (2023). Prepare program
veports, collaborate with colleagues and participate in other program activities.

Southern University at New Orleans, School of Social Work

09/ 17 — Present Adjunct Professor

Responsible for facilitating classroom education and instructing undergraduate and graduate students enrolled. Provide
guidance for students to incorporate Social Work theory into practice. Planning and creating lectures, in-class discussions,
and assignments. Grading assigned papers, quizzes, and exams. Serve as the university liaison for the placement of student
in the field by working with students, field supervisors and field agencies.

Humana Insurance

4/15-11/17 Telephonic Care Manager

Responsibilities are to provide Telephonic Care Management to Medicare members by facilitating member engagement fo
provide educations, information and resources to assist with maintaining optimal health. Facilitate the completion ofa
holistic personal needs assessment to identify the area of need based on the member concerns related to their psychological,
emotional, financial, medical and environmental needs offering interventions to obtain resources and services to address their
concerns. Coordinate community care as appropriate to work collaboratively with other medical professional. Maintain
compliance with quality performance, service delivery, documnentation and reporting requirement to assistant with
organizational goals.




DocuSign Envelope |1D: 7FF572AC-B654-4ECB-B3BF-BF 1EBB4ABIEE

Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals

Office of Behavioral Health — State Headqguarters

12/13-4/15 Program Manager — Adult Behavioral Health Treatment & Services

Responsibilities are to provide statewide monitoring to insuring licensing compliance for all Behavioral Health Service in the
State of Louisiana. This would consist of administrative oversight, program policy development, surveillance and technical
assistance to adult residential and community-based programs, Manage contractual agreements for outpatient, inpatient,
residential and prevention services, ensuring quality and therapeutic services with the development of progranmmatic policy
and procedures for service itaplementation, planning, organizing, coordinating and evaluating program design for services
delivery and continuity of care. Facilitate site monitoring visits, analyzes program performance reports and strategic
planning, This also included the monitoring of $2. 7M budget ensuring fiscal solvency, fiscal compliance, monitoring
expenditures and reporting from each region with the state of Louisiana, Coordinate and facilitate staff development,
trainings, consultation and quality assurance monitoring via electronic health records. Review and approve invoices for
payment and insurance billing. Serve as a Legislative Liaison and Feer Review Coordinator.

Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals
Metropolitan Human Services District — Region I- Tri-Parish Area
04/13-11/13 Mental Health Regional Director

Responsibilities are to provide administrative oversight divection and inanagement for all Behavioral Health Services, to
include mental health, addictions, crisis continuum, clinical intake, screening and contract monitoring of community-based
service providers. Ensure quality and therapeutic services by planning, organizing, coordinating and evaluating service
delivery to facilitate continuity of care that may consist of psychiatry services, medication management, resource
coordination, respite services, hospital transitions, and case management. Development of programmatic goals, objectives
and procedures for service implementation, evaluates and analyzes program performance; facilitate site monitoring visits /
reporting, and strategic planning, Provide support and supervision to Program Managers and Leadership, provided staff
development, staff recruittment and evaluations, Provided consultation regarding facility and program design.

Louisiana Departinent of Health and Hospitals

Metropolitan Human Services District — Region 1- Tri-Parish Area

04/12-04/13 Mental Health Program Director / Children’s Services

Responsibilities are to provide administrative direction and oversight for Children's Mental Health - Specialty Services, to
include contract monitoring of providers. Ensure that clients veceived quality and therapeutic services by planning,
-organizing, divecting, coordinating and evaluating service deffvery that may consist of individual and family therapy,
psychology and psychiatry services, medication management, case management, respite, hospital transition and
interdisciplinary teaws meetings in various settings, such as the dinics, juvenile court and community-based services. Youth
and family members are provided the necessary supports for them to manage their lives and treatment of mental health,
substance abuse, addictive disorders or co-occurring diagnosis. Coordinate programs emphasis on evidence-based
curriculum’s and best practices when delivering services. Development of programmatic goals, objectives and procedures for
service implementation, evaluaies and analyzes program performance, factlitate provider training, site monitoring visits /
reporting, and strategic planning, Provide support and supervision to Program Managers and Leadership, provided staff
development, staff recruitment and evaluations. Provided support and coordination of the Regional Advisory Council,
Represent the agency to collaborate with community partners and other service providers. Provided consultation regarding
Sfacility and programn design for services delivery, coordinated agency accreditation through the Council of Accreditation for
Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF)

Total Home Health / St. Michael Home Health— Gretna, LA
12/09— present Medical Social Worker (Retained As Needed)

Facilitate assessmenis fo assist the physician and other interdisciplinary team members with addressing the
physical, psychological, emotional and environmental factors as it relates to a patient’'s health, recovery and
continuum of care. Maintain and review the electronic health records of the patients to identify necessary
modification of care / ireatment plans to comply with changes in patient’s status according lo measurable goals
identified. Provided education and guidance fo family members to assist them in understanding and supporting the
patients’ recovery from illness and medical procedures for healthy behavior changes and health promotion.



DocuSign Envelope ID: TFF572AC-B654-4ECB-B3BF-BF1EBB4ABIEE

Advocalte for patients fo resolve crisis, overcome dependencies, assist and refer the patient o community resources
to assist in their recovery and obtain opiimal health. Monitor external supportive services provided to the palients
and completion of all necessary documentation.

Kingsley House, Inc. — New Orleans, 1.4

06/05-03/12 Deputy Program Officer / Community Service Progranis

As a member of the Fxecutive Team, my responstbilities were to direcily supervise the Administrative Team of Program
Managers and provide oversight for agency programs providing services that focuses on academics, health education,
healthcare, mental health/ counseling services, prevention services, Medicaid outreach, education and enrollment, case
management and supportive services. Facilitate program implesnentation, grant writing, 37M fiscal management/
budgeting, stafft volunteer and intern supervision, recruitment, hiring, facilitate staff orientation and in-service trainings,
development of the agency’s’ operations, policy and procedure manuals to maintain standards for both licensing and
accrediting bodies, Facilitate quality assurance review for compliance, computer operations and statistical data-based
management, Facilitate informational seminars and presenfations on behalf of the agency / programs to local, state and
national groups. Co-Facilitated the agency’s reaccreditation process with the Council on Accreditation (COA4) and
Louistana Association of Non-Profit Organizations (LANQ). Serves as agency liaison with community service providers fo
include private, local, state and federal agencies, Serves as facilitator to the Board of Directors / Community Relations and
Advocacy Commitiee.

Orleans Parish Juvenile Court — New Orleans, LA

07/08 - 09/09 Contract Social Worker (Part-time)

Responsibilities consisted of facilifating home-based services to “first time” offending juveniles entering the judicial system.
Services were provided to facilitate assessments, counseling, supportive services, case management and therapeutic
tervention to minimize crisis, monitored mental health services delivery, screened for substance use. Monitored a diversion
program to include parenis, guardians and family support system to facilitate natural supports for successfill completion,
Planned, organized and executed community services projects for youth, Provided education ro the family unit to assist with
obtaining the necessary communify resources. Reported to the members of the inter-disciplinary team, judges, educational
personnel and other providers.

Kingsley House, Inc. — New Orleans, LA
08/02-06/05 Program Manager, Adult Services

Adult Day Health Care Progrant and Senior Center
Administrative oversight of program operations which consist of the supervision of the nursing staff (RN & LPN) CNA's,
transportation providers, social workers, volunteers and interns. Staff recruiting, staff training, program development and
implementation, mainfaining compliance with state and federal licensing guidelines, budget development, fiscal
management, gathering statistical data, analyze ! develop statistical reports, completing all billing and funding reports, grant
writing, quality assurance, participant recruitment, Responsible for participant assessment, enroliment, development of care
plans and the facilitation of inter-disciplinary team meetings to collaborate with service providers. Facilitated informalional
seminars and presentations on behalf of the agency / programs to local, state and national groups, public relations, agency
liaison, collaborated with other agencies and service providers.

Kingsley House, Inc. — New Orleans, LA
04/00 - 08/02 Program Manager, Youtlh Services

After School Prograim, Summer Camp and Teen Program
Administrative oversight of program operations which consist of the supervision of staff, volunteers and interns, staff
recruiting, staff training, program development and implementation, maintaining compliance with state and federal
Iicensing guidelines, budget development, fiscal management, gathering statistical data, analyze/ develop statistical reports,
completing all billing and funding reports, grant writing, quality assurance, participant recruitment, enrollment,
development of service plans. Monitored therapeutic counseling, prevention and educational services. Facilitate
informational seminars and presentations on behalf of the agency / programs to local, state and national groups, public
relations, agency liaison, collaboration with other agencies, interdisciplinary teams and services providers.



DacuSign Envelope ID: 7FF572AC-B654-4ECB-B3BF-BF{EBB4ABIEE

The Methodist Home for Children — New Orleans, 1.4

05/98 — 04/00 Coordinator of Foster Care Services

Provided administrative oversight of program functions, quality assurance, consultation and supervision to Case Managers,
Foster Parents and Foster Children. Recruitment of foster families, facilitate pre-service and in-service trainings, developed
and implemented policies and procedures, developed program operations manuals, evaluated and recommended certification
of foster homes and families. FProvided 24-hour crisis intervention, assisted with billing for the program and payments to the
Joster parents, developed individualized treatment plans, supervised case management services that provided families with
resource fo maintain placements working in to establish and maintain partnerships with other community service providers,
evaluated staff and foster families’ performances.

09/96 —02/98 Therapentic Foster Care Case Manager

Served as advocate for abused, abandoned and neglected children placed in state’s custody. Provided consultation and
supervision to Therapeutic Foster Care Farents and Children in an effort fo maintain placements, home visitation,
developed individualized treatment plans, assess specific problems and developed plans of resolution with the foster families,
provided 24 hour crisis intervention, collaborated with other service providers, provided case management, develop quarterly
reports monitored and maintained case records.

Helping Hands Home Services, Inc. — New Orleans, LA

09/96 - 01/01 Owner / Adwministrator

Frovided oversight for all aspects of the agency to ensure effective and efficient datly operations of service delivery by
professional and direct care staff. Services consisted of nursing services, nurse aides, housekeepers, and drivers, In addition,
client services consisting of medication and meal monitoring, transportation, case management, social activities, conducted
assessments and interviews with prospective residents and family members to identify social, medical, and daily service needs
to aide one’s independence and community residency to avoid placements into a long-term care facility. Additional duties
consisted of the development and implementation of policies and procedures, development of operations manuals for service
delivery, quality assurance and budgeting.

ORGANIZATION/VOLUNTEER AFFILIATION

2007 — 2010 National Institute for Senior Centers - Delegate

2007 - 2009 Louisiana Association of Nonprofit Organizations - Peer Reviewer
20022017 Big Easy Kiwanis Service Organization — Board Member / Member
2001 - 2015 Knights of Peter Claver Ladies Auxiliary — Board Member/ Member
2019 - Present Choice International Family Outreach Ministries- Financial Officer

2021 2023 The Right Choice Project — Board Member










DocuSign Envelope ID; 51C7AAFS-FECE-4D7B-A895-6242CC0A4AE
This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws nnd
does not affect employment considerations.

ETHIC ORGIN (Please check one):

Hispanic or Latino X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):

White. Not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the originat people of Europe, North Afiica, or the Middle East.
X Black. Not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerlo Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins,
regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origius in any of the original peoples of the Far Enst, Southeast Asin, the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This nrea includes, for exaple, Chin, Jopon, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having otigins in any of Ui original peoples of North American, and who
mainfains cultural identification through (ribal affiliation or commaunity recognitions.

W

COMMENTS:

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Monday - Friday, 8am-5p

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Jason callico

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) n/a

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

: GUIDELINES: All employees, students graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
D, social security card, hirth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

Documentation_must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is

offered.

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT {VISA STATUS):

TYPE CODES EXPIRES
United States Citizen/Cerificate of Naturalization us

Resident Alien RA

H-1 Visa {Distingnished Merit & Ability) Hl

I-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program} 11

F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) F1

OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience™) FO

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement (position edvertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee)
Exemptions Survey Form

Proposed Employee Appoiniment

Proposed Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

I

Hov. 6/30/2003




lvan Johnson

To secure a challenging and responsible position that will allow me to utilize my customer service
experience and leadership skilis.

Work Experience

Special Education Teacher
Macon County SChools
August 2022 to Present

- Performs a variety of assessments and observations to determine the areas in which the student may
need extra or modified educational services. Assessment areas may include academic performance,
behavior, social development, or physical heaith.

- Identifies the student's needs and develops related lesson and teaching plans.

- Develops an integrated plan for the education of each child by collaborating with classroom teachers,
parents, psychologists, social workers, and other medical and schoof staff.

- Develops individualized education programs (IEPs) for each student, setting learning goals and adopting
modifications as necessary; ensure each student's activities and lessons are planned and organized
according to histher abilities.

. Develops and teaches lessons that provide engaging learning opportunities for small groups and
individual students while meeting the required specifications of

IEPs and 504 pians.

- Implements IEPs, provides ongoing or follow-up assessments, continually track progress and makes
modifications as necessary.

. Coltaborates with classroom and homeroom teachers to ensure each student’s needs are met and plans
are followed.

Financial Aid Director
Fortis College
March 2015 to july 2022

. Collaborate with admissions to support the recruitment of new students.

- Work closely with other campus representatives to ensure that financial aid practices support the
retention of students and the timely processing of financial aid.

- Supervise and provide training to staff

. Ensure that the department delivers high-quality customer service

- Award financial aid according to established packaging policies and regulations.

- Provide support for the school's recruiting and admission strategies through the financial aid delivery
process for prospective students in coordination with the

Call Center Supervisor, FiS Global
April 2012 to March 2015

- Supervised the daily activity in the call center environment.



- Interviewed potential employee candidates.

- Maintained employee payroll,

- Trained new agents on product knowledge and company policies.

- Provided help-desk support for employees® software and computer issues.

- Followed escalation procedures to open tickets for computer repairs and software instaliation delivery
process.

Education

Master of Education in Learning Design and Technology
Post University - Waterbury, CT
june 2022 to June 2023

Bachelor in Special Education
Queens College - Charlotte, NC
November 2021 to May 2022

Skills
« Skiled in Windows Operating Systems, Ll:\'ﬁ:gple QOperating System. Experience in
i

i Windows XP, 2003, Vista. Krowledge in Microsoft Office Word, Excel, PowerPoint,
Access, Outlook, Basics computer operations and repairs.

.

Special Education
+ Teaching

Special Needs

+ Classroom Management
+ Autism Experience

+ Developmental Disabilities Experience
« Behavior Management

« Teaching

« Learning technology

« Classroom management
« Training & development
< Operating systems

« Windows

« [nterviewing

« Supervising experience
* Recruiting

« Customer service

= Payroll

Leadership
« Google Suite

Special education




« Education administration

+ Financial services

Instructional design

Classroom experience

Schedule management

Experience working with students
« Tutoring

Microsoft Office

Microsoft Word

Microsoft Powerpoint

-

*

Microsoft Excel
Microsoft Outiook
Computer literacy

-

Computer skills
+ Communication skills

.

Analysis skills

* Human resources
+ Kronos
Languages

+ English - Expert

Certifications and Licenses
Special Education Certification
Driver's License

CPR Certification

First Aid Certification










DocuSign Envelope ED; 1G12E1AF-3871-4443-83F6-B1B2A7544F82
This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and
does not affect employment considerations,

ETHIC ORGIN (Please check one):

Hispanic or Latino X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):

White. Not of Hispanie origin. A pecson having origins in any of {he original peopls of Furope, North Alfica, or the Middle East,
X Black. Not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or othex Spunish cutture or origins,
regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A porson having origins in any of the origiutal peoples of the Far Bast, Southeast Asio, the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippitte 1slands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who
maintains cullural identification through tribal affiliation or connmunity recognitions.

W

COMMENTS:

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE; Monday - Friday, 8a - 5p

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Alonda Gibson

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 0

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work. All students nre to bring with them clearance from the Financinl Aid office, Statement
of Account {fee receipt), and a clnss schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictored
1D, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S, Citizens.

Documentation must be proyvided for review and approval by Human Resources before emplovment is
offered.

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS):

TYPE CODES EXPIRES
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization us
Resident Alicn RA
H-1 Visa {Distinguished Merit & Ability) Hi
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) J1
F-i Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at $.U.) F1
QPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience™) Fo

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outiined below):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee)
Exemptions Survey Form

Proposed Employee Appointment

Proposed Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

1]

Rev. 630/2005



- o e s

Shantel Lee-Hubbard

A highly resourceful and passionate Individual that is detall-criented, organized, reliabie in the
completion of prajects, effective at multitasking, and experlenced ir various accounting systeris.
Significant attributes ihclyde: profassiopal and honest communicatdr, respected and trusted by staff
and Jeaders within the industry, tenacious focus on resolving issues and a loyal lialson of management
to associates.

Work Experience .

Accounts Payahble

Odyssey House - New Orleans, LA

March 2022 ko Present

: Process general journal éntry.

+ Reconiclied véndor statements to resolve outstanding/duplicate payment [ssues.

- Reconchled statements received from vendors.

+ Praduced-accourits pavable chiecks. Serve ds the polnt of support for customers and/or vendors..

» Maintalned applicable accounts payable files in-adherence with the company's policy and procedures,
« Asslst.with various prejects as assigned by the direct manager.

+ Recantiled vendoi statemerits to résolve outstanding/duplicate payment lssues..

« Reconciled statements recelved from vendors.

- Produced &ccounts payable cliecks, Serve as the point of support for customérs and/for vendors.

» Maintained applicable accounts payable files In adherence with the company’s policy and pracedures,
- Processed requisitions and purchase orders

Accounts Payable / Receivable

Hotel Saint-Vincent - Néw Orleans; LA

may 20621 to Jahdary 2022

- Distribute invalces to appropriate departments for approval..

» Reconciled vendor-statements. to resolve qutstanding/duplicate payment issues.,

- Reconciled statements. recelved from vendors.

« Produced accounts payable ¢hecks. Serve 8s.the point of suppert for ¢ustomers and/ar vendors,

- Maintalned apglicabje accounts payable files in adherence with the company's policyand protedures.
- Assist with various projects as assigned by the direct manager..

Staff Professional, Risk Manager

Marriott ihtérnational - Atlanta, GA

August 2016 to August 2020

» Managed 75-150 casualty cialms on assighment.,

» invéstigated, evaluated ahd disposed of claims promptly.

- Secure documents to facliitate timely loss.adjustments and maintain settlements
» Completed requlred service calls to claimants.



+ Schiedulé&and hold morithly credit Meetihgs to review delinquent acceunts.
- Evdluated claims for potential third party or subrogatfon recovery.

Accounts Receivable
W Atlanhta Midtown - Atlanta, GA
Decembigr 2015 to August 2016

+ Involce multiplé praperties and allocate charges ta'the property via journal entry,
- Processed billing and adjustments for clients and large graups.

~ Compilé and.distribute metiods of ‘paymerit information for various cystamers.

+ Prepare and camplste balance sheet reconcillation each month.

+ Schedule arid hold marithly eredit meetings to review delinquent accounts.

« Check arid respond ta guest calisiand eimails.

General Accountant

Retiaissance Cancourse - Atlanta; GA

May 2012 to December 2015 ,
- Responsible for-Géneral Cashicr dutles, incliding preparing deposits-for frant office. and outlets.
- Conducted random bank. audits every mionth.

- Réconciléd hilling differences between dlients and company ragords

» Ahswered all billing inquiries tn a timely manner to ensure excellent customer-servicé.

+ Prepared all group departuré bills for Event Management to review,

» Cdlleéted bad debt arid prepared Executive Team report for-month-end meeting

+ Bequested creditspwritezoffs on uncollectible acgounts and uncaollectible tems

+ Monitored the BET's that was.sent to resolve ih BARR

General Accountant

New Orleans Marriott.- New Orleans,.LA

March 2008 to May 2012

+ Pracess varlous:refiunds Tor transient and group dccounts.

- Resolved Business Exception Tracking (BET's) on a dally basis

~ Reconclled transient, Expedia, Travalocity, Priceline and varlos cruise line accounts on 4 daily basis:
 Collected bad dekt and prepared Executive Team report for month-end meeting

- Agglst manageria team in coflection-of outstanding balances from varlous accounts.

- Monitored. the BET's that wassent to resolve i BARR

Education.
Bachelor of Sc¢ience it Criminal Justice

Southern University - New Orleans, LA
My 2002

Skills

« Well regarded for interpersonal, written and verbal commuhlcation skills
» Effectively handle multiple tasks simultaneously
+ Strong hospitality sklils




« Abjiity-to prioritize my workload
« Demenstrate strong leadership skills, as well as 2 team player
= OnRemand

‘s PMS

s NGS§

« GCS,

* Series

* Peoplesoft

« Words

‘»-Accounting

» Accounts recejvable

» Customer service

= Leadership
























DocuSign Envelope 1D: F2FAD729-C86F-4B80-80E4-4D589F 524914
This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and
does not affect employment considerations,

ETHIC ORGIN (Piease check one):

Hispanic or Latino X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):

White. Not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Affica, or the Midde Ensl.
X Black. Not of Hispanie Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins,
regardless of mce,

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the originel peoples of the Far East, Southeas! Asie, the Indian
Subcoxtinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Jupan, Kores, the Philippine Islands, and Samon.

American Tndian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who
maintains cultural identification througl tribal affiliation or community recognitions.

400440040

COMMENTS:

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Monday - Friday, 8am-5p (weekend & evenings)
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Zackeus Johnson, Ph.D.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 2

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work, All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
1D, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94, The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is
offered.

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS):

TYPE CODES EXPIRES
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization Us
Resident Alien RA
H-1 Visa (Distingnished Merit & Ability) Hl
-1 Visa {Exchange Visitor Program} 11
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at $.U.) Fi
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience™) Fo

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined belowy):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee)
Exemptions Survey Form

Proposed Employee Appointment

Proposed Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

|

1]

Rev. 6/30/2005



Courtney Smith

Summary
A proven and highly motivated results-orientated Admissions & Recruitment Enroliment Manager,
offering versatile office management and leadership skills. Strong planner and problem solver who
readily adapts to change. Fxcellent ability to juggle muitiple priorities, meet tight deadlines effectively
oversee student needs.

Strong organizational skills in working Strong ability to compile information &
environment reports
Fxperienced in group Management Excellent leadership skills
mobilization

Employment Experiences

Assistant Director of Housing and Residential Life - June 2023- Present

Southern University at New Orleans, New Orleans, LA
Responsible for the total student development program within a residence hall area, including the
supervision and development of the GRC and RA student staff, development of a healthy community
environment, housing operations, crisis response and the coordination of a secondary assignment that
supports the processes of the Office
On a small, collaborative campus, Assistant Directors also have the oppartunity to be involved in campus-
wide initiatives that will expose themn to a number of different areas in student development and higher
education

Develop and implement strategies and initiatives to creale a safe, healthy, educational and inclusive
residentiai environment

Oversee the completion of Room Condition Reports, Roommate Agreements, and periodic reom
inspections

Oversee area opening and closing processes

Meet with students as needed and provide referrals to University resources

Communicate and respond ta concerns from parents, guardians, and other constituents

Report student concerns through appropriate channels

Follow up with students as directed by Office or Divisional leadership

Responsibilities include supervising professional staff members, being the primary point person for all
administrative functions within the area, as well as working directly with the director and associate
directors to ensure safe, clean, developed communities

This position serves as a catalyst for student engagement in the residence hall communities and role-
models’ daily interactions with students for other professional staff




Director of Admissions & Recruiting - June 2022- June 2023

Alcorn State University, Lorman, MS
Provides leadership and facilitates program successes in student recruitment and admissions. lead,
directs, and collaboratively develops and facilitates the execution of a student recruitment plan that
results in the enroliment of an optimal number of students annually, per the University’s Strategic Plan.
Establishes goals for admissions department and representatives
Provides administrators and other offices with detailed and well-planned student forecasts; Oversees
student projections, no shows and student drop rates
Builds relationships with prospective students by initiating communications with prospective students
and their parents
Conducts second interviews with prospective enrollees to ensure successful completion and placement
Motivates admissions staff to meet and/or exceed campus targets and standards on an on-going basis
Assists with the organization, preparation and delivery of the communication flow
Works in collaboration and cooperation with other departments and academic divisions to achieve
departmental/university goals for recruitment and admissions
Provides continual evaluation of processes and procedures for recruiting students
Organizes and participates in on-campus and off-campus recruitment and enrollment activities, including

high schoot and coliege fairs
Maintains compliance for the University to admit internaticnal students; Serves as Designated Officer (DO)

for undergraduate international students

Senior Admissions Counselor/ Recruiter - August 2018- June 2022
Alabama A & M University, Normal, AL
Communicate with prospective students, parents and community through appointment, telephone, email
and other materials;
Assist with the development of enroliment marketing publications and communications inctuding letters,
brochures, website posting, electronic mail and other medium;
Determine admissibility, transferability of credit, and residency for new and readmitted undergraduate
students; classifies and places students into appropriate academic units;
Present information ahout the benefits of an education from the department, college or area being
represented at onsite locations and to on-campus visitors;
Foster and develop relationships with schools or other areas being recruited;
Compile recruitment data from Banner and other academic records;
Visit schools and colleges, speak to groups and individual students, and meets with school officials to
develop partnerships between the University and other institutions throughout the state; coordinates
community workshops, retreats, and on-site admissions programs;
Advise students and families regarding educational opportunities and options, admission and other
requirements, policies and procedures, transfer of credit, and financial assistance, as appropriate;
Contribute to the institutional database of prospective/potential and current students in the state;
Audit student data and conducts statistical research to target population for recruitment and judge
recruitment effectiveness;




Analyze trends in student recruitment and retention programs; designs and implements recruitment
programs for targeted groups of potential students, and develops strategies for program evaluation;
Participate in the development of operating goals and objectives for the unit; recormmends, implements,
and administers methods and procedures to enhance operations, as appropriate to the unit;

University Housing & Technology Coordinator- March 2018- August 2018
Alahama A & M University, Normal, AL

Coordinate the ongoing housing application process and annual housing renewal process;

Coordinate the mechanics of assignments including special interest living communities and living learning
communities that are placed within the residence halls;

Work with Athletics to gather break housing needs, and coordinate the placement/reassignment of
athletes when the residence halls are closed during the academic year;

Plan and coordinate the logistical aspects of summer housing programs that are sponsored by Alabama
A&M University;

Provide professional, customer service oriented response to students, parents, and guardians as limited by
federal and state [aws;

Responsible for updating, creating and dissemination of efectronic messaging in the form of posters,
flyers, and on-line website marketing materials related to the housing calendar information and the
registration process;

College Career Readiness Counselor- UT- Outreach September 2016- March 2018
University of Texas- Austin, Houston, TX
Educate students about the college application process and alternative options for students who are not
college-bound;
Exert knowledge to better guide juniors and Seniors through application process, college/career search,
and college preparedness;
Coordinate College Fairs, FAFSA Workshops, College Admission Fairs, Recruitment, & Scholarship
Workshops;
Coordinate college trips, educational retreats and workshops (parents and students);
Organize workshops {monthly) for parents, related to the high school/college application process
Setting up recruitment events for high school students who have accepted admissions to Colleges and
Universities;

Schotarship Counselor- Office of Student Financial Aid & Scholarship February 2013 ~-September 2016
Prairie View A & M University, Prairie View, TX
Assist in ensuring compliance with Titte IV Federal funding, state and NCAA regulations and enhancing
internal controls;
Develop procedures to ensure compliance with mandated regulations; assist in audit reviews and policy
implementation; compose financial aid award agreements; maintain and update the scholarships criteria
datahase as needed; review on a continuous basis, accounts for funding availability; revise scholfarship
applications and information for distribution; assist students with scholarship searches; Counsel
prospective and current students and families concerning financial aid including the application and
awarding process, budgeting, and the securing of resources to meet expenses; respond to



electronic, written, and verbal communications regarding financial aid;

Serve as mediator between account holders and department heads to ensure compliance of established
award criteria; prepare, coordinate, and conduct presentations and workshops on financial aid related
information at both on-campus and off-campus programs; provide support for federal, state,
institutional, and private financial aid programs;

Learning Cornmunity Manager-University College Residential Housing August 2006-February 2013
Prairie View A & M University, Prairie View, TX
Managed a staff of 25 or more Community Assistants, Technicians, and 1428 Residents;
Administered counseling, mentoring, and referral services; Implemented curricular and social events
while assisting with supervision of study halls; Assisted students with conflict resolution and handling
student discipline and policy enforcement, documenting and submitting incident reports within 24 hours
of occurrence;
Provided great customer service; Arranged work schedules & prepared monthly payrolt for Community
Assistants and Residential Service Technicians; Counseled and advised students on academic issues
relating to their major & assisted students with major declaration;
Assisted academic advising for new, transfer, continuing students, registration & recruitment
for  potential student &recruited for American Campus Communities Housing Campaign
through marketing, & social networks;

Education
Prairie View A & M University 2001-2006
B.A. in Political Science
Prairie View A & M University 2006-2008
M.Ed in Educational Administration




soen-FHI Heat Dy Conia

1O Mo P

Ploalids Servtoes

VY ARG

February 14, 2024

Frederick C. Waiton Ph.D.

Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs
Southern University and A&M College
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

Dr. Waiton,

After careful review over the past year, { am requesting the following new position title and appointment of Bianca
Loyd Pharm.D, RPh as a Staff Pharmacist full time at the Student Health Center. This position will serve as
additional pharmacy staff personnel for the Student Health Center and wilt recelve direct supervision by the
Pharmacist in Charge. Dr. Loyd served initially as a part time special hire and later became part time staff
pharmacist to fulfill the immediate need of pharmacy coverage in Student Health. Since coming aboard nearly 2
years, she has shown professionalism in relating to and in educating of our students concerning heaith and
pharmacy services, Dr. Loyd is a 2012 graduate of Southern University and demonstrates a passion to give back
her skills and talents to the university. Therefore, | am reguesting a waiver of announcement of this position and
the appointment of Dr. Loyd with a fair market salary of $103,000 annually for this full-time position.

The ability to offer onsite pharmacy services to our students remains a vital tool to overcome the healthcare
disparities in our community. Likewise, the ability to staff the pharmacy adequately will prevent the disruption of
services to our students and provide fulltime coverage without closures during lunch hours or special events. The
presence of two pharmacists will support and enable our vision to initiate pharmacy internships and pre-pharmacy
programs thru partnerships with accredited pharmacy programs.

Thani you for your consideration,

Lad) Jl1fon 4 Nod Y- ) g,

L4
Greta Wilkes M.D. Director, Student Health N JorEn K. Pierre
interim Executive Vice President

P4 hbd Do ) Mol
i/

F. Carl Walton Ph.D. Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs Dennis J, Shields

President



POS CLASS

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

EMP CLASS
Personnel Action Form j pgsiTioN
HI RT LV
|||l nomescr |2 (M9 |6 |7 |9
M
CAMPUS:  SUS SUBR X SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER {Specify)
TYPLE OF APPOINTMENT:
Academic (Fac) X Non-Academic (Uncl) Civil Service
Part-time % of Full Time) Restricted
Temporary (must he indicated if less than 108%) Detail #of mos
Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment
Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
Other {Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status
Previous Employee _N/A Reason Left
Date Left Salary Paid

Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment To
Effective Date of Employment May 1, 2024

Name _Bianca Loyd Pharm D SS# Sex Female  Race* B
(Last 4 digils only)
Position Title: _Stafl Pharmacist Department: _Student Health
Check One Existing Position *Visa Type (Sec Reverse Sidel: | | | |
X New Position Visa Expiration Date: =~

(Position vacancy autherization form must be processed and approved to fill
existing and new positions. Pesition must be advertised before processing PAF, if
applicable.}

Yenrs Experience 7 years Southern University Experience 2 years
Degree(s):  Type/Disciptine (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
BS Biology Southern University- Baton Rouge 2912
Doctorate of Pharmacy Xavier University- New Orleans 2021
Current Employer

Personnel Action

CheckOne X  New Appointment Conlinuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence

Transfer Replacement Other (Specify)
Annaal Salary _$103,000.00 Salary Budgeted _$103,000.00 Hourly Rate, il applicable: _
Pay Cycle: Biweekly X Meonthly Eaculty
Source of Funds: _ Student Health Idcntify Budget: 216060-27401 Laocation:
Change of:

From To
Position:
Status: Part time Full time
Salary Adjusiment: 355,00 hourly $103,000.00 annuakly
Financial Aid signature (if, applicable):
List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds (Current) Amount
Southern University: 216060-27401-29000 $103,000.00
*See Reverse Side
f Comments: (Use back of form) I

#*See Reverse Side . Gradaate School signature (if, applicable):

=T coviger L0 7
ig’g-[/u AJJJ,)\;M———) o f-u D

Vice Chancellor - Date Chancellor Date

Divector/Personnel Date Vice President/Finance Date
Business Alfairs/Comptroller

Presideut Date Chairman/S.U, Board of Supervisors Date






SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY STUDENT HEALTH CENTER
Job Description

JOB TITLE:; STAFF PHARMACIST FULL-TIME
DEPARTMENT:  Student Health Center

REPORTS TO: Pharmacist-In-Charge/ Dircctor Student Health/Louisiana
Board of Pharmacy/DEA

JOB SUMMARY:

To serve as Staff Pharmacist part time and perform duties in accordance with Chapter 11
of Title 46 of the Louisiana Board of Pharmacy law

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES include the following. Other
assignments, projects, and duties may be required:

1. Serve with, communicate to and assist the Pharmacist-In-Charge with pharmacy
operations for the Student Health Center pharmacy.

2. Dispense medications and provide pharmacy services to Southern Universily
students using proper pharmacy procedure,

3. Plans pharmacy purchasing, storage and dispensing as instructed by the
Pharmacist-In-Charge.

4. Responsible for compliance with the requirements for continuing permit status
and the pharmacy’s portion of licensing, certification or accreditation standards
for the Student Health Center and Southern University.

5. Adheres to and maintains specifications for use of pharmacy equipment.

6. Maintains and updates the formulary to provide current and new product
information to clinic providers.

7. Assists with the preparation of inventory reports, statistical reports and budget
requests.

8. Assure the monitoring and evaluation of the quality and appropriatencss of
patient services provided by the pharmacy department.

9. Adheres to established quality control criteria and audit findings for compliance
to ensure program effectivencss

10. Ensure the availability of medical emergency supplies, drugs and pharmaceutical
services

11. Participate in staff outreach and off-site health care programs in the service area
as assigned by the Student Health Dircctor or Southern University
Administrators.

12. Complies with any Infection Control plan, which includes personally utilizing
universal precaulions. .

13. Participate in peer review, quality assurance, provider meetings, and other clinical
meetings.



14. Assist in updating protocols and principles of practice as requesied by regulatory
agencies and Southern University.

15. Assist in oulside medical/pharmaceutical public relations functions as approved
by the Student Health Director.

16. Adhere to productivity standards and meet at least the minimum requitrement 1o
provide quality and timely pharmacy services lo students of Southern University.

17, Maintain all prescription records in a readily retrievable format in accordance
with Louisiana Board of Pharmacy and DEA guidelines

18. Ensure the security of the pharmacy and iis contents at all times

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES:

May exercise functional supervision of pharmacy operational services in the
absence of the Pharmacist-In-Charge

QUALIFICATIONS:

L,

2.

Current Louisiana license to practice pharmacy plus two years of experience as a
licensed pharmacist

A doctorate in pharmacy or completion of an accredited pharmacy residency program
will substitute for two years of required experience,

Position may require additional experience or training based upon compliance with
the Student Health Center and Southern University employee regulations or protocols

Page2 of 2






-Pharmacy Intern Licensure- PIN.048474

PROFESSIONAL AFFLIATIONS

2017-Present: Christian Pharmacy Fellowship International
2017-Present: American Pharmacists Association- Academy of Student
Pharmacists

-2018-2019: Operation Immunization Co-Chair

-2019-2020: OTC Medication Chair

2018-Present: Student National Pharmaceutical Association
2018-Present: Louisiana Society of Health-system Pharmacists
2018-Present: Student College of Clinical Pharmacy

2019: Kappa Psi Pharmaceutical Fraternity Inc.

2019-2020: Chaplain of Kappa Psi Pharmaceutical Fraternity Inc.
2019-2020: Professional Development Chair of Kappa Psi Fraternity Inc
2019-2020: P3 Class Vice President

2020-2021: Miss 4t year Pharmacy

2020-2021: Phi Lambda Sigma Leadership Retreat Coordinator

COMMUNITY SERVICE

Thanksgiving Day Drive: 2017-2020
Operation Christmas Toy Drive: 2017-2020
Trick or Trunk: 2017-2019

MLK Day of Service: 2017-2020

Baton Rouge Free Clinic: 2018

Operation Wellness: 2017-2020

UNCF Walk Health Fair: 2017-2019

New Hope ministry- Free Spirit Women of Victory Health Fair: 2018
Reach Out and Read: 2019

Hands on Nola: 2020

Habitat for Humanity: 2020



References:

Dr. Tammy Hart-

1 Drexef Dr.

New Orleans, La., 70125
504-520-5362

Dr. Lakeisha Williams-

1 Drexei Dr.

New QOrleans, La., 70125
504-520-5192

Dr. Brittany Singleton-

1 Drexel Dr,

New Orleans, La., 70125
504-520-7308

Samantha Drake,RPh-
1214 Main St.

Baker, La. 70714
225-405-3867

Michelle Mott,RPh-
1214 Main St,
Baker, La. 70714
225-328-9511






JoB
CLASS
Jon SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
ggl??n Personnel Action Form | POSITION [ | l I ‘ I l
NUMBER
S
CAMPUS:  SUS SUBR SULAC SUAREC _X SUNO SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER (Specify)
X Acadenmic Non-Aceademic Civil Service |
Temporary Part-time ( % _ of Full Time) Restricted |
‘Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment !
X Tenured Track Gradusate Assistant Probationary |
Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status
Previous Employee - _N/A Renson Left
Date Left Salary Paid
=
Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment To
Lffective Date _ April 1, 2024
Name _D’Andrea Joshua Lee SSH_U01375844 Sex Female  Race* AA
("8" number)
Position Title: _Special Assistant for Stalicholder Engagement Department: Communieations/External Relations
Check One Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): lu | s | :
' X New Position LExpiration Date: ,
(Poslition vacaney authorizatlon furm must be provessed and approved lo fill existing |
and new positlons. Position must be adverlised hofore processing PAF, if applieable.) 1
Years Expericnce 27+ Years Southern Unlversity Experlence 27 Years ‘
Degree(s)r  Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Yenr: ]
BS-Business Adminlstration Southern University and A&M College-Baton Rouge, LA 1984 B
MS-Administration 8 Supervision Southern Unlversity and A&M College-Baton Rouge, LA 2007
Curvent Employer _ Southern University
= ———— — e e
Personnel Action
CheclcOne X New Appointment _ Confinuation _ Sabbatical _ Leave of Absence s
__ Transfer __ Replacement _____ Other (Specify) :
i
Recommended Salary $100,586 Salary Budgeted $100,586 {
Source of Funds State Funds
Tdentify Budget:  611001-64050-66000-76% Laocatlon
627001-66100-66000-24%
Form Code; Page Ttem #
Change of:
Irom To i
Position Dircetor of Call Center Speeinl Assistant for Stalkeholder Engagement
Status Full-time Full-Time |
Salary $100,586 $100,586
Adjustment
Financial Ald alﬁnuture ‘il‘. neplicahle):
List total funds currently paid this employee by Souree of Funds Amount
Southern University: 211001-21051-61002-26000 304%
*Sce Reverse Side 220495-21051-61002-24100 69.5%
( Comments: (Use bacl of form) |
*See Reverse Side Gradunte Schaol signature (if, applicable):
e Satincy, {hblinn 6 L ) et . Al é v ,
-/{ = M 04/02/2024 ) M 04/02/2024
Supervisor Date Denan/Unit Hend Date
f"fj.. ety lhillinis, é v / @ L 0410212024
= //4 04/02/2024
Vi Date Chancellor Date
]
fee President/Finance Date

Business Affairs/Comptroller

President Date Chairman/S.U, Bonrd Date
of Supervisors









Complies and distrifbutes weekly registration and enroliment reports, end of semester reports lo various
exacutive and administrative uniis

Electronically submits monthly enroliment data and degree verification to the Natlonal Student Clearinghouse.

Administration

Performs supervisory dulies including hiring new employees and directs the training and cross tralning of all
staff members.,

Supervises all auditing reporting along with report drafting.

Coordinales the maintenance of the Student Registration Dala System and alf course registration aclivities.
Highly proficient In the Banner 9 Web Reglstration and functional on alf student reglstration operaltions,
Supports and coordinates Office of External Affalrs with Events for various depariments and communily
relations and serves a head hostess for special events as the Protocol Officer.

Implemented the I Quality Assurance Customer Service Cail Center. Proficient in all areas of providing
Customer Service Employee Tralning and Development Workshops. Speclalized skills in the ability to traln
all Student Service Leaders and Student Workers on the FERPA and HIPPA Compliance and Confidentlalily
Policles.

Coordination/Evaluation

Collaborales with the Chancelfor and Vice Chancelors to evaluate and certify candidates for graduation,
order diplomas and manage purchase order contracis,

Coordinator of University Commencement, Convocations, end all related Speclal Event planning.

Coordinates the on-line course scheduling of classes and other activilles that enhance the student and
Facully developmental process.

Asslsts with preparation of the academic calendar and curriculum calalog and enforces all policles within the
Academic and Student Services Calalog entries.

Provides cuslomer service siaff training and task management development within the Office of Enroliment

Management and all areas of the student regfstralion depariments.

Employment History

2021-Present Director of Call Center and Qualily Assurance / Coordinator of Special

Events
e Offlce of Enroliment Management, Southern University A & M College
e Office of External Affairs and University Relations/Communications, Baton

Rouge, Louisiana

2013-2021 Director of Records and Enroliment Management/Registrar,

Southern University Law Center, Baton Rouge, Louisiana



2012-2013

2008-2012

2005-2008

2003-2005

2001-2003

1997 - 2001

Educalion

Assistant Vice Chanceilor of Records and Enroliment Management,

Southern University Law Center, Baton Rouge, Loufsiana

. University Registrar.

Office of the Registrar, Southern University, Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Associate Registrar,

Office of the Registrar, Southern University, Baton Rouge, Loulslana

SCHOLARSHIP COMPLIANCE and DATA CONTROLS SPECIALIST,
Division of Enrollment Management, Southern University, Baton Rouge, LA

ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR of the FINANCIAL AID OFFICE
Office of Financlal Aid, Southern University, Baton Rouge, Louislana

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SCHOLARSHIP COMPLIANCE OFFICER/

Consumer {nformation Coordinator, Baton Rouge, Louisiana

B.S. Business Administration/Secondary Education

Southern University A&GM College, Baton Rouge, Louislana - August 1984

M.Ed. Administration and Supervision

Southern University A&M College, Baton Rouge, Louisiana - July 2007

ACCOMPLISHMENTS, Special Skills and Awards

Employee Supervision Management with excellent Leadership Skilis

Customer Service Professional Providing Special Services with In-service training
to University Employees and Staff

Scholarship Compliance Officer-SUBR

Coordinator and Liaison for LOFSA/TOPS

Service to several committees providing superior resources

Southern University's Hospltality Hostess of the President's Speclal Guest and
Dignitaries/Coordinates and Committee Chair of Special Events

Superior analytical skiils with ability to develop new procedures and multi-task
projects and timelines

Instrumental in multitasking - providing reports to Auditors on the System Level,
Legislative and State Board of Regents. Proficient in the knowledge of technical

support as a Team Leader in the Reaffirmation of SACSCOC.






Special Assistant for Stakeholder Engagement

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center (75%) &
College of Agricultural, Human and Envitonmental Sciences (CAHES) (25%)

The Special Assistant for Stakeholder Engagement will hold a 25% appointment within the
Office of the Vice Chancellor for Academics-Associate Dean, and a 75% appointment in the SU
Ag Center — Office of Communications, Advancement, and Technology Services. This unique
role will encompass a wide range of responsibilities related to stakeholder engagement. This
includes support for special events where the individual will be responsible for executing
logistics essential to the success of these occasions. Additionally, the role involves the
coordination of student activities, management of legislative affairs, community outreach
initiatives, and facilitation of donor relations. The individual in this position will play a crucial
role in maintaining positive relationships with key stakeholders and supporting various functions

across both departments.

Duties and Responsibilities

« Collaborate with the broader team to enhance internal and external communications

strategy, including events planning and management.

« Work with the College and the Ag Center to effectively and efficiently execute

special projects such as events, exhibitions, student activities, and legislative functions.

« Assist with the expansion of stakeholder engagement through university/campus
partnerships and activities, This includes prospective donor engagement and the scheduling
of meetings.

« Identify and schedule stakeholder meetings for the Director of Advancement/Vice

Chancellors to enhance the SU Ag Center/ CAHES brand and sponsorships.

« Serve as a liaison for internal events/committees where the Ag Center/CAHES is

represented.

» Work with the planning committees for the efficient coordination and execution of major

Ag Center/CAHES meetings.



« Facilitate the efficient utilization of SU Ag Centet/CAHES Administrations’ time by
assisting with coordination and hosting of external engagements and community functions,

 Perform other duties as assigned.

« Developing and implementing strategies to engage key stakeholders, including
government officials, community leaders, industry partners, and nonprofit organizations.

» Organize and attend meetings, workshops, and events to facilitate dialoéue and gather
feedback from stakeholders.

« Conduct research and analysis to identify emerging issues, trends, and concerns among
stakeholders,

« Provide recommendations and advice to leadership on stakeholder engagement initiatives,







JOB CLASS
OB COBE SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
B n
Personnel Action Form [posrTioN

CALID NUMBER

CAMPUS: SUS X SUBR SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY:  9-MONTH 12.MONTH XX - OTHER {Specify)
Academic XX  Non-Academic Civil Service
Temporary Part-time ( % of Full Time) Restricted
Tenured Undergraduate Stndent Job Appointment
Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status

Previous Employee  Dr, Kendric Stewart Reason Left _New Position

Date Left February 23, 2024 Salary Paid $90,000,00

Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment Ta
Effective Date May 1, 2024

Name _Darrin Dixon 8S#  433-57-4254 Sex M Race* B
(Last 4 digits only)
Position Title:  Director of Alumni Affairs . Department: _Institutional Advancement
Check One X Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):
New Position Expiration Date:

(Position vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fli
existing and new positions, Position must be ndvertised before processing PAF, if

applicable.)

Years Experience _30 Southern University Experience _4

Degree(s);  Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
Master Business Administration University of Phoenix 2013, June
B.S., Agricultural Economics Southern University and A&M College 1992, May

Current Employer _ Winnfield Funeral Home
e USSR eY

Personnel Action
Cbeek One New Appointment Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Abhsence
Transfer X  Replacement Other (Specify)

Recommended Salary _$90,000.00 Salary Budgeted 390,000.00
Source of Funds _State

Ideniify Budget:  111005-11158-61002-16000 Location Alumni Alfairs

Form Code: Page 1tem #
Change of:

From ) . To

Position :
Status

Salary Adjustment

Financial Aid_s_ignature (if, applicable):
List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount
Southern University:
*See Reverse Side
| Comments: (Use back of form) "

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable): P
PP -

-»—J—:_j:/’" I

e —
T L 23

Va3 - :
Supervisor <7 {Dafe 7 Dean/Unit Hefd” " Date
Vice Chancellor Date Chancetfor Date
Director/Personnel Date Vice President/Finance Date

Business Affairs/Comptroller

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board Date
. - of Supervisors ’



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining complinnce with Federal Civil Rights Laws and
does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one):

Hispanic or Latino Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):

White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Afiica, or the Middte East.

XX  Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa,

Hispanic, A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins,
regardless of race, :

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who
maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition.

TR RS MR _
COMMENTS:
EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 8:00am-5: (0pm
TEMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Alfred E, Harrel, ITT

SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER _225-771-3911

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 3

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed throngh the use of this form are to
report to and be cleared by the Human Resonrces before any employment is offered and before starting to work.
All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Account (fee receipt), and
a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured ID, social security card, birth
certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, HI-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-1/1-94, The latter
six {(6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is
offered.

CLASS QF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS):

TYPE CODE EXPIRES
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization : : us

‘Resident Alien o ' RA

H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) H1

J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) b

F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) Fi

OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience”} Fo

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below}).

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)

Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fec/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Iuman Resources with Criminal/Background Check form)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Checlk Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor)
Exemptions Sutvey Form (signed by employee and budget head)

Proposed Employee Appointment

Proposed Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

[

Rev. 0772472007



Mr. Darrin L. Dixon

7200 Gregory Street

Shreveport, LA 71108

: (318) 422-6024 (Cell)
E-Mail: darrin _dixon@rocketmail.com

RELEVANT SKILLS:

Proficient in Microsoft Office (Word, Excel, Power Point)
Organizing and Creating Non-profit Organizations

Grant Writing and Proposal Development

Excellent Oral and Written Communication

Budgeting and Financial Management

Managing Federal Grants

Business Credit Analysis (Economic Development Finance)

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Winnfield Holdings (Winnfield Funeral Home)

Vice President of Operations — Funeral Division, September 2022 — Present

Participate in the hiring and training of new leadership members

Coordinate efforts with various teams and Board of Directors as required

Lead status update meetings with General Managers (weekly huddles)

Drive collaboration across the organization to identify needs and develop scalable
solutions.

Oversee all team operations, ensuring projects are completed before deadline and
within budget

Responsible for the overall successful operation of the team

Manage a diverse, multi-disciplined team of professionals

Prioritize clear objectwes and implement strategies to achieve company mltlatlves
Ensure REPS — Reputation — Experience — Professionalism — Service exceeds
consumer expectations

Responsible for ensuring leadership achieves monthly and annual revenue goals
Responsible for ensuring locations achieve annual service goals. (10% increase
annually)

Form and lead internal teams, providing training and mentorship as needed.
Directly and indirectly manage staff with the goal of enhancing professional
development and personal growth.

Evaluate subordinates and provide constructive feedback

Manage employee concerns through collaboration with Human Resources
Directly and indirectly manage buildings and vehicles for professional appearance
during services




Build and manage relationships with the community, community leadership,
vendors and families.

o Maintain awareness of market and industry trends

« Manage Company operations while supporting practices and enforcing protocol.

Southern University at Shreveport

Center Director for Louisiana Small Business Development Center at SUSLA,
October 2020 — August 2022

Oversees all aspects of SUSLA SDBC’s operations and performance. Contributes
to the development, implementation, and updating of the LSBDC's strategic plan.
Directly responsible for ensuring performance of Center’s economic impact goals.
Ensure that organizational goals and objectives are accomplished in a timely and
‘thorough manner. .

Assesses, determines, and designs timelines, programs and services that meet the
requirements of the local funders, the LSBDC Network, and the US Small Business
Administration (SBA). :

Recruits, trains, and supervises full and part-time staff to support administrative,
consulting and training operations.in the defined LSBDC service area

Develops, monitors, and reports on annual budgets and performance milestones
established in conjunction with funding and programmatic schedules.

Establish and manage an advisory board comprised of funders, community
stakeholders, and small business leaders.

Adjunct Professor, Business Studies, August 2013 — Present

Provided instruction in the areas of Introduction to Entrepreneurship, Intro to
Business, and Legal Environment for Business
Administered evaluation tools to determine student learning outcomes

¢ Posted grades to banner system for midterm and final

Executive Director of Entreprencurship and Small Business Development Programs
/Incubator Manager, July 2003-Present

Managed building project for the university-based kitchen incubator

Responsible for implementing the goals and objectives of the HUD grants

Built coalitions with community-based organizations and other civic groups
Mediated between community partners and the University

Implemnented programs and disseminated information that is beneficial to small
businesses

Developed entrepreneurship curriculum

Planned class curriculum for participants that are served by our community partners
Organized and facilitate activities for the Project Advisory Council




Managed the day to day activities of the University business incubator

Provided technical assistance and other pertinent information to tenants of the
incubator and other business interests

Developed homeownership training and education program

Wrote and was awarded $1,520,000 in grants for community economic
development activities

Developed culinary kitchen incubator

Executive Director of the Southern University Shreveport CDC

Reviewed and scored grant proposal for the Department of Housing and Urban
Development

Work to build capacity of non-profit organizations

Caddo Parish School District

School Board Member, April 2021 — Present

Address concerns of constituents of the district
Introduction and develop of policy

Hire and evaluate the Superintendent of Schools
Propose and manage budget

American Family Life Assurance Company (AFLAC)

Insurance Producer, August 2002 — June 2003

Solicited potential employer groups to provide supplemental health benefits to the
employees

Coordinated benefit programs that were beneficial and tailored for potential
employer groups

Facilitated group meetings to educate potential clients about the products that were
available to them through their employer
Scheduled and conducted enrollment process to allow employees to apply for
various insurance benefits

Provided the company payroll clerk with spreadsheets for employee payroll
deductions

Processed paperwork for claims for individuals who have need

East Carroll Parish Police Jury

Police Juror, January 1996 — December 2002

Served as member of parish governing authority, supervising five department heads
Prepared, approved, and oversaw departmental budgets

Analyzed financial statements

Negotiated contracts with outside agents




Planned and implemented new strategies to improve the quality of life for parish
residents :

Hired and dismissed departmental heads

Doveloped and evaluated policies and procedures which impacted the general
constituency and parish employees

Disposed of personnel concerns and grievances

Chaired the Sixth Judicial District Prison Board, which governed a $3 milliondollar
prison system |

Provided oversight to the East Carroll Parish Head Start program to ensure that the
program functioned in accordance with Federal Performance Standards

Provided oversight for the parish housing authority

Provide oversight to the Parish Section 8 program [ Active member of the
Louisiana NARHO

Harris Funeral Home

Funeral Director, July 1994 — June 2002
Assisted in the management of a funeral services business
Directed funeral services
Conducted family arrangement conferences
Counseled bereaved family members
Maintained all funeral and death records as required by the State of Louisiana
Recriited and enrolled life insurance clients as well as collected monthly premiums

Town of Lake Providence

Assistant Coordinator (Empowerment Zone), January 1994 — December 1994

e Researched and collected data that related to the socio-economic statistics of Fast
Carroll Parish .
Compiled list of Parish resources, civic and religious and businesses
Organized and facilitated community-wide meetings concerning strategic planning
and developing a community vision
Assisted in preparing housing needs assessment for proposal
Assisted in the development and writing of the economic development component
of the empowerment zone application
Traveled to other towns to assist them in organizing their communities
Headed the Youth Vision component of the proposal and wrote their vision for the
plan




EDUCATION:

¢ Master Business Administration, University of Phoenix, June 2013
- e B.S., Agricultural Economics, Southern University and A&M College, May 1992

JOB-RELATED TRAINING

Community Economic Development Training (LSU)

Business Entrepreneurial Skill Training

Certified National Foundation for Teaching Entrepreneurship

Certified by National Business Incubation Association in Incubation Management
Economic Development Finance Training (Business Credit Analysis)

HONORS/ACTIVITIES/PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

Top Forty under 40 Young Professional of Northwest Louisiana, 2007

Top Five Future Leaders to Watch in Shreveport (Shreveport Times, February
2007)

Minority Business Council, Executive Committee, Chairman

Louisiana Business Incubator Association, Board Member

Goodwill Industries of Northwest Louisiana, Board Member

Queensborough Neighborhood Association, Board Member

Fuller Center, Board Member

Micro-enterprise Development Alliance of Louisiana (MEDAL), Board Member
Shreveport Job Corp Center, Advisory Council

Strategic Action Council Board of Directors

Strategic Action Council CDC, Co-Chair

Shreveport Bossier African American Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors,
Chairman

Historic Black Colleges and Universities Community Development Action
Coalition, Board Member |

Northwest Louisiana Minority Supplier Institute, Co-Chair

2018 Movers and Shakers Award, Shuffling Along Foundation

Strategic Action Council, Chairman 2021

United Way of Northwest Louisiana, Chairman 2022

Committee of 100 of Northwest Louisiana

Pathways in Education, Board Treasurer




Job Description

» The Director of Alumni Affairs is responsible for the planning, implementation and
management of programs and projects that strategically engage alumni in strengthening
programs and provide tangible benefits to alumni and current students for the Southern
University System.

» The Director of Alumni Affairs is charged with securing commitments from alumni to direct
resources, provide professional expertise and volunteer service; collaborating with staff in
campus offices (including, but notlimited to Development, Career Services, Recruitment and
Admissions, and Communications) and the five System campuses to create and maintain
pathways for alumni participation that advance the goals of the Southern University System;
coordinating with the Institutional Advancement team to identify, cultivate, solicit and
steward alumni giving.

+ The Director of Alumni Affairs reports to the Southern University System Executive Director
of Institutional Advancement and is a member of the Advancement team. The Director of
Alumni Affairs also serves as the Executive Director of the Southern University Alumni
Federation and is an ex-officio member of the Federation’s Executive Board.

» Inthe director’s capacity as Executive Director of the Federation, he or she shall report to the |
organization's Executive Board and serve as a liaison between the Federation’s Executive
Board and university system units. The director shall work closely with the Federation's
President and Executive Board to advance the organization and the university’s objectives.

Minimal Qualifications:

Bachelor's degree (master’s preferred), and a minimum of five years of management experience in
alumni affairs, development or related area. Strong communication, leadership, problem-solving,
strategic thinking, and interpersonal skills. Advanced proficiency in Microsoft Office and a range of
technology and cloud membership/fundraising management systems required.

How to Apply:

Interested applicants should submit a Southern University employment application (Click here),
fetter of interest, resume, and three letters of professional references to:

Alfred E. Harrell, 111

Southern University System Institutional Advancement
598 Harding Boulevard

Baton Rouge, LA 70807

alfred harrell@sus.edu



























SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER

UNCLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES
RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN

The Southern University Law Center (SULC) will offer a retirement incentive plan in accordance with
the Southern University and A&M System Board of Supervisors’ (Board) Policy for Unclassified
Employee Regular Retirement Incentive Plan. The eligibility criteria for the retirement incentive plan
(Plan) will be based on the Board’s policy and the following guidelines specific to SULC. The Plan
will be offered through June 3, 2024, with a retirement/resignation date of June 30, 2024,

Retirement Incentive Plan

I.

SULC Unclassified employees who are current and full-time are eligible to participate in the
retirement Plan.

Employees must be eligible for regular retirement under the Louisiana State Employees Retirement
System (LASERS), Teachers Retirement System of Louisiana (TRSL), or the Optional Retirement
Plan (ORP) and should meet all plan eligibility requirements as of the application date.

To participate in the retirement Plan, a SULC unclassified employee shall not have applied for
retirement or received notice of termination prior to application. This exclusion shall not include
those who are still working but are officially retired under the Deferred Retirement Option Plan
(DROP).

The retirement incentive will be fifty percent (50%) of the SULC unclassified employee’s annual
base salary, for the fiscal year 2023-2024. The retirement incentive will be paid after separation
from the Law Center, and upon the employee/retiree providing a copy of their Retirement Pay
Advice.

The retirement incentive payment is subject to all applicable federal and state taxes and regulations.

The position vacated by the SULC unclassified employee, who resigns through participation in the
retirement plan, will not be filled prior to July 1, 2025, unless said position is deemed critical to the
effective and efficient operation of the unit. This provision will ensure costs savings through the
2024-2025 budget year.

In each department, for every three (3) unclassified employees eligible for retirement, one (1)
qualified employee will be allowed to participate in the retirement incentive plan on a first come,
first served basis. However, the Plan will be limited to Four (4) participants. If all applications ate
received at the same time, the lottery method will be employed.

An unclassified employee who wishes to participate in the plan must complete a Retirement
Incentive Plan Application along with the regular retirement system documents, and submit them
to the System Vice President of Human Resources (HR), and simultaneously, submit a copy

1



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER

UNCLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES
RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN

10.

11.

12.

of the Retirement Incentive Plan Application and retirement system documents to the Chancellor
of the Law Center, no later than the close of business on June 3, 2024.

Applications for the retirement plan herein described shall be submitted in writing to the System
Vice President of Human Resources, and simultaneously, a copy of the application to the Chancellor
of the Law Center, via electronic media or hand delivery. Applications submitted via U.S. Postal
Service or an overnight delivery/mail service should be evidenced by a returned receipt
signed by an employee in the HR Department, and will be considered received on the date
they are received by the HR Department. All submissions made by electronic media must be
followed by delivery of the original documents within 48 hours of the electronic submission. The
employee must obtain proof of delivery signed by an employee in the HR Department.

Upon notification of approval, the SULC unclassified employee must submit a letter of resignation
as required in the application. The SULC unclassified employee must also officially retire from the
university. The Plan is not applicable to resignations not accompanied by retirements.

Upon notification of approval of acceptance to participate in the Plan, the Unclassified Employee
will have a Grace Period of seven (7) calendar days to revoke their election to participate in the
Plan. An Unclassified Employee’s revocation of election to participate in the Plan must be in writing
and must be received by the System Vice President of Human Resources before the expiration
of the grace period. Simultaneously, a copy of the Unclassified Employee’s revocation of election
to participate in the Plan must be received by the Chancellor of the Law Center. An Unclassified
Employee, who submits the required documents and has been approved to participate in the Plan
and then revokes their election to participate in the Plan, may not again elect to participate.

Any unclassified employee who participates in this plan cannot be rehired by SULC for a period
of two (2) years.






Southern University at New Orleans
Flexible Fridays
Summer Hours Work Plan Pilot

Benefits of Flexible Scheduling

Customer Service Delivery — In offering a shorter workday on Friday, core
office hours will extend to 6pm, which allow time for working adults to engage
with the various student services. By tailoring our business to the needs of our
clientele, we position ourselves to address enrollment and student success
matters at times that are more conducive to the population we serve.

Reduction in Expenses — Closing the campus earlier will allow us to shut off the
cooling system, which will help reduce expenses along with reducing the strain
placed on the system.

Increased Productivity — With improved employee morale, there is a strong
correlation to workplace productivity. According to the Harvard Business Review
(2015), “disengaged workers had 37% higher absenteeism, 49% more accidents,
and 60% more errors and defects. In organizations with low employee
engagement scores, they experienced 18% lower productivity, 16% lower
profitability, 37% lower job growth, and 65% lower share price over time.”"
Employee Morale — Implementing a flexible schedule this summer will
demonstrate to our employees that we are listening. With last year's Employee
Satisfaction Survey, we yielded a 40.8% participation rate. Some of the
feedback that we received related to the low participation was that the
administration was not listening or acting on their concerns. The implementation
of such a program will demonstrate not only that we are listening, but that we
care,

Mental Health — Recently, organizations have become more aware of the
impacts of mental health on their employees and workplace productivity. Post-
pandemic, more employees are looking to their employers to put programs in
place that provide for increased work-life balance.

Recruitment and Retention — Flexible scheduling during the summer months
provides us with an opportunity to boast an added benefit when scouting for
prospective employees. Moreover, it will place SUNO in line with some of the
competition (i.e., Delgado Community College, etc.).

Proposed Work Schedule

8:00am-6:00pm-Monday-Thursday
8:00am-12:00pm-Friday

15eppala, E., & Cameron, K. (2015, December 1). Proof that positive work cuftures are more productive.

Retrieved from Harvard Business Review: https://hbr.org/2015/12/proof-that-positive-work-
cultures-are-more-productive



Mission Statement
Through shared governance, leadership, and a diverse system of unique
institutions, the mission of the Southern University and A&M College System is to deliver affordable
world-class education, a trained workforce, state-of-the-art research, creative scholarship, and
transformational public service to the State of Louisiana, the Nation, and the World.

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(Following Personnel Affairs Committee)

AGENDA

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Adoption of the Agenda

4. Public Comments

5. Resolutions

6. Action Item(s) !

A. Approval of Minutes of the March 15, 2024, SUS Board of Supervisors Meeting
(SUS)

B. Request Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations (SUS)

C. Request Approval to Rename and Restructure the Office of Equity and Inclusion
and Title IX (SULC)

D. Request Approval to Proceed with Litigation to Recover for Fire/Water Damage
at Shreve Library (SULC)

E. Request Approval of Second Amendment to Service Agreement with Advanced
Biomedics, LLC and to Authorize the President with Chairman Approval to Send
any Notices Deemed Necessary and Appropriate. (SUAREC)

F. Request Approval to Extend the Contract of DeCuir, Clark & Adams, LLP for
Professional Legal Services (SUS)

G. Request Approval of Chancellor Orlando McMeans’ Contract (SUAREC

' Pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 42:17, executive session may be required



7. Other Business

8. Adjournment



I|Page

SU LABORATORY SCHOOL COMMITTEE
March 22, 2024
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor
Baton Rouge, LA.

MINUTES

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chair Myron K. Lawson.
Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the SU Laboratory School Committee. Chair Dr. Rani Whitfield called
the committee meeting to order.
The invocation was given by Dr. Mary Whitley Moss. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Brian Hilton an exceptional student
at Southern University Laboratory School.
AGENDA ITEM 3: SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

A. Above and Beyond Award

Ms. Tashieka Davis introduced Ms. Oretha Lee; Financial Aid - Southern University Baton Rouge (SUBR)

Ms. Lee thanked everyone for the award.

B. Esports Trade Association Presentation
Presentation done via zoom — Christopher Turner

Recognition of Special Guests (Chairman Lawson)

AGENDA ITEM 4: ROLL CALL by President Dennis Shields

Present: Dr. Rani Whitfield - Chairman, Mrs. Ann Smith —Vice-Chair, Mrs. Christy Reeves, Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert
and Mry Jyron Young and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio

Absent: Mr. Paul Matthews
AGENDA ITEM 5: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

There was a motion by Ms. Christy Reeves and second by Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert; the agenda was recommended for
adoption.

Motion Approved.
AGENDA ITEM 6: PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

AGENDA ITEM 7: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s)

A. Update on SULS Academic Performance
Mr. Brister gave an update on Southern University Laboratory School’s Performance.



2|Page
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024

SULS Concert Choir was in attendance and provided a song selection.
There were comments and accolades given by several board members.
AGENDA ITEM 8: OTHER BUSINESS
None
AGENDA ITEM 9: ADJUOURNMENT

A motion was made by Mrs. Christy Reeves to adjourn the meeting.



3|Page

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

(Following SU Laboratory School Committee)
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor
Baton Rouge, LA.

AGENDA

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Academic Affairs Committee. Member Dr. Leon Tarver
called the committee meeting to order.

Roll Call by President Dennis Shields

Present: Dr. Leon Tarver — Chairman and Mr. Sam Gilliam — Vice Chairman, Atty Tony Clayton, Mrs. Maple
Gaines, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr Arlanda Williams, and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio

Absent: NONE
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

There was a motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and second by Mrs. Ann Smith to adopt the agenda.
Motion passed.

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS

None
AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s)

There was a motion by Atty Tony Clayton and second by Ms Maple Gaines to approve Action Items 5 A & B in
Global.

Motion passed.

A. Request Approval to Award Dr. Demetria McJulien-Lassiter as Chair Emeritus of the Department of
Social Work. (SUBR)

B. Request Approval to Restore Endowed Professorships in the College of Business for the 2024-2026 Period

ENDOWED PEOFESSORSHIP EECOMMENDED INDIVIDUAL
Tolor E. White Professorship Dr. Sasib Ahmed
5U Bugness & Industry Cluster Professorship . Latfu Sagbansua
Lincoln J. Harrison/Coca-Cola Professorship Dr. Tesfalidet Tulue

Leon Netterville'K elog Pr of essorship Dr. Donald E. Andrews



4|Page

and Appoint the Following Four Professors who were Selected by the Committee Based on Performance (SUBR.

C. Request Approval to Host Separate Commencement Ceremonies for Undergraduate and Graduate
Students. (SUBR)

Chancellor Pierre gave a summary of Item 5C. There was lengthy discussion among the board members who
were concerned about the research and logic behind the request. Chancellor Pierre explained to the board
members. Atty Clayton made a motion to defer this request for at least 30 in order to get the student input
whether it be through a survey or necessary tool, but the students’ input is important. The board member
agreed.

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS
None

AGENDA ITEM 9: ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Mrs. Ann Smith to adjourn the meeting.



S5|Page

FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE

(Following Academic Affairs Committee)
Southern University System Board Meeting Room
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2" Floor
Baton Rouge, LA 70813
MINUTES

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Facilities and Property Committee. Chair Atty Edwin
Shorty called the committee meeting to order.

Roll Call by President Shields

Present: Atty. Edwin Shorty — Chairman, Atty Domoine Rutledge — Vice Chair, Mr. Paul Mathews, Mrs. Ann
Smith, Dr. Leon Tarver II, Dr. Rani Whitfield, and Mr. Myron K. Lawson, - Ex Officio

Absent: NONE

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Dr. Leon Tarver, II the agenda was recommended for adoption with
amendment — Informational Item 5A was moved to SULS Committee.

Motion passed.
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS
None
AGENDA ITEM 5: INFORMATIONAL ITEM:
A. Update from Public Services Commissioner, Mr. Davante Lewis
B. Global Gateway Village Southern University Development Concept (SUS)
C. Facilities Update (SUS)
AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS
None
AGENDA ITEM 8: ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Dr. Rani Whitfield to adjourn the meeting.



6|Page

FINANCE COMMITTEE

(Following Facilities and Property Committee)
Southern University System Board Room
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2™ Floor
Baton Rouge, LA 70813
MINUTES

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Finance Committee. Chair Dr. Arlanda Williams called
the committee meeting to order.

Roll Call by President Shields

Present: Mrs. Arlanda Williams- Chairman, Mrs. Ann Smith -Vice-Chair, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mrs. Christy Reeves,
Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Dr. Leon Tarver II and Atty. Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio

Absent: NONE
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Upon the motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and seconded by Ms. Ann Smith the agenda was recommended for adoption.

Motion passed.

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS
Whitley Parker — Student Bar Association — Agenda 5B
Increasing the non-resident fee will greatly impact the students: more debt — the ability to remain at the law center and

the ability to afford law school.

Angela Kilgore — SULC — Agenda 5B
Due to continuing inflation & such, there are financial restraints causing a burden upon students.

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s):
Chancellor Pierre gave a summary of Action Items A & B. There were comments from board members.
The motion was made and approved.

A. Request Approval to Establish an Academic Cloud-Based Systems Fee (SULC)

B. Request Approval to Increase Non-Resident Fees for the 2024-2025 Academic Year (SULC)
AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS:
None
AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Atty Domoine Rutledge to adjourn the meeting.



7|Page

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

(Following Finance Committee)
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor
Baton Rouge, LA.
MINUTES
Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Governance Committee. Chairman Rev Dr. Samuel
Tolbert called the committee meeting to order.

Roll Call by President Shields

Present: Rev. Dr. Samuel Tolbert - Chairman, Dr. Rani Whitfield — Vice-Chair, Dr. Leon Tarver, Ms. Christy Reeves, Mr.
Jyron Young, Atty. Edwin Shorty and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio

Absent: None
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and seconded by Mr. Jyron Young the agenda was recommended for
adoption.

Motion passed.

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS
NONE

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s)

A. Request Approval of the Updated Naming Policy (SUS)
Atty Corinne Blache gave a summary. Chairman Lawson moved for further discussion.

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS:
None

AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made by Chairman Myron K. Lawson to adjourn the meeting.



8|Page
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024

LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

(Following Governance Committee)
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor
Baton Rouge, LA.

AGENDA

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Legal Affairs Committee. Vice Chair Atty Domoine
Rutledge called the committee meeting to order.

Roll Call by President Shields

Present: Atty. Domoine Rutledge — Vice Chair, Mrs. Maple Gaines, Mrs. Christy Reeves, Atty Edwin Shorty, Mr.
Jyron Young, and Atty. Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio

Absent: Atty Tony Clayton - Chairman
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Upon the motion by Mrs. Christy Reeves and seconded by Atty Edwin Shorty the agenda was recommended for
adoption.

Motion passed.

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS

NONE

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(s)

There was a motion by Atty Edwin Shorty and seconded by Ms. Christy Reeves to approve action item SA.
Motion approved.

1. Action Item(s)

A. Request Approval of Agreements Equal to or Greater than $300,000.00.

Title Description Amount Campus
1. LAMAR Company Contract This campaign serves as a crucial $398,814.00 SUAREC
(LDH Essence/COVID-19 Campaign) component of the Ag Center’s initiative

to enhance public health through
increased awareness of COVID-19
vaccinations and immunizations.
LAMAR is tasked with outdoor
advertising to include digital advertising
featuring images, photographs,
graphics, text, data, or other such
media.




9|Page
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS:
None

AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made by Ms. Maple Gaines to adjourn the meeting.



10|Page

STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

(Following Legal Affairs Committee)
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting Room
J. S. Clark Administration Bldg. 2nd Floor
Baton Rouge, LA.

AGENDA

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Student Affairs Committee. Chair Dr. Rani Whitfield
called the committee meeting to order.

Roll Call by President Shields

Present: Dr. Rani Whitfield — Chair, Mr. Raymond Fondel — Vice Chair, Mrs. Ann Smith, Mr. Jyron Young, and Ms. Maple
Gaines, and Mr. Myron K. Lawson - Ex Officio

Absent: Ms. Zazell Dudley,

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Upon the motion by Chairman Myron K. Lawson and seconded by Mr. Raymond Fondel the agenda was recommended for
adoption.

Motion passed.

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

AGENDA ITEM 5: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s)

A. Enrollment Updates

There will be a deeper dive in Enrollment at the Board Retreat.

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS
None
AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Mr. Myron K. Lawson to adjourn the meeting.



I1|Page

PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

(Following Student Affairs Committee)
Southern University System Board Room
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2™ Floor
Baton Rouge, LA 70813

MINUTES

Board Chair Myron Lawson announced the convening of the Personnel Affairs Committee. Chair Mr. Sam Gilliam
called the committee meeting to order.

Roll Call by President Shields

Present: Mr. Sam Gilliam — Chairman, Mrs. Christy Reeves—Vice-Chair, Atty Tony Clayton, Dr. Leon Tarver, II, Dr. Arlanda
Williams and Mr. Myron Lawson - Ex Officio

Absent: Ms. Zazell Dudley
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Mr. Sam Gilliam mentioned the amendment to the agenda for Action Item 5D (5) and 5E (1) Upon the motion by Dr. Arlanda
Williams and seconded by Dr. Leon Tarver Il the agenda was recommended for adoption with amendment.

Motion passed.

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

AGENDA ITEM 5: ACTION ITEM(S)

Motion was made by Dr. Leon Tarver, Il and second by Dr. Arlanda Williams that Action Item 5(A-G) be approved in global.

Motion Approved
A. A. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than
$60,000.00 (SUNO)
Name Position/Department Description Waived/Search Salary Funding
Previous | Suggested Source
1. Janel Green Comptroller New Appointment Search $100,000.00 | $ 105,000.00 State
Office of the Comptroller Existing Position

D. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than

$60,000.00 (SUBR)
Name Position/Department Description Waived/Search Salary Funding
Previous | Suggested Source
1. Latrinka Cook Asst to the Associate New Appointment Search N/A $60,000.00 State
Dean/MBA Director Existing Position
Malveaux Master of
Business Admin




12|Page

Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024

2. Kamilla Fair Assistant Registrar New Appointment Search $69,628.00 | $68,000.00 State
Academic Affairs Existing Position
3. Opeyemi P. Post-Doctoral New Appointment Search N/A $75,000.00 State/Federal
Ojauni Research Manager New Position
Graduate School
4. Sherman Pittman Program Director New Appointment N/A N/A $72,929.00 Grant
Dept of Accounting, Temp Position
Finance & Econ
5. Ashley Sensley Director of Development | New Appointment Search N/A $-85.000.00 State
College of Humanities & New Position Sou-hunin
Interdisciplinary Studies
6. Barbara Woods SU Online New Appointment Search N/A $85,000.00 State
Technology Director New Position
Academic Affairs

E. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than
$60,000.00 (SUAREC)

1. Marlin Ford Asst Research Professor/ Salary N/A $ 93,600.00 $ 105,000.00 Federal
Urban Ag Specialist/Farm Adjustment
Superintendant
Research Extension
2. Tamika Porter Comptroller New Appointment Waived $100,628.00 $91,00.00 State
Finance Existing Position

F. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than
$60,000.00 (SUSLA)

1. Kenneth Lee

Chief of Police
University Police

New Appointment
Existing Position

Search

$66,040.00

$85,000.00

State

G. Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions Equal to or Greater than
$60,000.00 (SULC)

1. Angela Gaines Facilities Director/ Rehire N/A $113,400.00 | $113,400.00 State
ADA Coordinator Additional Duties
Institutional Support Existing Position

AGENDA ITEM 6: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s)

A. Update on employee Evaluations from each Campus (SUS)




13|Page
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 6: OTHER BUSINESS
None
AGENDA ITEM 7: ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Chairman Myron Lawson to adjourn the meeting.



l4|Page

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(Following Personnel Committee)
Southern University System Board Room
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2™ Floor
Baton Rouge, LA 70813

MINUTES

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board Chair Myron Lawson

PRESENT

Atty Tony Clayton, Ms. Zazell Dudley, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Ms. Maple Gaines, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Myron
Lawson, Ms. Christy Reeves, Mr. Paul Matthews, Mrs. Christy Reeves, Atty Domoine Rutledge, Atty Edwin Shorty,
Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon Tarver, II, Dr. Samuel Tolbert, Rev. Dr. Rani Whitfield, Dr. Arlanda Williams and Mr.
Jyron Young

ABSENT
Atty Tony Clayton,

AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Upon the motion by Ms. Christy Reeves, and second by Ms. Ann Smith, the agenda was recommended for adoption.
Motion passed.

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS

Comments provided by the following individuals in support of Action Item 6J

Thomas Miller — SUBR Faculty Senate

Albert Samuels - SUBR

Anthony Igiede — SUBR Faculty Senate

Oswald D’Auvergne — SUBR Faculty Senate
Jaclyn Hotard — Parish President — St. John Parish

AGENDA ITEM 5: RESOLUTIONS

Dr. Allen Vital read resolutions for the following:
Resolutions

Gladys Washington Cunningham
Sally Mae Young Jackson
Gwendolyn Fae Perkins

Robert Russelles Perry, Jr.

Troy O’Brien Green Sr.

James Jessie Monroe

Oscar Lavonia Williams, Jr.
George Rogers Jr.



I5|Page

There was a motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield to approve the read resolutions and Mr. Raymond Fondel second the

motion.

Motion approved.

AGENDA ITEM 6: ACTION ITEM(s):

There was a motion by Atty Tony Clayton and Second by Atty Domoine Rutledge to approve action item 6(A — I) in

global.

Motion passed.

A.

B.

Approval of Minutes of the February 16, 2024, SUS Board of Supervisors Meeting (SUS)
Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations (SUS)

Request Approval to Grant an Honorary Degree to Arlana Miller at the May 2024 Commencement
Ceremony (SUBR)

Request Approval to Grant an Honorary Doctorate of Humane Letters in Social Sciences at the May
2024 Commencement Ceremony (SUNO)

Request Approval to Rename the SUMA Cultural and Heritage Center the Dr. Leon R. Tarver, 11
Cultural and Heritage Center.

Request Approval of the National Council for State Authorization Reciprocity Agreement Application
(SUBR)

Request Approval to Modify the Organizational Structure of the Southern
University at New Orleans (SUNO)

Request Approval for the Lease Agreement for SUSLA Aerospace Technology
Center (SUSLA)

I. Request Approval to Rename and Restructure the Office of Equity and Inclusion

and Title IX (SULC)

J. Request Approval for the Recommendation of Chancellor (SUBR)

There was a motion by Atty Tony Clayton and Second by Ms. Ann Smith to approve action item 6J.

Motion passed.

AGENDA ITEM 7: INFORMATIONAL ITEM(s):

A.

B.

Legislative Update - See written Update that was provided.

President’s Report



l6|Page
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes March 22, 2024

C. Chancellor’s Reports — See written updates that was provided in packet.

AGENDA ITEM 8: OTHER BUSINESS

None
AGENDA ITEM 9: ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Dr. Whitfield to adjourn the meeting.



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAw CENTER
2 Rooseverr Sterror Drsy
Posst Omice Box 9294
Baron Rouer, Lovisiaka 70813

O#FILE 03 THE CHANCELLOR April 5,2024
{295 771-2352

Fax (295) 7712471

Dennis J. Shields

President/Chancellor

Southern University System & Baton Rouge Campus
1.8. Clark Administration Building

4% Floor

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

RE: Request to rename and restructure the Office of Equity, Inclusion, & Title 1X Office
Dear President Shields:

To have the Southern University Law Center (SULC) "right size" its operations and develop a structure that is
consistent with the May 2023 Board of Supervisors vote to rename the Southern University System Office of Equity,
Inclusion, and Title IX to the Southern University System Office of Compliance, I amn submitting the attached
recommendation and request made by Kerii Landry-Thomas, Associate Vice-Chancellor (AVC) for Equity, Inclusion,
& Title IX at SULC. The requést and recommendation are to rename the SULC Office of Equity, Inclusion, and Title
IX to the SULC Office for Compliance.

In addition, she is requesting a restructuring of the office to reduce the staff. She has indicated that SULC has a smaller
number of Title IX cases than the SUBR campus and needs to be more efficient and effective. Her recommendation
is to combine the position of Associate Vice-Chancellor for Compliance and Title 1X Coordinator, AVC Thomas has
conducted research and found examples of this type of struciure.

AVC Thomas re_spectfu_lly requests that her recommendation for the office name change, and title change be presented
to the Board of Supervisors for consideration, and approval at the April 2024, Board of Supervisors meeting.

1 ain requesting that this recommendation be placed on the April 2024, Board of Supervisors agenda. If the request
is approved, the changes will become effective June 1, 2024,

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely.

John X. Pierre, Esq.
Chancellor and Vanue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor

*An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution”






Southern University Law Center
Office of Compliance & Title IX

Associate Vice Chancellor for Compliance & Title IX Coordinator

Description

Summary Of Position

Associate Vice Chancellor for Compliance & Title IX Coordinator is responsible for ensuring
that the law center is in consistent compliance with all local, state, and federal laws, rules,
regulations, policies, and procedures. Specifically, the AVC for Compliance provides strategic
guidance, advice, and subject-matter expertise to senior adininistrators and campus
constituencies as it relates to Title IX, VAWA, Clery and State Power-Based Violence, The AVC
for Compliance/Title IX Coordinator oversees and coordinates investigations, responses, and
resolutions to reports of power-based violence and works with internal and external investigators
to address reports and complaints. The AVC/Title IX Coordinator is responsible for overseeing
resolution of complaints of discrimination and harassment under Title IX and State Power-Based

Violence.

Essential Functions (Duties and Responsibilities): To fully meet job expectations, the incumbent

must perform each function in a fully acceptable manner.
» Oversee, coordinate, and ensure investigations of reports and complaints of power-based
violence are adequate, reliable, timely, confidential, and impartial.
e Train deputy Title IX coordinators, investigators, confidential advisors, decision makers,
and other appropriate personnel so they are adequately trained in compliance with Title [X
and Power-Based Violence guidance.

» Supervise and manage the Office for Compliance staff.

« Expert knowledge of the complexities of sexual harassment, including sexual violence, in
the postsecondary setting.

« [Expert knowledge of best practices and methodologies for conducting investigations,
including interviewing, gathering and analyzing evidence, and writing investigation
reports; demonstrated advanced expertise managing subordinate stalff who conduct
investigations, as well as effectively managing external investigators.

« Expert knowledge of federal and state laws and regulations, case law, and guidance

related to discrimination and harassment in the educational and employment setting,



including Title VI, Title VII , Title IX, VAWA , FEHA , ADA /Rehabilitation Act,
ADEA and Age Discrimination Act.

Demonstrated skill, sensitivity and experience interacting with students, faculty, staff and
other constituents who are diverse in characteristics such as age, education level, race,
gender identity and expression, ability, and socioeconomic backgrounds in a culturally
competent and supportive manner.

Demonstrated understanding of the relevance of trauma in the context of sexual violence.
Demonstrated understating of the responsibility to maintain sensitive information in
accordance with FERPA , HIPAA / FMLA .

Advanced written and oral communication skills; builds rapport in an open, friendly, and
accepting way; listens attentively.

Ability to objectively evaluate evidence and seek resolution to disputed issues and topics,
applying legal and policy standards as informed by relevant case law, regulatory
guidance, and SULC values.

Excellent judgment and ability to work well as part of a team, including collaboration

with diverse university units and others.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:

Ability to use internet software, spreadsheet software, and word processing software,
Demonstrated sensitivity to individuals with diverse special needs.

Ability to communicate effectively both orally and in written form.

Demonstrated effective recordkeeping skills.

Demonstrated effective organizational skills.

Ability to establish and maintain positive relationships with a diverse student and faculty
population.

Ability to read, analyze, and interpret professional journals, technical procedures, or
governmental regulations.

Ability to write reports, business correspondence, and procedure manuals,

Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of students,
faculty, staff, outside groups, and the general public.

Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in
situations where only limited standardization exists.

Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule
form.

Operate in a highly confidential manner.

The employee is regularly required to sit and talk or hear.

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds.

Minimum Qualifications;



Master’s degree or above is required. Juris Doctorate or other terminal degree preferred. Minimum
of five years of experience in higher education. Knowledge of the American with Disabilities Act
of 1990, its Amending Act of 2008, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title IX of
the 1972 Education Amendments, and the Louisiana Campus Accountability and Safety Act.




SECOND AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment to Services Agreement (this “Amendment”) is entered into effective as
of the 25" day of March, 2024, by and between Southern University and Agricultural & Mechanical College
System (“Southern University”) on behalf of the Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension
Center (“AgCenter”) and Advanced Biomedics, LLC, a Louisiana limited liability company (“Supplier”).

WHEREAS, Southern University and Supplier are parties to that certain Services Agreement dated
May 25, 2018 (as amended by the Amendments to Services Agreement dated November 12, 2018, the
“Services Agreement™); and

WHEREAS, Southern University and Supplier desire to amend the Services Agreement to extend
the initial term of the Services Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein in order to discuss

additional contract terms.,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties hereto
agree as follows;

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Amendment have the respective
meanings assigned to them in the Services Agreement

2. Amendment to Term. The first sentence of Section 5.1 of the Services Agreement is hereby deleted
and replaced with the following:

“The initial texm of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and ends on August 1, 2024.”

3. Limited Effect, Except as specifically set forth in this Amendment, the terins and conditions of the
Services Agreement remain unaltered and in full force and effect,

4. Counterparts, This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an
original, but all of which constitute one and the same agreement.

[Signature page follows]

Page 1of 2







STATE OF LOUISIANA
EXTENSION TO CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES
BE IT KNOWN THAT this agreement is entered into by and between BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURAL AND
MECHANICAL COLLEGE, (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “Board”) and DECUIR,
CLARK AND ADAMS, L.L.P. (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “Counsel”), collectively
herein referred to as “Parties”.
1.
The Parties entered into a contract for professional services (“Contract”) in April 2021 with
an effective period of July 1, 2021 and ending on June 30, 2023.
2.
Contract provided for two (2) one-year extensions.
3.
The Parties wish to extend Contract through June 30, 2025.
4,
All other provisions under the Contract remain the same.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this____ day

of , 2024,

Myron K. Lawson, Chairman
Southern University and A&M College
System Board of Supervisors

Dennis J. Shields, President-Chancellor
Southern University and A&M College System

Brandon J. DeCuir, Partner
DeCuir, Clark & Adams, LLP



STATE OF LOUISIANA
PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF
CHANCELLOR OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AGRICULTURAL,
RESEARCH AND EXTENSION CENTER AND DEAN OF THE
COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE AT SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY
AND A&M COLLEGE
ORLANDO F. MCMEANS

This amendment is made and entered into on the19th day of April 2024 between the Board
of Supervisors of Southern University and A&M College (“Board”) and Dr. Orlando F. McMeans
(“Chancellor”). This Amendment, along with the previous amendment and the original
employment contract constitutes the Employment Contract of the Chancellor of Southern
University Agricultural, Research and Extension Center and Dean of the College of Agriculture at
Southern University and A&M College in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (“University”) (collectively
referred herein as “Parties”). This Second Amendment shall be effective as of December 1, 2023,
through the end of the contract term. The Parties wish to amend their agreement in the following
respects. All other provisions not specifically addressed herein remain in effect.

l. TERM OF EMPLOYMENT
a. This Amendment shall extend the term of the contract through December 31, 2029.
I11.  COMPENSATION

a. The Chancellor shall be paid an annual base salary of three hundred thirty-seven thousand
($337,000.00) effective December 1, 2023, through the term of the contract.

b. Subject to satisfactory annual evaluations and available resources, the Chancellor shall
receive a minimum annual increase of 4%. At the discretion of the President and Board of
Supervisors, the adjustment can be greater than 4%.

THE PARTIES hereto, acknowledging that this Agreement is subject to approval of the
Board of Supervisors, have executed this Agreement on the day, month and year first above
written.

CHANCELLOR, SOUTHERN
UNIVERSITY AGRICULTURAL
RESEARCH AND EXTENSION CENTER

Orlando F. McMeans, Ph.D.

PRESIDENT, SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY
AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM

Dennis J. Shields

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF SOUTHERN
UNIVERSITY AND AGRICULTURAL
AND MECHANICAL COLLEGE

Myron K. Lawson



	April 2024 BOS Meeting
	Spring 2024 Commencement Resolutions
	College of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies Curriculum Changes
	SUSLA Degree Program Proposals
	SUSLA Distance Learning Program Request
	Athletic Director Roman Banks Contract
	Baton Rouge Water Works Servitude Agreement
	Capital Outlay Projects
	Housing Fee Increase (Refer to Handout)
	Interim Financial Report
	SUAREC Mobile Processing Trailer & Supply, LLC
	CLM Construction Contract (SU Lab Restrooms Renovations)
	Kingdom Builders Construction Contract (SU Lab Exterior Windows)
	LA Public Service Commission (J. B. Cade Library)
	LA Public Service Commission (F.G. Clark Activity Center)
	LA Office of Health/OBH
	G. E. C., INC Profession Service Contract
	          SUNO
	         SUBR
	       SUAREC
	      SUS
	Leave of Absence /Alford
	Leave of Absence / Harrison
	Retirement Incentive Plans
	SUNO Summer Hours Pilot
	March 2024 Meeting Minutes
	SULC Compliance Rename and Restructure
	Advanced Biomedics, LLC
	DCA Contract
	Chancellor-Dean McMeans (SUAREC)



